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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and

careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual report,
make no representation as to ils accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no

other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR B R

AR ESRFHBBARAFARER
and liabilities of the Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech BT B IBCAF B A G SE A I S 5 T B B A AR

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated assets

Company Limited for the last five financial years is as follows: DS
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—F-NE T b DR R DR RE DN
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥TFR ARWTT AR¥WTT ARWTT AR¥TET
RESULTS 3
Revenue A 1,905,727 1,613,075 1,412,542 1,072,045 903,974
Profit before tax BB A 36 A 405,067 417,570 351,493 237,706 196,614
Income tax expense EREN B (78,556) (76,080) (68,411) (43,002) (29,512)
Profit for the year AR A Ui ) 326,511 341,490 283,082 194,704 167,102
Profit attributable to: AL 5 ) -
Owners of the Company R /NGIE XS N 147,029 170,668 129,560 75,998 100,844
Non-controlling interests  JF /A 25 179,482 170,822 153,522 118,706 66,258
326,511 341,490 283,082 194,704 167,102
ASSETS AND e K fLfE
LIABILITIES
Total assets MR 3,468,716 3,180,551 2,676,583 2,277,791 1,855,663
Total liabilities =L (818,301)  (692,303)  (653,772)  (587,576)  (455,921)
Total assets less total MO A AR AR
liabilities 2,650,415 2,448,248 2,022,811 1,690,215 1,399,742
Non-controlling interests  JF A 75 (900,180)  (719,907)  (548,174)  (397,686)  (312,213)
Equity attributable to RNFEA N
owners of the Company JRE A 22 1,750,235 1,768,341 1,474,637 1,292,529 1,087,529

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
e i

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”), I am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended
31 December 2018 of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”).

During the year under review, benefitting from the steady growth of
customer orders, the production of various types of fire safety products
has shown different levels of growth compared to corresponding period
last year. With the commencement of additional production line and
advanced equipment and the optimization of the production processes,
the productivity of factories has been significantly increased in order
to satisfy market demand. In the meantime, the Group has equipped
its production line with high-end inspection equipment and aimed to
internationalize the quality standards of its product production to ensure

that the quality of its products can achieve international top-tier level.

Results of the Group’s tourism development business also recorded stable
growth. During the year, the number of tourists to Hengshan Mountain
scenic area reached approximately 2.4 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 8%. Most of the tourists took the environmental bus
provided by the Group to Hengshan Mountain scenic area with a usage

rate of 92%, resulting in steady income growth.

Benefitting from the persistent satisfactory performance of our
core businesses, the Group’s total revenue for the year increased
by 18.2% to approximately RMB1.906 billion (2017: RMB1.613
billion). The Group recorded a profit attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately RMB147.0 million (2017:
RMB170.7 million), representing a decrease of 13.9% as compared
to the corresponding period last year. This was mainly attributable
to the share of loss from property development project in the PRC
of the Group’s associate. The earnings per share for the year was
approximately RMB10.7 cents (2017: RMB12.5 cents).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B350

Looking forward, under the guidance of the newly amended regulations
in respect of fire safety product design and industry-related standards,
the Group will continue to strengthen the development of R&D platform,
attract outstanding talents in different fields and enhance talent training,
thereby ensuring the improvement of product quality for the Company.
At the same time, the Group will step up the support for dealers and
advise and assist dealers to assemble a talented team to fortify its market
competitiveness, while accelerating market expansion through a variety
of channels. The Group aims to boost its overseas market expansion
through its Canada-based subsidiary. For the tourism development
business, Hengshan Mountain scenic area, a developed tourism
attraction, is expected to maintain a stable number of tourists and
segmental business performance in 2019. The substantial uncertainties
looming over the global economic environment and volatile asset prices
in recent times have caused impacts of varied degrees to the investment
valuation of the Group’s investment business. The Group will explore
investment projects with promising development potential in a prudent
manner, with an aim of maximizing overall return and value for the

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

On behalf to the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to every dedicated employee for their efforts and valuable
contributions to the Group during the year. I would also like to thank
every shareholder, business partner, customer and supplier for their

unfaltering support.

Ni Jinlei

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
20 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o B o i e g A

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, manufacture and sale
of electronic fire equipment business and tourism development
business continued to be the Group’s core source of revenue. The
Group also continued to be principally engaged in investment

holding of diversified portfolios.

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment

The Group focused on research, development, manufacture,
marketing and sale of fire safety products, including fire automatic
alarm and control linkage system, electrical fire monitoring
system, automatic gas fire extinguishing system and gas detection
monitoring system. The Group aims to provide comprehensive fire
safety solution that integrates fire protection, security, monitoring
and intelligent identification. The Group mainly distributes its
fire safety products through dealers across the region in the PRC,
and actively explores overseas markets. Its headquarter is located
in Beijing with main production facilities in Hebei, Beijing and
Sichuan, the PRC.

During the year, the Group won “Top 10 Alarm Brand in the Fire
Protection Industry in 2018”, an industry-recognised award with
its leading research and development strength, safe and reliable
product performance and excellent service support. The Group
has built a strong R&D platform, with independent intellectual
property rights, advanced technology, and high-quality team
of experts, which was in the leading position in the industry.
In 2018, the marketing and service departments actively visited
customers and dealers, which enabled the Group to get valuable
frontline information for formulating sales policies and product

development.

Tourism development

The Group is engaged in provision of environmental shuttle bus
service and property management services, and operation of tourist
service center and tourist souvenir shops in Hengshan Mountain
scenic area, the PRC. The Group also, through investments in
associates, participated in several tourism development projects
in Hunan Province, including the construction and development
of landscape architectures and primary land development of
land around the Sonya Lake region at Changsha County, and the

development of tourist sight project located at Tianzi Mountain.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i B 53

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Tourism development (Continued)

Fare revenue of environmental shuttle bus service was the main
source of income of the Group’s tourism development business,
which continued to contribute constant profit and cash flow to
the Group. Hengshan Mountain is a religious place, where various
religious activities were held throughout the year. The Group’s
performance continued to be benefited from stable arrivals, being
dominated by pilgrims, visiting Hengshan Mountain scenic area.
During the year under review, the number of tourists and pilgrims
at Hengshan Mountain scenic area taking the environmental bus
with full-priced ticket recorded stable growth of 5.1% year-on-year
to approximately 2.2 million, while the service utilisation rate of
the Group’s environmental bus service maintained at high level of

92%.

Investment holding

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment holding business
mainly included investments in Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital
Investment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group (a private equity
fund with equity investments in private enterprises in the PRC
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of light-emitting
diode related products and e-commerce business), the investments
in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income including listed companies in Hong Kong and a private
enterprise in the PRC, investments in associates and joint ventures
which were private equity funds with investments in private
enterprises in the PRC, and the investment in co-production of
films and television dramas in the PRC. During the year, the Group

did not effect any material additional new investments.

Outlook

Looking ahead, the Group’s manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment business will focus on strengthening the R&D team and
optimizing the composition of personnel. The Group will always
adheres to the investment and construction of human resources
and recruiting high calibre talents to provide guarantee for the
improvement of the product quality. The Group will also continue
to increase its support to the dealers and hence their market

competitiveness by assisting to build excellent teams.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i B 53

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Outlook (Continued)

The number of tourists and pilgrims visiting Hengshan Mountain
scenic area is expected to stable in 2019. The Group will strive
for keeping high utilization rate of the environmental bus and
maintaining steady performance of the tourism development
business. The Group will be well-positioned to further benefit from
the participation in various tourism development projects in the
PRC.

Maintaining a diversified investment portfolio is the Group’s long-
term investment strategy. In view of expected higher volatility
ahead, the Group will monitor the performance of the existing
investment portfolio and carefully assess investment opportunities

in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment

Revenue generated from the manufacture and sale of electronic
fire equipment business increased from approximately RMB1.461
billion in 2017 to approximately RMB1.748 billion in 2018,
representing a steady growth of 19.6%. The continuous strong
sales performance was mainly due to brand loyalty and advantages
and industry recognition of the Group’s fire safety solutions with
excellent quality and after-sales services, and additions of new
production lines and advanced equipment enabling the Group’s
production capacity. The Group has obtained international
certifications for its fire safety products, which further stimulated

sales growth.

Tourism development

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s tourism
development business continued to experience steady growth
and recorded revenue of approximately RMB138.8 million (2017:
RMB132.8 million), representing an increase by 4.5% when
compared with the corresponding year of 2017. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in number of visitors to
Hengshan Mountain scenic area during the year.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i B 53

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment holding

The segment total assets of investment holding business decreased
from approximately RMB1,061.1 million as at 31 December 2017
to approximately RMB880.0 million as at 31 December 2018,
representing an decrease of 17.1%, mainly as a result of increase
in asset price volatility in the forth quarter which let to the overall
decrease in fair value of the financial assets held by the Group and
its associates and joint ventures. For the year ended 31 December
2018, a gain on disposal of approximately RMB1.3 million (2017:
Nil) was transferred to retained profits as a result of disposal of

certain financial assets held by the Group.

Overall performance

During the year under review, the Group continued to strengthen
the performance of its manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment and tourism development segments, while maintaining
a diversified investment portfolio for its investment holding
segment, and the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB1.906 billion, representing an increase of 18.2% as compared
with approximately RMB1.613 billion in 2017. Gross profit rose
13.6% year-on-year to approximately RMB841.3 million (2017:
RMB740.4 million), as a result of the increase in turnover and
maintaining a stable gross profit ratio of 44% (2017: 46%). The
Group reported a comparatively higher cost of sales, in particular
the cost of materials, and a lower gross profit ratio comparing with
last year. Impairment loss on trade and other receivables increased
to approximately RMB30.6 million (2017: RMB12.1 million) as a
result of increase in the Group’s revenue and trade receivables.
The Group’s total operating expenses, including distribution
costs, administrative expenses and other expenses, were increased
by 16.8% to approximately RMB379.7 million (2017: RMB325.2
million), following to the continued growth of the Group’s main
businesses, in particular the increase in distribution costs in line
with better sales performance and the increase in research and
development costs to maintain the Group’s competitiveness and
advantages. During the reporting year, the Group’s associate
incurred loss from its property development project in the PRC,
which led to the increase in the Group’s share of loss of associates
to approximately RMB38.8 million (2017: RMB3.8 million).
Despite of a record high turnover, profit attributable to owners
of the Company decreased 13.9% year-on-year to approximately
RMB147.0 million (2017: RMB170.7 million), mainly because of

the increase in the Group’s share of loss of associates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i B 53

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Financial position

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial position remained
solid and the Group’s current ratio (being ratio of current assets
and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio (being measured
by total interest-bearing debts to total equity), which are key
performance indicators of the Group’s short-term solvency position
and financial leverage, were 2.49 (2017: 2.28) and 8.5% (2017:
8.9%) respectively.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating

risks and financial risks.

Operational risks

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
intense competition from local and multinational competitors
with financial advantages and the industrial policy risks. The
competitors may develop and launch new products ahead of the
Group at more attractive prices, and this might lead to the risk of
declining gross profit margin of the Group. If there is unfavorable
adjustment of the industrial policies in relation to the fire safety
system products and tourism industry in the PRC, there may have
an adverse effect on the Group’s net profit. The Board always
monitors market situation in order to react promptly over any
potential risks. The Board meets and discusses with directors of
subsidiaries frequently to keep track of their situations so that it
can adjust segmental strategies timely. The Group has already set
out strategies including quality control enhancement, stringent
cost control and business diversification to deal with different kinds

of operational risks.

Financial risks
The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i B 53

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

Financial risks (Continued)

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars (“USD”),
Canadian dollars (“CAD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy
at present as turnover, most of the production costs and operating
expenses are denominated in RMB and they are automatically
hedged, leaving limited currency risk. The Group closely monitors
its exposure and will take measures to lower foreign currency risk

when necessary.

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value. The change
in fair value of the listed securities will lead to the fluctuation
of fair value changes of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income included in the Group’s total
comprehensive income. The Group has not mitigated its price risk

arising from the listed equity securities.

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include time deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and receivables. In particular, with the
expansion of the Group’s operating scale, the absolute amount of
trade receivables will gradually increase. A substantial increase in
trade receivables will result in a decrease in the Group’s operating
cash flow and an increase in the Group’s operating risk. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and has set up a credit control department to monitor
credit terms of customers. Senior management of each subsidiary
reviews overdue balances regularly. The Group maintains long-
term cooperation with the dealers and customer credit is in good
condition. The Group does not develop particular policy to tackle
credit risks from time deposits, and cash and cash equivalents at
present as the major counterparties are either well-established or

having high credit-rating.

The Group’s measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in short

and long term.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The risk varies with the prevailing

market condition but is limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i B 53

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest environmental
standards and strictly follows the applicable environmental
requirements imposed by the PRC government in its production
and operation. For the year under review, the Group complied with
influential laws relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas emissions,
water or land discharging, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes, and
use of resources. The Group strives to reduce destruction to the
environment by saving energy and encouraging recycle of office
supplies. Besides, the environmental buses operated by the Group
are equipped with anti-smoking devices and do not use heavy-duty

diesel to reduce pollution.

The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC, the United States of America and the
Canada and the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in
2000. The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and

regulations to ensure sustainable development of its businesses.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group has established a comprehensive dealer operation
model for its manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
business and mainly sold its fire alarm products to end customers
through dealers. The Group maintains good relationship with the
dealers. The Group’s marketing department is mainly responsible
for the evaluation of dealer qualifications and coordinating the
relationship between dealers, while the business department is
mainly responsible for executing sales contracts with dealers and
assessing credit limit. For the tourism development business, the
customers mainly comprised of tourists and pilgrims and the Group
is committed to provide good-quality environmental shuttle bus

services to the customers.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key upstream
component suppliers. The Group strictly regulated procurement
procedures in relation to supplier evaluation and selection,
and acceptance of purchased products. In addition, there are a
large number of upstream component suppliers in the market
and relatively stable purchase prices could be maintained when

purchasing at large quantities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i B 53

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Saved as disclosed herein this section, during the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group did not effect any material acquisitions
and disposals which would be required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources, by corporate borrowings and by net proceeds from
placing of new H shares of the Company in 2017. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB684.4 million, which were denominated mainly
in RMB, HK$, USD, CAD and EUR.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net assets of approximately
RMB2,650.4 million (2017: RMB2,488.2 million). The Group had
total outstanding borrowings of approximately RMB225.7 million
(2017: RMB220.9 million) which consisted of secured bank loans
of approximately RMB225.7 million (2017: RMB180.9 million) and
unsecured bank loans of RMB Nil(2017: RMB40.0 million). The
bank loans were denominated in RMB and USD and bore interest

rates ranging from 4.35% per annum to 6.00% per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued promoters shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 678,720,000 shares respectively.

In respect of the placing completed on 11 July 2016, approximately
90% of the net proceeds from the placing would be applied
to explore acquisition opportunities and development of new
businesses; and approximately 10% of the net proceeds from
the placing would be used to repay existing indebtedness and
supplement working capital of the Group. Details of the above
was disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 17
June 2016, 11 July 2016 and 1 December 2017. As at 31 December
2018, approximately RMB74.5 million was used for acquisition of
equity interests in associate and subsidiary, capital contribution
to associate and payments for investments; approximately RMB8.2
million was applied as working capital of the Group. All the net

proceeds from the placing have been fully utilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

In respect of the placing completed on 6 February 2017 and
following the change of use of proceeds on 29 March 2018,
approximately 88% of net proceeds from the placing would be
applied to potential acquisitions and/or development of new
businesses; and approximately 12% of the net proceeds from
the placing would be applied as working capital of the Group.
Details of the above were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 11 January 2017, 6 February 2017, 1 December
2017 and 29 March 2018. As at 31 December 2018, approximately
RMB103.9 million was applied to capital contribution to associates
and investment of the Company and payments for investments of
the Group; approximately RMB9.8 million was applied as working
capital of the Group; and the remaining balance of approximately
HK$4.8 million (equivalent to approximately RMB4.2 million) was
deposited in bank.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018, which is
measured by total interest-bearing debts to total equity, was 8.5%
(2017: 8.9%). There was no significant change in gear ratio during

the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB135.2 million, representing 3.9% of the total assets of the

Group, which mainly comprised of:

(1) 17.5% equity interest in Enraytek Optoelectronics (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (“Enraytek Optoelectronics”) with investment
cost of approximately RMB113.5 million at fair value of
approximately RMB50.1 million, representing 1.4% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2018. Enraytek
Optoelectronics is an unlisted private enterprise established
in the PRC and is principally engaged in LED and related
industrial chain design, development and manufacturing.
There is a decrease in fair value of approximately RMB67.8

million included in other comprehensive income for the year;
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
(CONTINUED)

(i) 19% equity interest in Jade Bird Tongling Semiconductor
Industry Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) (“Tongling
Investment Fund”) with investment cost of approximately
RMB66.5 million at fair value of approximately RMB60.5
million, representing 1.7% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2018. Tongling Investment Fund is a limited
partnership investment fund established in the PRC with
investment scope of semiconductor industry chain projects in
the city of Tongling, Anhui province. There is a decrease in
fair value of approximately RMB6.0 million included in other

comprehensive Income in for the year; and

(iii) 3,616,340 ordinary shares of Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (“SMIC”) with investment cost of
approximately RMB28.2 million at fair value of approximately
RMB21.7 million, representing 0.6% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2018. SMIC is a Hong Kong listed
company with stock code 00981 and is principally engaged
in the manufacture and trading of semiconductor products.
There is a decrease in fair value of approximately RMB21.5

million included in other comprehensive income for the year.

Investment holding is one of the core businesses of the Group, and
the Group strives to identify promising investment opportunities.
The Group considered the optimistic future prospect of LED
and semiconductor industries and expected that the Group’s
investments will be benefited in the long run. During the year
under review, the fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income fluctuated as a result of
uncertainty of global economic environment. The Group will
carefully assess investment opportunities in the market to diversify
investment business portfolio in view of expected higher volatility
ahead.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any

significant investment plans as at 31 December 2018.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB503 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities

granted to associates of the Company.

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an assessment
demanding final tax for the year of assessment 2004/2005 from
The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”). The
amount of this assessment was approximately HK$47,852,000
(equivalent to RMB41,928,000) in which approximately
HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to RMB41,837,000) relating to a claim
for gain on disposal of long term investment recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2004. On 25 February 2013, the IRD
issued a notice to the subsidiary informing that the case has been
forwarded to the Appeals Section of the IRD for further processing.
The outcome of the tax claim cannot be readily ascertained
up to the date of this report. Should the assessment regarding
the claim for the gain be finally judged against the subsidiary,
current tax liabilities and corresponding income tax expense of
HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to RMB41,837,000) will be recognised.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most
of its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in
USD, CAD, RMB, EUR and HK$. The Group has not formulated
a foreign currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the
production costs and operating expenses are denominated in RMB
and they are automatically matched, leaving limited currency risk.
The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange exposure
and will take measures to lower the foreign currency risk when

necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB107.5 million (2017:
RMB123.4 million) and bank deposit of approximately RMB5.0
million (2017: Nil) were pledged as securities for the Group’s bank

loans.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. The Directors
are of the view that the Group maintains good working relations
with its employees. The Group had workforce of 2,613 people
situated mainly in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States at
the end of reporting year, up 13.6% since the end of 2017. The
increase was in line with the growth of the Group. The Group
strictly complied with applicable labour law and regulations.
Competitive remuneration package with medical and travel
insurance are offered to the staff. Adequate retirement funds and
provident funds are contributed on a timely basis. The Group
emphasizes on working safety and sets out proper safety guidelines
and provides adequate training to workers. Staffs are free to set
up trade union according to applicable laws while the supervisory
committee of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) had

representative from the workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances, and
discretionary bonus determined according to the performance of

individual Director.

The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB269.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: RMB225.1 million).
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#HE - BFE LR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ni was
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree
in computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation, founder
and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang Information
Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently a director of Beida Jade
Bird Universal Investments (HK) Limited, which is the subsidiary
of the Company and the chairman of Beijing Xizhi Education
Technology Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, aged 57, is an executive Director and the
president of the Company. Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible
for overall development strategies and the fund and investment
management business of the Group. He was graduated from Peking
University with a Master’s degree in science. He worked in several
administrative departments of Peking University including the vice
president of the Remote Sensing and Geographic Information
System Department of Peking University which was responsible
for the State’s focal science and technological project. Mr. Zhang
is a director of Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman)
Development Company Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
Investments (USA) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm
Device Company Limited, Chuanqi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd.
and Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments (HK) Limited which are

subsidiaries of the Company.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 43, is an executive Director and the
compliance officer of the Company. Ms. Zheng was graduated from
the Molecular Biology Department of the School of Life Sciences
at Peking University in July 1997 and subsequently obtained an
MBA degree from the China Centre for Economic Research at
Peking University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng worked for the Biological
Engineering Centre under the Institute of Chemical Metallurgy
(now Institute of Process Engineering) at Chinese Academy of
Sciences, Department of Biology at Shenzhen University and
Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co., Ltd.. She was also an assistant to
the president of SINOGEN (China) Investment Company, assistant
to the head of Genetics Research Institute of the School of Life
Sciences at Tsinghua University, president of Beijing Beida-Online
Network Co., Ltd., vice president of Beida Culture Group, and
assistant to president of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited (“Beida
Jade Bird”) and the general manager overseeing major projects.
She is currently a director of Beijing Jade Bird Yuda Information
Technology Co., Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. She is also a director and deputy general manager of
SBI-BDJB Investment Consultant Ltd..

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Xue Li, aged 60, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 30 June 2015. Ms. Xue attended post-graduation level and is a
certified public accountant and a certified auditor in the PRC. Ms.
Xue is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. She was the
finance manager of finance department of Lenovo Group Limited,
the deputy general manager (finance) of Digital China (China)
Limited, the chief accountant and deputy general manager of
Xinda Real Estate Co., Ltd. (an A share listed company in the PRC),
and the supervisor of Xishui Strong Year Co., Ltd., Inner Mongolia
(an A share listed company in the PRC). She was the executive
Director during the period from 20 May 2009 to 21 June 2012. Ms.
Xue is currently the acting chief executive officer, the executive
vice president and the financial controller of Beijing Aptech Beida

Jade Bird Information Technology Co., Ltd..
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Xiang Lei, aged 67, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 31 July 2017. Mr. Xiang was graduated from the Stony Brook
College of the State University of New York with a Master’s degree
in systems management. Mr. Xiang is a council member of the
China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and a council member
of the Gonghe Foundation. Mr. Xiang was the manager of China
National Machinery Import and Export Corporation, senior
manager of East West Bank, chief representative of Giti Group’s
Beijing representative office, investment consultant of Donaldson,
Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, vice president of Beida
Jade Bird Group, director of Beijing Beihu Golf Club, and director
of Giti Group. Mr. Xiang is currently the director of Beijing
Jiuzhou Yahua Cultural Agency Company Limited and president of
Beida Jade Bird Group.

Mr. Ip Wing Wai, aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director
on 30 June 2015 and re-designated as a non-executive Director
on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration in Accounting from the The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2004. Mr. Ip
possesses 18 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
corporate field. Mr. Ip worked in an international accounting
firm for auditing and Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a
listed company in Hong Kong) as an accounting manager. During
September 2006 to August 2008, Mr. Ip served as a finance manager
and company secretary in a Chinese coal investment company. He
was in charge of financial reporting, corporate finance, merger
and acquisition and company secretarial matters and he also
coordinated the audit work and due diligence work of a transaction
in selling the company’s interest in three coal mines in Shanxi to
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang Fushan”)
(a listed company in Hong Kong). He then worked with Shougang
Fushan as a senior finance manager from September 2008 to March
2010. During the tenure, he was mainly responsible for the group’s
financial reporting, project evaluation, regulatory compliance and
investors relationship. Mr. Ip is currently the company secretary of
Huili Resources (Group) Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong)
and the vice president of King Stone Energy Group Limited (a
listed company in Hong Kong) mainly responsible for merger and

acquisition.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

FEPATEF (4])

HERE 67 R -F—LFELA= +*
AR R PITES Lﬁf‘ai%%ﬁ
INVAPNE--PER - 3V ﬁﬁ%uﬁ"lﬂﬁﬁi%
fir o MEARBTRTBERE G2 HETNE
Renmitaar BEam A - HLAE GBI
T AR i AR ] AR - SEARAT
ZERKH - EEE Mt RRE T EA
# ~ Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities
Corporation Z H & M ~ LK T 5 & 4 &I 48
B dLmTALW A AR ARG AR R o DL R
LM 2 o THSE A AR b st U EnEE S
EREARAFIZEERICREREEBE -

BRI A 4058 - N F—HAFENH =+
HEZRTHUTES > W _F— /\FHH
=t —HWRAEAFERITEDS ERATIAF
SRS iy N SR i B N KR e S =Y VA =
FTRWELIR » A FBEFMATETE -
BN EE - BB A R T T A 18
FEAR B o TESEAE W — [ B B E A S S
1Lk - BT m‘ffﬁﬁjlﬁ/‘}lfﬂxﬁﬁﬁ
NENEFEELHAR) MEFHEH - R FE
NEIHZE ZELZNFENAH %ﬁﬁiﬁ%ff
— ] o R A T SO AR I N R
o MAREMBERH - SERE - HEE AL
B FH > AR A RZ A ] AR L R
SEEABRA R (TH L)) (B EHAFR)
HE A LA 1LV T AR A 1R e SRR ) R A I

F % o5 38 T i A% A T ke A AR o

REEZNENAE R -FE R HE
M%ffﬁfﬁ]%m&ﬁ’]ﬁzﬁaﬁﬁ%@ o B A
NEZEAEHZEBEIE B - HE 5

ﬁk@A?ﬁ&ﬁg%‘Eﬁ% 2k B E &
5 (L) A BRA R (B B AR 22 a5
i&é‘%&ﬁ“%%@lﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬂ (Fis LT AF])

Z R > BIE A DRI e AR -



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HE - BB ARREHEZE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shao Jiulin, aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Shao is a graduate of Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. Mr.
Shao is a senior accountant, certified accountant and certified
tax agent in the PRC. He was the head of the finance division
and chief accountant of Wuhan Light Industry Fire Retardant
Materials Manufacturing Company, general manager of Hubei
Daxin CPA Co., Ltd. and independent director of Weifang Beida
Jade Bird Huaguang Technology Co., Ltd. (an A share listed
company in the PRC) and SINOPEC Wuhan Petroleum Group Co.,
Ltd.. He is currently the vice president of China Qinlu Industrial
Development Co., Ltd..

Mr. Li Juncai, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Li was graduated from the Geology Department of
Peking University in July 1983. Mr. Li is a member of the China
Democratic League. He is a senior engineer of geological and
mineral resources, certified appraiser of mining concession and
certified valuer of real estate. He was an assistant to the head of
the Fourth Geological Survey Department under the Jilin Bureau
of Geology, deputy general manager of Tonghua Dongbao Import
& Export Co., Ltd., general manager of Tonghua Asia Shopping
Centre under the Fourth Geological Survey Department under
the Jilin Bureau of Geology, manager of the mining concession
appraisal division of Jilin Dadi CPA Co., Ltd., and the deputy
general manager and principal mining concession appraiser of
Wuhan Tiandiyuan Consultant and Appraisal Ltd.. He is currently
the chairman of Heilongjiang Province Huan Cheng Mineral

Resources Appraisal and Consultant Ltd..

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co., Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory

department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Shen Wei, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 May 2018, Mr. Shen was graduated
from the department of precision instruments of the Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1985.
Mr. Shen co-founded “CIWEEK” and served as the first chief
editor in 1998, who has made contribution to the enlightenment
and development of internet in the PRC. He then co-founded
the website, namely “eNet” and Yinhe Liandong Information
Technology Company, and has extensive experience in internet
strategy, products and operations. Mr. Shen has dozens of patented
inventions in the field of two-dimensional code technology. In
2015, Mr. Shen established Beijing Dama Technology Co., Ltd.
to focus on the application of innovative QR code technology,
especially the basic technology and application in the field of
secure QR code and multi-screen interaction. Mr. Shen has worked
for Beijing Institute of Optoelectronics Technology, Beijing
office of East Asiatic Company, Beijing Changwei Technology
Development Co., Ltd., CIWEEKLY, Yinhe Liandong Information
Technology Company, Beijing Huayu Xinma Technology Co., Ltd.,
etc.. He is currently the founder and chief executive officer of

Beijing Dama Technology Co., Ltd..

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 85, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing

International Corporation.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 61, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. Mr. Fan was graduated from Zhejiang University with a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr. Fan worked in
the liaison office of the people’s government of Zhejiang Province,
Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and Zhejiang Qujiang Industrial
Company. He is currently a member of the management committee
of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou, president of Hangzhou Branch of
the School of Chinese Culture and an executive president of Beida
Jade Bird.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing
Pastry Factory, the Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing, the
Audiovisual Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the
Beijing Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of
“K¥gJF7[E”, a TV series, and the column director and producer of
“HIEAR K, a TV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the chairman
and the general manager of Beijing Evercare Shichiku Medical

Beauty Clinic Company Limited.

Mr. Pan Yudong, aged 49, was appointed as a Supervisor on 31
May 2018, Mr. Pan is a senior engineer (professor level), and was
graduated from department of computer science and technology of
Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in July
1990. He has worked for Taiji Computer Company, Shenzhen Taiji
Software Company, Taiji-DEC Software Center, Beijing Tiankeyi
Technology Co., Ltd., Taiji United Laboratories of Ministry of
Information Industry, Beijing Hengdefang Company, Anshi
Internet Security (China) Co., Ltd., Beijing Qiming Xingchen
Information Security Technology Co., Ltd., etc.. Mr. Pan is
currently the senior vice president and chief strategy officer of
Beijing Yongxin Zhicheng Technology Co., Ltd., and the executive

Director of China Computer Federation.

Ms. Dong Xiaoqing, aged 49, was appointed as a Supervisor on
31 May 2018, Ms. Dong is a senior human resource professional
and joined Beida Jade Bird in March 1999 who was responsible
for human resources management. Ms. Dong was transferred to
the Company as the head of human resources in June 2000. She
has 19 years of experience in human resources management for
information technology companies, and is familiar with national
labor laws and regulations and human resource management

theory with practical experience.

Ms. Zhou Min, aged 43, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou was graduated
from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University of
International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou joined
Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined the Company
in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for administration
and human resources of the Company. She is the employee

representative of the Supervisory Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 43, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 21
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 42, attended master post-graduation level.
Mr. Wang has worked in Beida Jade Bird. He is currently a director
of Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited,
the managing director of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd., an executive director and the general
manager of Beijing Jade Bird Dingsheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd., a director of Enraytek Optoelectronics, a director of
Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., a director of Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment
Co., Ltd., an executive director and general manager of Ningbo
Jade Bird Liyuantai Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd, and the
chairman of the supervisory committee of Shengyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong). Mr.
Wang joined the Company in March 2000 and is the secretary to

the Board and the chairman of the labor union of the Company.

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 52, attended post-graduation level. Mr. Hu is
a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior accountant,
the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate of Certified
Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in Beijing
Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building Materials
Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and the finance
director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd. as the finance
manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power Engineering Co.,
Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the finance manager. Mr.
Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is the person in charge of

finance department of the Company.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
=

The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of embedded
system products and related products during the year. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of business review of these activities, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 8 to 19 of this annual report. Such discussion forms part

of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set

out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 103.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 104
to 105 and note 35(a) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2017: Nil) for the year.

No interim dividend was declared in 2018 (2017: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 5. This summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in

note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the Company Law
of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro

rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, an amount of approximately RMB562.5
million (2017: RMB562.5 million) standing to the credit of
the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount of
approximately RMB76.8 million (2017: RMB76.8 million)
standing to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation issue
in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company had, as
described in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
retained profits of approximately RMB36.9 million (2017: RMB49.8
million) as at 31 December 2018. Details of the distributable
reserves are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
38.0% (2017: 36.6%) of the total purchases for the year while the
largest supplier accounted for 13.7% (2017: 16.0%) of the total

purchases for the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (CONTINUED)

The Group has sold certain products to related companies
controlled by Peking University. Details of transactions are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as
aforesaid, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DONATIONS

The Group had made donations of RMB540,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB972,000).

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ni Jinlei (re-designated from non-executive Director
on 31 May 2018)

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong

Ms. Zheng Zhong

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xue Li

Mr. Xiang Lei

Mr. Ip Wing Wai (re-designated from executive Director
on 31 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shao Jiulin

Mr. Li Juncai

Mr. Li Chonghua

Mr. Shen Wei (appointed on 31 May 2018)
Mr. Lin Yan (retired on 31 May 2018)

Supervisors

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi

Mr. Pan Yudong (appointed on 31 May 2018)
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing (appointed on 31 May 2018)
Ms. Zhou Min

Professor Yang Jinguan (retired on 31 May 2018)
Mr. Lu Qingfeng (retired on 31 May 2018)

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and
Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

Mr. Lin Yan retired on 31 May 2018 as independent non-executive
Director; and Professor Yang Jinguan and Mr. Lu Qingfeng retired
on 31 May 2018 as Supervisors. Each of Mr. Lin Yan, Professor
Yang Jinguan and Mr. Lu Qingfeng has confirmed that he has
no disagreement with the Board and that he is not aware of any
matters in relation to his retirement that need to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 20 to 26.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 31 May 2018.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2018, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor of
the company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the

controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF FE - BEHEREEITHRANER B K
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT FHBE Oy 2 HE 25 IR B

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests (including interests in shares W oE—/NF+_H=+—H  #EF  EFf
and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief executives AN B e m AT BN B A N w5 Bl R g vk
of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the B (o 26 LW 5 RO & 0B (76 35 2o &
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning B 1) SEXVIR) Z Bt B AR B B £ o - B AR
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), T3 78 5 M B G191 26 3 5 2468 e B A AR 8 ) B

as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant i SR IEGEM L i B RIS 5. 46k 2 HE £ (G145
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company TSR 28 BOR A ) W R

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing

Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the A2\ 3 3 5 S A B B A =2 A A

Company
Number of ordinary shares
TR YH
Approximate
percentage of  Approximate
the Company’s  percentage of ~ Approximate
total number  the Company’s  percentage of
Interests in ofissued  total number the Company’s
promoters promoters of issued total issued
Shares Shares HShares  share capital
(Note) Interests in fiARH fiAAH fliAAw
RERN H Shares C#ITHRA g ot
Name Capacity it < e i 33124 Total Tt 4 HRAEY A s
%2 & (Wit) B i B BEEAL O BREAK BAEAR
Director
¥
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong Beneficial owner and 205,414,000 - 205,414,000 929.34% - 14.90%
3 Libiea beneficiary of trust
L6 E 2 VNAEER S IN
Supervisor
E¥
Ms. Zhou Min Beneficiary of trust 205,414,000 - 205,414,000 29.34% = 14.90%
Flght fFrEZaA

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)
Note:

The above Director and Supervisor are taken to be interested in the
issued share capital of the Company through their respective interests as
beneficiaries, among other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng Huat
Trust”). By a declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on 19 July
2000, Mr. Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and Ms. Liu Yue (who has
been replaced by Mr. Xu Zhixiang since 9 May 2003 as a trustee) declared
that they held the shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (“Heng Huat”)
as trustees for the benefits of over 300 employees of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Software System Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird Software”), Beida Jade Bird and
Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering Co., Ltd. and
their respective subsidiaries and associated companies and the Company.
Heng Huat is beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic Win”), and is taken to be interested
in 205,414,000 shares of the Company which Dynamic Win is interested. Mr.
Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and Mr. Xu Zhixiang (who replaced
Ms. Liu Yue as a trustee on 9 May 2003 upon Ms. Liu Yue’s resignation as
a trustee on the same date) are trustees holding 60, 20 and 20 shares out
of 100 shares in the issued share capital of Heng Huat. Each of Mr. Xu
Zhendong and Mr. Xu Zhixiang was former Director who resigned on 5 May
2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any Director
and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and Supervisors

to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the following interests and short positions
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

2 BB 5 B A N e P A B A BRI
i 2 B 2 S IR A

W oE-METF A= H o BEEE R
BB B 5 336 KL 8 AN B A7 B 2 RE 46 5
O o FEER R AIARA F BT AR 2 M A
BURA

A% o ) U 8 Fe B R B e A 2 B AT

Company

Approximate
percentage of
the Company's

total number

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

Number of of issued total issued
promoters  promoters Shares share capital
Shares held  fiA A 7 C#AT Pl 2w 2
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity RHERA  HEARGAY CH#fTRA
BRAH Wit B Bty 8 A LEERLA BRI
Peking University (a)  Through controlled corporations 200,000,000 28.57% 14.50%
rRE BRI )
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a)  Through controlled corporations 200,000,000 28.57% 14.50%
IREEEBARAF BRZ R 7
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software (a)  Through controlled corporations 200,000,000 28.57% 14.50%
System Co., Ltd. BERZHEH AT
HHIKFE BB RAARA A
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited (a)  Directly beneficially owned 115,000,000 16.43% 8.34%
EFIRERARELAHA HEE A
Beida Microelectronics Investment (a)  Interest through controlled corporations 85,000,000 12.14% 6.16%
Limited BRZHEH A2 M
EABMETREHRAT
Sanya Jade Bird Youfu Jidi (a)  Interest through a controlled corporation 85,000,000 12.14% 6.16%

Construction Service Co., Ltd

=0 E R R SR AR AR

BT LRI~ R 2t

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

2 B B B A N 7 T o e AH B
iy 2 W2 S AT (4)

A 2 5 38 Je B H BRI P A 2 4 A (48D

Approximate
percentage of
the Company's

total number

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

Number of of issued total issued
promoters  promoters Shares share capital
Sharesheld  fhiAA W #1T iAo w2
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity FHEWEAN  BHRARM A ST
B 1 Wit S By 8 H BEAE 2 LEEELA
Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang Sci-Tech (a)  Directly beneficially owned 85,000,000 12.14% 6.16%
Development Co., Ltd HUEEGEE
BOFREERNERARAA
Grand East (H.K.) Limited Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 15.71% 7.98%
TREL (B i) A HEEEHA
Heng Huat Investments Limited (b)  Through a controlled corporation 205,414,000 29.34% 14.90%
BB KT A
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (b)  Directly beneficially owned 205,414,000 29.34% 14.90%
HBEEARAA EEE A
Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited (c)  Through a controlled corporation 84,586,000 12.08% 6.13%
K AERARAA BB~ RZER AT
New View Venture Limited (c)  Directly beneficially owned 84,586,000 12.08% 6.13%
HEHRHA
Asian Technology Investment Company Directly beneficially owned 50,000,000 7.14% 3.63%

Limited

S B B A R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

Peking University is taken to be interested in 14.50% of the
total issued share capital of the Company through the following
companies:

(1)

(ii)

115 million promoters Shares (representing approximately
8.34% of the Company’s total issued share capital) held by
Beida Jade Bird, which is 46% beneficially owned by Jade Bird
Software. Jade Bird Software is 48% beneficially owned by
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary
of Peking University; and

85 million promoters Shares (representing approximately
6.16% of the Company’s total issued share capital) in which
Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang Sci-Tech Development Co., Ltd.
(“Haikou Jade Bird”) is interested. Jade Bird Software owns
100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment
Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Sanya Jade
Bird Youfu Jidi Construction Service Co., Ltd which in turn
owns 100% equity interest in Haikou Jade Bird;

The promoters Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is beneficially
wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to the section
“Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above for further details of
Heng Huat.

The promoters Shares are held by New View Venture Limited, which
is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and

Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,

Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in

shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or

short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2018.

3 S SR B A N R B i B AH B e
iy 2 W2 S AT (4)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the related party

transactions as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules, which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval

requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and Supervisors and
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had interests in a business which competes or may compete with
the businesses of the Group, or may have any conflicts of interest

with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are

contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and

contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in

note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of financial
assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated companies,
including (i) shareholder’s loan provided to an affiliated company;
and (ii) guarantees provided by the Group in relation to bank
facilities of its affiliated companies is RMB536,400,000 in total,
which exceeds 8% in the asset ratio as defined under rule 19.07(1)
of the GEM Listing Rules. Details on the financial assistance and

guarantee as at 31 December 2018 are set out below:

% GEM b i B ) 58 17.24 {66 1) % 8%
& Bl

WoE - EF A= B ARG
T WA AR BB E B > A () 1R BT
B El 2 B EK s M (i) AN SE 1) 5 I N
RZBITMERERZIERGLESEA N
[ 536,400,000 7G - 3 GEM I i1 K I 55
19.07(V) BT R EMERE LR Z8% - it &
— A+ A=+ MG RIER
FERBIR

Aggregate
Amount of
Financial

Assistance and

Guarantee

S5 % Yy

Name of Affiliated Company B 1R S5

i I 2+ il 4 >
Changsha Songya Lake Construction Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Songya Lake Construction”) 346,400
RUHHE W] BB E A PR A ([H eI s ) (note 1) (RE1)
Chuangqi (Hunan) Enterprise Development Co., Ltd

(“Chuangi Enterprise”) 190,000
lar (BIm) BB A R A A ([P E ) (note 2) (RE2)

536,400

Notes:

1. The amount includes (i) a guarantee of RMB200,000,000 to Bank A
and Bank B by the Company; (ii) a guarantee of RMB113,000,000
to Bank C by Chuanqi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi
Tourism”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company;
and (iii) an interest-free and unsecured shareholder’s loan of
RMB33,400,000 from Chuanqi Tourism to Songya Lake Construction.
The total amount of the facilities from Bank A and Bank B to
Songya Lake Construction is RMB786,000,000 and the total amount
of the facilities from Bank C to Songya Lake Construction is
RMB800,000,000.

2. The amount includes a guarantee of RMB190,000,000 to a bank by
Chuanqi Tourism. The total amount of the facilities from the bank to
Chuangqi Enterprise is RMB190,000,000.

1. HAPadE o ) AR F I ERITH K RAT Z 4R
N AT TTIEM 5 (i) A Al IE &M E A
A AT i e 4% A PR ) ([ 34 it 1) ) 4R
TR N B 113 oeIE 4 5 I (iii) A7
it A 1w A7 o ) R AR AR 0 N RS 3,840 T
B AR FE S S AR I R - SRATH MERTT 2
AT A e T A0 A AR B N R 7 861
IG5 T ERAT PR A T A A S T R A R AR
UNGY T
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES (CONTINUED)

The audited combined statement of financial position of the above
affiliated companies and the Group’s attributable interests in
the above affiliated companies based on its audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in the PRC, adjusted for any differences in accounting

policies, are presented below:

3% GEM F i B 1 58 17.24 1 ) 3% 5
&R (4)

Wyg Lh e A R E F— /ET A
S H R AR 2 SR R S I (R
o I 2 R IR R AR B o Sl e Bt O
AR ) > bl A W) 2 R A P
TR L 3 T A 4 [ B A b ot W O S ) 2 M 2
SBEWE

Combined Group’s

statement of attributable

financial position interests

5 OF B B IR DL % 7 445 ] W A R i

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥ T8 NS T

Assets B 3,659,371 1,030,524

Liabilities i (3,275,551) (919,863)

Net assets FEE 383,820 110,661
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 32 01 4% S 0E

There were no significant events after reporting period of the

Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the policy on payment of dividends adopted by the Company,
the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders
to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The payment
of any dividend shall be determined or recommended, as appropriate,
by the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account the
Group’s financial results, prospects, the level of the debts and equity
ratio, liquidity and capital requirement and other factors that the Board
considers relevant, and subject to the Articles, the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages 42

to 56 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Environmental, social and governance report of the Company is set

out on pages 57 to 92 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors or an associate company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’, Supervisors’ and
senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management arising out of

corporate activities.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

RSM Nelson Wheeler was appointed as independent auditor
of the Company upon the retirement of Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited in 2015. On 26 October 2015, our auditor changed
the English name under its practices to RSM Hong Kong On 22
November 2018, our auditor changed the Chinese name under
its practices to #H EEFHHIFH BT and accordingly has signed its

report under its new name.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
20 March 2019
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To the Shareholders:

We have monitored the operation and management of the Group
as well as the act of the Directors and senior management faithfully
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018. We have discharged
our supervisory duties under the general principle of honesty and
integrity and have strictly complied with the requirements of the
“Company Law of the PRC”, GEM Listing Rules and the Articles.
We are accountable to the Shareholders and have safeguarded the

interests of the Shareholders, the Group and its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi

Mr. Pan Yudong (appointed on 31 May 2018)
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing (appointed on 31 May 2018)
Ms. Zhou Min

Professor Yang Jinguan (retired on 31 May 2018)
Mr. Lu Qingfeng (retired on 31 May 2018)

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors

are eligible for re-election.

Professor Yang Jinguan and Mr. Lu Qingfeng retired on 31 May
2018 as Supervisors. Each of Professor Yang Jinguan and Mr. Lu
Qingfeng has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the
Board and that he is not aware of any matters in relation to
his retirement that need to be brought to the attention of the

shareholders of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, we have held 2 meetings
of the sixth session and 3 meetings of the seventh session. The

following table set out the attendance of each member in these

AL

BE-Z—/F+_H=FT—HIFE &
ERgr B EREAREmEE LA D
T o 5 B S A S 2 R o AN B R
5 IR R B AT B Sk > I B s 28 <7 [ Bl A
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N
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JEl g

MBI Of —F—/\FLA =+—HEE)
BEYEAE (R T NFELA=+—HET)

MR AR A MRS - P A B 4T & EAR
B -

Yo e BB L BB AER =% — R H
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S AN 25 A Ao B HC AR AT A R T £ R AR )
R T SEH

BWE-F-NFE+_A=Z+—HILFEE 5
ANEEEGRTTHREELE e EEE
BATT ZWCEE o R RIS LA R

meetings: FERZEN
Attendance
Name ¥ iy
Sixth Session Seventh Session
AT R
Mr. Fan Yimin Ww—RSEA 2/2 3/3
Professor Yang Jinguan (R R Cid 2/2 N/AAE ]
Mr. Ouyang Zishi Bk 5 Sk 2/2 3/3
Mr. Lu Qingfeng B 1/2 N/AARE
Ms. Zhou Min Jf e+ 2/2 3/3
Mr. Pan Yudong i T AR N/AAE 3/3
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing HIEE Lt N/ AR ] 3/3
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

B a s

We convened the five meetings to review the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
three months ended 31 March 2018, the six months ended 30 June
2018 and the nine months ended 31 September 2018, respectively,
and to review the composition of the new session of the Supervisory

Committee.

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the fourth meeting of the
seventh session to review the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express

our independent opinion in respect of the following matters:

1.  The first, second and third quarterly results and annual
results of the Group for 2018 have reflected the financial and

operating positions of the Group on a true and fair basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their
authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders, the
Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and regulations

and the Articles in discharging its duties.

3. The Group was not threatened with any major litigation
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or

threatened against the Board.

4.  The connected transactions of the Group were fair and
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group has

been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to

our work during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Fan Yimin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
20 March 2019
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FRAMEWORK

The Company developed a set of documents with reference to
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to govern its corporate
practice.

The documents are as follows:

1.  Code on the Corporate Governance;

2. Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors of

the Company (the “Securities Code”);
3. Duties of the Board of Directors;

4. Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the

President;
5. Board Diversity Policy;

6.  Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

7. Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;
8. Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee;
9. Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee; and

10.  Written Guidelines for Relevant Employees in respect of their

Dealings in the Securities of the Company.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply with

the Securities Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities
The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail responsibilities

of the Board are laid down on the Articles. Major duties include:

1.  convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the
Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;
3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;
4. formulation plans for change in registered capital and

issuance of bond;

5. formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and

disposal plan;

6.  formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the

Company if necessary;

7.  employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8. formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements; etc.

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the
purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They may
seek independent professional advice if necessary at the Company’s
cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the company

secretary and senior management of the Company.

The Board delegated the management team with the responsibilities
for the day-to-day management, administration and operation of the

Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) HHEG(H)
Composition B AL
As at 31 December 2018, the composition of the seventh session of W_E—-NE+_HA=+—H > FBLEEH
the Board is as follows: GgZRAEHEWT

Date of first Date of latest
Name Position Gender Age appointment re-election
% Sy i £a 4 HREZEHH RIEEEH
Ni Jinlei Executive Director, Chairman M# 51 30/6/2015 31/5/2018
e & WTESR - LF
Zhang Wanzhong Executive Director, President M% 57 16/3/2000 31/5/2018
s e WATES -
Zheng Zhong Executive Director F& 43 21/6/2012 31/5/2018
W HITHEH
Xue Li Non-executive Director F4 60 20/5/2009 31/5/2018
e B FHATE S
Xiang Lei Non-executive Director M#% 67 31/7/2017 31/5/2018
A& FUATESR
Ip Wing Wai Non-executive Director M# 40 30/6/2015 31/5/2018
KB FUATESR
Shao Jiulin Independent non-executive Director M 56 21/6/2012 31/5/2018
AR SUBK B AT E
Li Juncai Independent non-executive Director M5 57 21/6/2012 31/5/2018
ZRA B ATE S
Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M# 63 30/6/2015 31/5/2018
2 B iTE S
Shen Wei Independent non-executive Director M3 56 31/5/2018 N/AA#H
WAt B AT

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other e B BAE 2 AT ] B~ SEES -
material/relevant relationship with each other. TR s A KM B B AR

Profiles of the Directors are detailed on pages 20 to 24 of this R R R AR 20 L 224 o

annual report.
All Directors were appointed for a term of three years starting from A ERE AWM AL T — NFHH

31 May 2018. All Directors are eligible for re-election. ST —HEBFEF AMERYGERER
AT o
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Composition (Continued)

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
expertise. Each independent non-executive Director has confirmed
to the Company in respect of his independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an annual confirmation
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Company continues
to consider all independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

Segregation of duties between the Chairman and the President

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. To ensure a balance of power
and authority, the roles of the chairman and the president of the
Company are segregated and performed by Mr. Ni Jinlei and Mr.
Zhang Wanzhong respectively.

Board meetings

The Board convened 7 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2018 quarterly and 2017 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider
and approve ordinary businesses of the Company. The Company
notifies the Directors with sufficient time in advance and provides
them with detailed agenda and sufficient information before each
Board meeting and sub-committee meeting. The Company gives at
least 15 days advance notice before each regular Board meeting.
Individual attendance records of each Director at the respective
Board and sub-committee meetings are set out in the table on

pages 49 to 50 of this annual report.

Directors’ and senior officers’ liability insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from

their jobs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ training

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to
duties of directors and role and function of board committees, and

environmental, social and governance report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the

Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as set out
in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is accountable
to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring the financial
reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, reviewing financial information, and advising
the Board on engagement and independence of independent

auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin, Mr. Li Juncai, Mr. Li
Chonghua and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Shao Jiulin is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee had convened 4 meetings to
review the three 2018 quarterly results and 2017 annual results of

the Group and issues in respect of annual audits for 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible for advising
the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself and senior
management, advising the Board on remuneration of non-
executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management, and review and

approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin
and Mr. Li Juncai and one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhang Wanzhong. Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. A meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held during the year to review the remuneration
package of the Board, the Supervisors and the senior management

of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) and making recommendations to the Board after
such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for the

Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board has adopted a policy concerning the diversification of
members of the Board. In setting the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the diversification of members of the
Board from various aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments to the Board
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversified categories, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in
various aspects including professional competence, knowledge and
experience. The Nomination Committee considered the current
structure, size and composition of the Board could meet the

business development needs of the Group.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures of a Director.
In selecting and recommending candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character
and integrity, qualifications, professional competence, knowledge,
experience, independence, other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the business development needs of the Group, and the
elements of the policy concerning the diversification of member of the
Board. The nomination procedures of a Director include nomination of
suitable candidates by any member of the Nomination Committee or the
Board; evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all selection
criteria as set out in the nomination policy; assessing the candidate’s
independence under the GEM Listing Rules in case of nomination of an
independent non-executive Director; making recommendation for the
Board’s consideration and approval; and convening a general meeting by

the Board to obtain approval from the Shareholders.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin,
Mr. Li Juncai and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. One meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held during the year to review the structure
and composition of new session of the Board and the senior
management of the Group, and recommend the same to the Board

for approval.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT

MEETINGS

Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub-

committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year

ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

BN Al B

REE - F - NE+_H=+—HILEE -
EFERNTEFGMPDAZTEGULBRERE
2N FIEAnE

Attendance
R %
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
Name %4 HHE wREAE HMER G REZHE T YN
Sixth Sixth Fifth Second
Session Session Session Session
FA CAyT HHE B
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong R 3/3 N/AARE 1/1 1/1 Nilf
Ms. Zheng Zhong Wt 3/3  N/ARNEH N/ARE N/ARER Nilf
Mr. Ip Wing Wai BRBSEE 3/3  N/ANEM  N/ARER  N/ARNER Nil #
Non-executive Directors FHITEH
Mr. Ni Jinlei A 3/8  N/ARER  N/ARER 1/1 Nil 4
Ms. Xue Li i3 3. 3/3  N/AREM  N/ARER  N/AREH Nil
Mr. Xiang Lei TE A 3/3  N/ARNEA N/ARER N/ARER Nilf
Independent non-executive Directors B FEHTEF
Mr. Li Juncai FRAFE 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1 Nl
Mr. Shao Jiulin BRUMSEE 3/3 2/2  N/AREH 1/1 Nil #
Mr. Lin Yan S ey s 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1 Nilfi
Mr. Li Chonghua BRERE 3/3 2/2  N/ANE N/ARER Nilf

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT ERHBEa®RLE ()
MEETINGS (CONTINUED)

Attendance
%
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
Name #4 HHE wREAE HMER G REZHE T YN
Seventh Seventh Sixth Third
Session Session Session Session
HLE BLE CAT B8
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Ni Jinlei iy 4/4  N/ANER N/ARE Nild 2/2
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong G2 bt 3/3 N/AREH Nil Nilf 1/2
Ms. Zheng Zhong Wt 3/3  N/ARE N/ANE N/ARE 172
Non-executive Directors FHITEH
Ms. Xue Li 37 5! 4/4  N/ARER  N/ARER N/ARER 1/2
Mr. Xiang Lei HELE 4/4 N/AREH N/AREH N/AANEH 0/2
Mr. Ip Wing Wai BB 4/4  N/ARER  N/ARER  N/ARER 1/2
Independent WK TEE
non-executive Direclors
Mr. Li Juncai FRA S 4/4 2/2 Nilf Nil 1/2
Mr. Shao Jiulin AR fUbkSE A 4/4 2/2 NilflE Nilfik 1/2
Mr. Li Chonghua A 4/4 2/2 N/ARH N/ARE 1/2
Mr. Shen Wei AR 4/4 2/2  N/AREH NilfE 1/2

There is one special general meetings held during the year ended BE - F— )\FE+ H=1+—HILFEFEST
31 December 2018 to approve the proposed issue of corporate T — KRR R RS s DIt E R SRS AN
bonds of the Company. R AR SR o
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible
for monitoring the operation and management of the Company as
well as the act of Directors and senior management to prevent any
abuse of power and infringement of interests on Shareholders, the

Company and employees.

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members.
The chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are Mr.
Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Pan Yudong, Ms. Dong Xiaoqing and Ms. Zhou

Min. Ms. Zhou Min is the employee representative.

All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting
from 31 May 2018. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election.
Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 24 to 25 of this

annual report.

Attendance of meetings

The Supervisory Committee convened 5 meetings during the year.

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in

these meetings:

Eda

R MERMA S HmBERAR -
EFEFRAREREAQRAZEENEHT
EURERRSREMANR 2475 > MBI
HHE AR ALBOR ~ AN W) T B i i o

EFEEHAm AR EANR > ERATE R
Jerk o HERIM AR B BB 7 AL BT
WHEE ~ HBETE L R ARt - At
R Bk -

A EFEZZAENYE —F - AFHA
=t —HEGF A =E  TAREHEYEE
%R -

BB R RN W AR 4 H B 25 H o

H R €7k
EHERERE IR -

RSB E BRI

Attendance

Name W4 s R
Sixth Session Seventh Session
VAT SL)E
Mr. Fan Yimin Rk 2/2 3/3
Professor Yang Jinguan [CER 2o Ere 2/2 N/AREH]
Ms. Zhou Min JE 2+ 2/2 3/3
Mr. Ouyang Zishi N B s 2/2 3/3
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BEYRE 1/2 N/ARTE
Mr. Pan Yudong HFERIEE N/ AR 3/3
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing HIEE Ltk N/ A 3/3

The meetings were convened to review the financial statements
of the Group and review the composition of new session of the

Supervisory Committee.

A B ek 9 5 R 2 2 B AR 4R 2 S Rk
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a

going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are

set out in the independent auditor’s report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, senior management of
the Company comprises 3 individuals. The senior management’s
remuneration payment of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2018 falls within the following bands:

HERFR

ERMER R HARMRRANFRE < R
T—/NELZH=+—H > SEFHHA > H
AT ] B R R B B PR R B A AT RE B AR R
R B Z RIENEREE -

AN R 8 S A T R A8 4 S A [ B B R
P FAT BRI > O S8 ST AZ BT A A

TR A PE v T T

R#EE T EF+ A=+ —HIEEE
ANAEBEHBAE =24 AL - REE
FZ—/E+A=+—HBIEE > AAFR
B LG 2 I AS B A DA i

Number of

Individuals
N

Below RMB500,000 L AR ¥E500,00070
RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000 ANE#500,0000C E AR #1,000,0007C 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The remuneration paid/payable to RSM, the Company’s

independent auditor, and its member firm in respect of annual
audit services and non-audit services in relation to agreed-upon
procedures and tax consultancy service amounted to approximately
RMB1,310,000 and RMB119,000 respectively for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They include:

i right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit distribution;
o right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy;
o right to supervise and manage the business activities of the

Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries;

. right to transfer shareholding in the Company;

. upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and copy:

—  register of shareholders;

—  certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors,
general manager and/or deputy general managers and

senior management members;

—  certain information on repurchase of Shares; and

— minutes of shareholders’ meeting

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the

following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 6th Floor, Bank of China Building, 2A
Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Jie AR
FEREAN 5 WA SR R 2 HEA] > o L

43 IR B S B H A 20 2 s A 4 IR 2 R
s

o B EFEIRICR MR G R A

o BB HIAL R ER AR HUHAR R A K
fR 1 MR

W

o HHERA/EIBHE L HEA

o TEfMHEHBMRE > AR KK TIIX
F 2 HER -

— R
— - B HAEE R EN I ARG
FRDA K = # S g N B 2 45 TR A
BRE
—  MEmBSZHETER S K
—  BHREEZeELOK
B bt E A > R IRHEERS DU FRRE -
JI% PR AT B IR 1) 2 e PR R A B A
R A i N 3 5 N NN ) i o

SEHLIEG > Mot 2 7 o b BR B P 2A 8 P
AT RIE6HE -

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR

53



54

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e oL

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Right to convene meeting

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution(s) to
be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting within
30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders who give
the requests are entitled to convene the proposed general meeting
themselves 4 months after the Board received their requests at the

Company’s expense.

Right to sue

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and senior
management members. A Shareholder can also take legal action
against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted through

court or arbitration authority.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system for the Group,
which covers four main areas namely financial management,
operation, compliance and reporting, and risk management. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Financial management

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary
is responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement

subject to the supervision of the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Operation

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental

destruction incidents occurred during the year.

Compliance and reporting

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company to
monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the
Group. With the assistance of company secretary and financial
controller of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out its
duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws, rules

and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and

reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.

During the year, the Company published announcements and
notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of inside
information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material transaction
especially connected transaction proposed by either the subsidiary
or the Company itself must first be assessed by the compliance
officer of the Company to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The Company
seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as the Stock
Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of conduct to

govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant employees.

The Directors often update themselves about changes in applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of the
Company also update any such change to the Board and the listing

supervision division of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Risk management

The risk management function focuses on market unpredictability

and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the

Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope
of review was previously determined and approved by the Board.
The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board is of the
view that there are no material internal control defeats noted.
All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that
the risk management and internal control systems are effective and

adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings

and other general meetings.

There was no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Jo i A P e A 4 ()

Jo P A L
JR\ i A R ) T 2 ) A R S B DL TE O T
SL - BAEMIETEA AR B 2 B -

AR ) 37 48 ST TR R A A 1 o SR A A B
AR ~ PR R S5 9 HE A L By I
SN EAE AL AL R R AL o R
FREEFEMNT EEA AL R
7 et R m A -

RGO RN 2 SN E B B KA, R AR
BB M (TR ) - DIAtERE —F — 4
A = Bk A R G B B R A
BERBUEIT A o A B R AEELT
HEERGHECEWIREEFERT - EFg
O E LAt iR R - Mo mFEEE AR
B A T M R B4 R AT AF B0 9
U e EHEEE A > H W AR B 1 P I R
BUE R UR R o A4 [0 € 22 400 B4 ot 1 422 1
BT Ak o Tl PR A B R R B AE 5 BRI [H]
TAT o It - 3 S0 0 A Ja B 2 I o o B A
RBATZHMBTER

P& Bl 1R
RGO R O  EEE  UHE R
B R AR R HA B ROR

BE_E-NF+-A=Z+—HILFE K
AT BRI T -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - A R

ABOUT THE REPORT

This Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”) report (the
“Report”) demonstrates Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries’ (the “Group” or “We”) approach and performance
in terms of sustainable development for the financial year ended
on 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”). The Group believes that a
sustainable, resilient and reliable stewardship and development is
essential to the Group’s long-term success. Details of the Group’s
management approach in both environmental and social aspects

can be found throughout this Report.

This Report covers the environmental and social performance
within defined operational boundaries of the Group that includes
the Group’s operation in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The reporting period is the Group’s financial
year dating from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. This Report
is prepared in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This Report covers the environmental and social performance
within the operational boundaries of the Group that includes
the Group’s office in Hong Kong, the manufacturing and sale
of electronic fire equipment business in the PRC, the tourism
development business in the PRC, the investment business in the

PRC, and the winery business in the United States.

The information in this Report was gathered through numerous
channels, including official documents and statistics of the Group,
the integrated information of supervision, management and
operation in accordance with the relevant policy, the internal
quantitative and qualitative questionnaires based on the reporting
framework, and sustainability practices provided by the subsidiaries

of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Group has developed its internal strategies and policies
with aims to create sustainable values to its stakeholders, thereby
to large extent minimising the Group’s undue impact on the
environment. In order to carry out the Group’s sustainability
strategy from top to bottom, the board of directors (“Board”)
of the Company has ultimate responsibilities for ensuring the

effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies.

The Group has established dedicated teams to manage ESG issues
within each business division of the Group and kept monitoring
and overseeing the progress against corporate goals and targets
for addressing climate change. Dedicated teams with designated
staff for management of ESG issues has been assigned to enforce

and supervise the implementation of the relevant ESG policies

cascading through the Group.
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The financial controller and the secretary to the Board are
responsible to manage the corporate sustainable development and
ESG related issues of the Group and go through annual review of
the performance of Corporate Governance and ESG and report

directly to the Board.

The Group has developed its sustainability strategy with aims
to continue to lower the Group’s impact on the environment.
The Group is committed to constantly reviewing and adjusting
its sustainability policies to satisfy the ever-changing needs of its

stakeholders.

Stakeholder Engagement

With the goal to strengthen its sustainability approach and
performance, the Group has put tremendous efforts into listening
to both its internal and external stakeholders. The Group highly
values the feedback from its stakeholders and takes initiative to
build a trustful and supportive relationship with them through

their preferred communication channels listed in the table below.

AT R (4

B 4 B R A AR T
PR KRR BBR T AL BT IR B
4 S IR SRR - AR A I R BUE
TTARE AR - L 0 3 o A

A L BT R AR 0 R AR A
MG A1 T 60 T B 0 B2 o A AR A
B B BT RO o B4 B B R B
SLITR -

LRVEE 2

b 2 BN o8 AT A A R O AN BN B AR
AR B B B BE AN TR B R E A
AEEHEEHLFRENER  BRTE
Fv 510 A8 A6 o v ) 2L AR 9 0 TR A T ) - B
B4 S AR T B BRAR o

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR

59



60

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B - dhE RO

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) W R A ()
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued) it #5281 (4)

COMMUNICATION WITH SM%'S

it gE

Government and Shareholders Employees
regulatory BBE 8T
auth g{lt 1es Expectations and concerns Expectations and concerns
MR ERE EE HEB AR AR
Expectatibnsant tantems -Ret‘urn on investments; -Employees' compensation and benefits;
HALEANREL] - BE MR - B THBEFIR =
a : -Corporate governance; -Career development;
-Compliance with laws and Ay
regulations; - BREA - R
_tEam ' -Business compliance. -Health and safety in the working
1 =] a . .
-Sustainable development - RBER egiLonieat;
g Communication Channels - BEFZ2MTFRIE
- PSR o~ XX h |
Communication Channels oI o f:o‘m-‘rnfmmat\on Channels
s -Regular reports and BBRE _
-Supervision on compliance with announime]rlti -Performailce bbb
Iogl.lafvgfgﬁ;;%;;;tj;;;ﬁ,_ﬁ -Igg%uffrzjg;: meetings; -Rge-g-!—al:'??ri:ﬁngs and trainings;
SRR L - g#AsEs
p ) -Official company website. -Team building and ad hoc activities
L IPees - AEIETR - BSRARAEE)
P i -Emails, notice boards, hotline, and
employee engagement activities.
-EH., EER. MERET
SILEE
Customers Suppliers General public
% P& VAE
Expectations and concerns Expectations and concerns Expectations and concerns
HAEEFORAL HAZEFNRALN EAZEFRELD
-High quality products and services; -Fair and open procurement; -Involvement in communities;
- ERENERIRTE - DFARNRE -2mHE
-Protection of the rights of -Win-win cooperation. -Business compliance;
customers. -HREE -EIEER
- REEPIER Communication Channels -Environmental protection
Communication Channels BERRE awareness.
BBERE -Open tendering; - RIBRERE
-Customer satisfaction survey; - pRREE Communication Channels
-EEREERAS -Suppliers' satisfactory assessment; BiEEE
-Face-to-face meetings and on-site - ftER IR EE TG -Regular reports and announcements
visits; -Face-to-face meetings and on-site  -EHIRER NS
- AR EMNEERIZHEAR visits. -Regular general meetings
-Customer service hotline and email; - EHEMASEFIRISEIGHR -EHRRRERAE
- EEIRISEARTIE FEM -Official websites
-E Ak
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Stakeholder Engagement (Continued)
Materiality Assessment

Since ESG risks and opportunities for companies vary across
industries and depend on specific business patterns of companies,
the Group undertakes annual review
in identifying and understanding
its stakeholders’ main concerns and
material interests for the Report.
In FY2018, the Group engaged its
stakeholders to conduct a materiality
assessment survey initiated by a third-
party agency in order to guarantee the
accuracy and objectivity of evaluation.
Specifically, internal and external
stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, business partners, board
members and employees from various
business units of the Group were
chosen and assessed based on their
respective influence and dependence
on the Group. Stakeholders were invited to express their concerns
on a list of sustainability issues via an online survey to pinpoint the
ESG issues that were identified as material to the Group’s business
development and strategies. Through a science-based materiality
assessment to prioritise the topics from the entire inventory of ESG
issues, the Group eventually formulated a materiality assessment
matrix below, which could genuinely reflect the real concern of its
stakeholders on ESG matters and facilitate the Group to develop

actions plans for effective ESG management.

WA B (5

¥ 2 8 (40)

HEVEATAG
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) WA PR (4)
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued) Fit &2 8 ()
Materiality Assessment (Continued) HEVERTAY ()

Materiality Matrix
P i

Areas identified as critical for disclosure:
L 8 o o 4 B G
Preventing child and forced labour
I 11 1 78 B T 5 il 45 T

Occupational health and safety

tion of consumer information and

pr /
R 25 145 ) A 5 R O

Land use, pollution and restoration
TR EE A - 5 gL RRTE

Water use

K& IR

Energy use

RETR 1

Sewage treatment

15 K R T

By & R E R

Areas identified as not relevant for disclosure:
mfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂhﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
Environmental protection assessment of
the suppliers

IMPORTANCE TO THE STAKEHOLDERS

. B OB 3 £
= © Social risks assessment of the suppliers
S e MR T 4 R P f
o T o Understanding local communities’ needs
& Z T A A
2 o Public welfare and charity
z MRS

° Composition of employees

1@ H AL
o Suppliers’ geographical regions in which

materials are source

B 7 g [ 4319 DL

Crucial

HE

Not relevant

A FE B

IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP
S A 4 Y o
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued)
Materiality Assessment (Continued)

According to the outcome of the materiality analysis matrix, the
Group identified seven ESG issues that are of great significance
to both the Group and its stakeholders from the inventory of 29
sustainability topics, namely “Preventing child and forced labour”,
“Occupational health and safety”, “Protection of consumer
information and privacy”, “Land use, pollution and restoration”,

“Water use”, “Energy use” and “Sewage treatment”.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

To seek the long-term sustainability of the environment and the
community where it operates, the Group is prudent in controlling
its emissions and consumption of resources, and complies with
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the

PRC during its daily operations, including but not limited to the

followings:

. Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

U Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and

Control of Atmospheric Pollution;

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and

Control of Water Pollution;

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and

Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes;

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and

Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise;

U Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong);

o Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

o Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

AT B (5)

i # 28 (#H)
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A.l.
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Emissions

The Group has complied with all relevant local
environmental laws and regulations in terms of emissions as
set out in Hong Kong and the PRC. In FY2018, the Group
found no disregard to influential laws relevant to air and
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. The Group commits to constantly keep mitigate its
environmental impacts through effective measures, such as
the smart control of the Group’s resource consumption and
the upgrade of outdated equipment that performs poorly in

energy efficiency.

In FY2018, the air emissions of sulphur oxides (“SO,”),
nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), and particular matter (“PM”)
amounted to 7,338.2 kg, 6,665.2 kg, and 172,664.0 kg
respectively. The total greenhouse gas (“GHGs”) emissions
for Scope 1 (Direct Emissions), Scope 2 (Energy Indirect
Emission) and Scope 3 (Other indirect Emissions) was
2,964.3 tonnes carbon dioxide equivalent (“CO.e”), 4,248.4
tonnes CO,e, and 50.2 tonnes CO,e respectively. The Group’s
total GHG emissions amounted to 7,262.9 tonnes, and the

GHG intensity for the Group was 2.8 tonnes CO,e/employee.

Other than air emissions, the Group also emitted 157.9
tonnes of non-hazardous solid wastes (with an intensity of 0.1
tonnes/employee), and 33,269.8 tonnes of non-hazardous
wastewater (with an intensity of 12.7 tonnes/employee) in its

operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

(CONTINUED)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

The Group did not generate any hazardous emissions during

the reporting period. The Group’s total emissions are

summarized in Table 1 below.

Table 1—The Group’s Total Emissions by Category in FY2018

Emissions

Pk

Air emissions

SRR PRk

GHG emissions
T3 SR PR ik

Non-hazardous waste

I BEY)

Key Performance Indicator

SO

ek (7]
NO,
AR
PM

AT

Scope 1 (Direct Emissions)

i1 — (E H PO

Scope 2 (Energy Indirect
Emissions)

5 15— (RE VR [H] 4 Bk )

Scope 3 (Other Indirect
Emissions)

5 3 = (CHC A [ 42 B ) @

Total (Scope 1, 2 & 3)

G (HEE— A=)

Solid Wastes
151 #8 BE )
Wastewater
15K

(1)  Intensity was calculated by dividing the number of employees at

the end of the fiscal year; and

(2)  The Group’s GHG emissions for Scope 3 (Other Indirect
Emissions) only cover that from electricity used for processing

paper and the water.

BRI Sy ()
Al BB ()
A B2 [ 7 ik A U SN e 7 A AT AT A BE
T o A 4R 1A A PR R R R e R 1
Hlt o
R — R — )\AF B BUAE i A 4 [ 4
T #2 1 HE Pk s =
Intensity™
(Unit per
employee)
Unit Amount B RE WD
AL L85 (H4EEH)
Kg 7,338.2 2.8
N
Kg 6,665.2 2.6
NI
Kg 172,664.0 66.1
N
tonnes COe 2,964.3 1.1
ISR AL IR E R
tonnes COe 4,248.4 1.6

YN R e
tonnes CO,e 50.2 -

M AR E 2
tonnes CO,e 7,262.9 2.8
ISWE AL R

tonnes
N
tonnes

AW

157.9 0.1

33,269.8 12.7

(1) FETEME M BUFEERWEB A
HWEHE 5 K&
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business

As the manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment
business is the main source of the emissions of the Group,
we are very prudent in controlling all discharges in the
manufacturing and sales operations. The discharges include
the air emissions form the car use, fume from staff canteen,
municipal sewage, municipal solid wastes, and small amount
of industrial solid wastes (such as manufacturing equipment
failed to pass the testing process). Environmental pollutions
from manufacturing process are regularly processed, and air
emission, wastewater, solid waste, and noise generated are
tightly monitored to ensure all of them have met the local

emission standards before discharge.

Oil fume form canteens is one of the main sources of air
emission, hence the Group installed fume purifier to treat oil
fume to a density of less than 2.0 mg/m?, which complies with
the PRC fume emission standard of catering industry, before

discharge.

The Group included its GHG emissions data during FY2018
in Table 1 of this Report. The Group’s GHG emissions during
the reporting period were mainly from the use of energy
(including electricity, gasoline, and coal). The Group sets up
internal policies, further described in A.2. Use of Resources,
to reduce energy use and thus the GHG emissions. The Group
also planted trees outside the manufacturing factories in the
PRC for GHG removal in FY2018.

The wastewater generated in this business segment includes
domestic wastewater only. The domestic sewage generated
by this business is discharged to the local sewage treatment
plant for treatment after preliminary treatment of the plant
sedimentation tank and septic tank. Relevant government
department is responsible in monitoring whether the
discharged wastewater has met the qualification of the

government.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.l.

Emissions (Continued)

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business
(Continued)

The solid waste generated in this business segment includes
domestic solid wastes and non-hazardous industrial solid
wastes. The method for treating solid waste is to collect and
categorize, recycle packaging boxes, cans, glass and metals,
before the non-recyclables are collected by the municipal
sanitation department or qualified recycle company for
further disposal. To reduce the amount of solid wastes, the
unqualified production equipment would be repaired and
maintained until it is recyclable. The unserviceable parts
are carefully collected and sent to a qualified recycling
company for further processing and recycling. Reducing the
consumption of plastic bags, straws and disposable cups, and

recycling waste paper are also implied in the daily operation.

To minimise the mechanical noise from the welding process,
the Group has adopted effective measures such as using
acoustic equipment, shock absorption equipment and double
soundproof glass. The Group’s manufacturing factories are
also located far away from the residential area. Hence, the
Group was able to comply with the Level 2 of the PRC noise

emission control standard during the FY2018.

Tourism development business

The Group is the environmental shuttle bus operator in
Hengshan Mountain scenic area in Hunan Province, the PRC.
The emissions from the Group during the year under review
mainly include the domestic wastewater, domestic solid waste

and vehicle discharges.
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A.l.
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Emissions (Continued)
Tourism development business (Continued)

The GHG emissions of the Group’s tourism development
business mainly come from the use of fuels in its
environmental shuttle buses and the use of purchased
electricity in its daily business operation. Domestic wastewater
is discharged to local wastewater treatment plant while
the domestic solid wastes are collected by local health
department for further treatment. As the main source of
emissions came from the use of energy, specific measures
taken in FY2018 to reduce energy use is further described in

A.2. Use of Resources to help the control of air emissions.

Investment business

Emissions for the Group’s investment business include GHG
emissions from the use of electricity, and municipal solid
waste and wastewater generated by the employees in the
office. No hazardous waste was generated by the investment
business in FY2018.

GHG emissions for the investment business came from the
use of electricity. Specific measures taken to reduce electricity
consumption in the office, and thus GHG emissions from
this business segment, are further described in A.2. Use of

Resources.

The Group is committed to environmental protection in
its daily operations in the office. To reduce the amount
of municipal solid waste generated every day, the Group

implemented the following practices:

o Source separate and recycle as many solid wastes as
possible;
o Encourages all employees to reduce the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware; and

o Advocates reusing of office stationeries.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY RSV R A0k (78)

(CONTINUED)
A.1. Emissions (Continued) A1, HERW (48)
Investment business (Continued) AT (H)

Other non-recyclable municipal solid wastes are collected and

disposed by the property management.

Since the amount of wastewater generated highly depends
on the amount of water used, the Group adopts specific
measures, further described in the A.2. Use of Resources, to
reduce water consumption. Municipal wastewater is directly

discharged into the property wastewater handling system.

Winery business

The Group’s winery business involves the production and
sales of wine and related products in Virginia, United States.
Emissions for this business segment include GHG emissions
form use of energy (gasoline, diesel, and electricity) in
machineries, water or land discharging, and non-hazardous

solid waste processing.

All waste generated in wine production are converted into
fertilizers, achieving “zero waste” production line. The
municipal wastewater produced by this business segment was
directly discharged into the sewer. Meanwhile municipal solid
wastes are collected, separated by source, and recycled. The

residual solid wastes are treated by the local government.

GHGs emissions from winery business mainly comes from
the use of purchased electricity, trailer, and forklift. All air
emissions complied with the local laws and no hazardous

emissions generated during the year under review.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY BRBE T F B (459)
(CONTINUED)
A.2. Use of Resources A.2. HEFEAMA
The Group complied with relevant laws and regulations in i o] LA JBE - A B [ gl A A T ) O R
relation to the Group’s use of resources during the year FBESE A B R R o i T — 4
under review. In FY2018, resources consumed by the Group AR > REBMBERAMWERSTE S
were electricity, gasoline, diesel, coal, natural gas, water, VRIm ~ SEvh o Bk - SRR K - 4R
paper, and packaging materials (by paper, plastic, wood, and T G AER R (4 B AR - SR . R H
glass). RAHHM) -
Table 2—The Group’s Total Use of Resources by Category in Fo— ZF— )\ W B AR B
FY2018 U B AT
Intensity™
(Unit per
employee)
Resource Category Item Unit Amount EEO
B JHH ¥ fir L8 (HHREE)
Energy Electricity kWh'000 5,220.3 2.0
AEVA %] T T FL IR
Gasoline litres 914,961.7 350.2
TRl It
Diesel litres 271,976.7 104.1
Sy It
Coal tonnes 863.3 0.3
W N
Water Water tonnes 177,634.7 68.0
K K N
Packaging materials Plastic tonnes 260.4 0.1
LAYk pre) L
Paper tonnes 1,603.6 0.6
% L
Wood tonnes 730.3 0.3
VS N
Glass tonnes 40.0 -
B E NU]
(1)  Intensity was calculated by dividing number of employees at the (1) B BE Y2 B LB BOAF BE AR A9 R B A
end of the fiscal year. WRHH -
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.2. Use of Resources (Continued)
Electricity

The Group strives to save electricity through implementation
of internal policies and use of advanced technologies. The
Group’s electricity consumption mainly came from regular
operation of the office, machineries at the manufacturing
sites, vehicle use of tourism business, and at the Group’s
vineyard. All subsidiaries of the Group stringently comply
with the Group’s policy of saving energy.

The Group understands the importance of reducing
electricity consumption as it is the main source of Group’s
air emission. As the Group reduces electricity consumption,
it also indirectly reduces GHG emissions. To align with
the Group’s policy of saving electricity, all subsidiaries and
branches of the Group have taken a variety of measures to
ensure the most effective use of electricity and demonstrate
their determination to protect our environment. To ensure
effective use of electricity, the Group has conducted the

following practices:

. Turn office lights off whenever and wherever not
necessary;

o Replace energy saving lights in operating areas;

o Turn office cooling air-conditioners down or off

whenever not necessary;

. Place posters “Save Electricity, Turn off Lights when

Leaving” in prominent places;

o Clean office equipment such as refrigerator, air-
conditioner regularly to maintain high operating
efficiently;

o Perform regular inspection of the equipment; and

o Encourage the use of staircase instead of taking the lift

for inter-floor traffic.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
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A.2.
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Use of Resources (Continued)
Energy Use

During FY2018, the Group consumed gasoline, diesel, coal,
and natural gas for transportation and production purposes.
The Group encourages energy saving through simple
measures, such as making the best use of room to avoid
unnecessary transportation, encouraging employees to take
public transportation for commuting or walk to work, and
replacing highly polluting vehicles with more environmental-

friendly vehicles.

Water

The Group requires employees to strictly comply to water
saving policy in daily operation. To further improve the
utilization efficiency of water resources, the Group has

adopted the following practices:

. Place posters “Saving Water Resource” in prominent

places to encourage water conservation;

o Collect used water if possible for cooling, floor cleaning

and yard washing;

o Carry out regular leakage tests on water tap, washers and

other defects in the water supply system;

o Fix dripping taps immediately; and

o Turn off water supply system at night and on holidays.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.2.

Use of Resources (Continued)
Paper

Paper is mainly consumed by the Group in its offices. The
Group strives to reduce the impact of paper consumption on

the environment by adapting the following practices:

. Use more environmentally friendly paper;

o Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via

email or e-bulletin boards);

o Set duplex printing as the default mode for most

network printers;

o Think before print: use posters and stickers as reminder

for office staff to avoid unnecessary printings;

. Place boxes and trays next to photocopiers to collect

single-sided paper for reuse and recycle; and

i Give a second chance: encourage staff to use used paper

for draft documents or as scratch paper.

Packaging Materials

The Group consumes different packaging materials by types
in winery business and manufacturing and sale of electronic
fire equipment business. To reduce the use of packaging
materials, the Group reuses as much packaging materials
as possible. This includes the reuse of bottles, corks and
carboard boxes and other recyclable materials. Meanwhile,
the Group uses environmentally-friendly packaging materials

to reduce its impact on the environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business

The main impact on the environment from the
manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business
is the use of energy and the noise of manufacturing process.
The Group reduces its impact on the environment through
implementation of energy saving policies and recycling
packaging materials. Besides, to reduce the operating noises,
the Group keeps the manufacturing factories located at
remote areas from residential areas and complied the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of

Pollution from Environmental Noise.

Tourism development business

The main impact exerted by the Group on the environment
for the tourism development business was the use of gasoline
and diesel in shuttle bus in FY2018. The Group operates
environmental shuttle buses that exert less impact on the
environment. Besides, this business segment operation in a
scenic spot, hence the Group strictly requires the drivers of
shuttle buses to carefully deal with solid wastes to relieve the

pressure of the environmental burden of the mountain.

Investment business

The main impact on the environment from the investment
business is the indirect GHG emissions through use of
electricity. The Group took effective measures to reduce
electricity consumption in the office and thus the overall

GHG emissions during the reporting year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.3.

The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Winery business

The main impact exerted by the Group on the environment
for the winery business is the use of electricity, gasoline, and
diesel. The Group’s vineyard is surrounded by green plants,
so part of the GHG generated by the Group will be offset by
the plants. Apart from the above, the Group also promotes
the smart use of drains and riparian zones to reduce the

environmental impact of vineyard.

To further eliminate its possible repercussions on the
environment, the Group has put great emphasis on three
main areas in its daily operations. Precisely, the Group is
committed to seizing every opportunity to innovate, design
and utilise eco-efficient technologies in terms of their energy
consumption, air and GHG emissions, and most importantly,
the compliance with relevant environmental regulations.
Second, the Group values the education and advocacy of low-
carbon operation and lifestyle. Employees are tremendously
encouraged to take public transport instead of private cars,
thereby reducing their individual carbon footprint. Third,
to align with the international standard in preserving energy
resources and protecting the planet, a series of efficacious,
adaptable and globally compatible policies are considered the
fundamental asset to keep the enterprise go with the tide of

world development by the Group.

The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) came into
force on 1 January 2016 and laid out a roadmap to tackle
17 vital sustainability issues around the world. With a
strong corporate ambition to address the imminent global
environmental crisis, the Group prioritises and incorporates
certain SDGs into its whole supply chain management, which
are “Affordable and Clean Energy”, “Industry, Innovation and
Infrastructure”, “Responsible Consumption and Production”,
“Clean Water and Sanitation” and “Climate Action”,

respectively.
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We treasure employee’s talent and see it as the key in driving
the success and maintaining the sustainable development of
the Group. The Group always strives to provide employees
with a safe and suitable platform for developing their career,
professionalism and advancement by making unwavering
commitment to its employee management principle —

“Honesty, Profession, Innovation”. We respect and trust every

/N

/

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE g R B 5% 8
B.1. Employment B.1. fEh

M EAE B A B > WAL B A
B ) P S S AR T SR AR B R A B R o R
A8 ORGSR B SR TR
B AR BUIRREBRBEER
BRETG > RS HELE
Thoo FAME K AR RS o TR
R E P LR -

employee and prioritise the selection of talent and cultivate

employees in employment management.

Talent training

building
B PXE
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(CONTINUED)

B.1. Employment (Continued)

D 03 B 55 %6 B (46

B.1. fEMH (4%)

Law compliance

The Group complies with laws and regulations relating to
local employment and employee benefits in Hong Kong,
the PRC, and United States, including but not limited to the

followings:

o Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

o Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China; and

. Federal and Virginia Labour and Employment Law.

Besides, we also comply with the social security schemes
that are enforced by the State Regulations of the PRC to
provide employee benefits. The Group’s human resources
department is responsible to review and update relevant
company policies regularly in accordance with the latest laws

and regulations.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group recruits employees according to candidates’
capability, performance, experience required by the job
description. The human resources department is responsible
for ensuring no wrongful recruitment information is

published to the external candidates and employees.

To attract high-calibre workforce, the Group offers fair,
competitive remuneration and benefits based on employee’s
performance, education level, professional qualifications,
and experiences. The Group also regularly reference
market benchmarks for attracting and retaining high-
calibre workforce. Employees are encouraged to recommend
talented to the Group with additional bonus. Employees
of the Group can send the resume or information of the
recommended talents to the human resources department in

various ways.
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B.1.
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Employment (Continued)
Recruitment and promotion (Continued)

The Group provides proper promotion process within the
Group. If there are job vacancies within the Group, internal
employees can submit the job interview application to
the relevant department. After the interview, the human
resources department will deal with the personnel change

process.

Compensation and dismissal

In order to motivate and reward existing management and
employees, the Group has formulated the compensation and
benefits system and conducted regular salary adjustment to
ensure employees are recognised by the Group appropriately
with regard to their work efforts and contributions. On the
basis of comprehensive consideration of the Company’s
development strategy and cost control strategy, at the end
of each fiscal year, based on the current year’s operating
conditions, salary levels and total compensation, and the next
year’s business objectives, and with reference to the human
resources market, regional and industry pay levels, the human
resources department draws up the plan for the total annual
salary, which will be implemented after approval by the board

of directors.

Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract
should be based on reasonable and lawful grounds. The
Group strictly prohibits any kind of unfair or unreasonable

dismissals.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group has formulated its policy based on local
employment laws for determining enough working hours
and rest time for employees. The Group arranges reasonable
working hours and rest periods for its employees. In order to
strengthen the Group’s employee attendance management,
improve work efficiency, and enable all employees to develop

punctual habits, the Group has an attendance system.

In addition to basic paid annual leave and statutory holidays
stipulated by the employment laws of the local governments,
employees are also entitled to additional leave such as

marriage leave, maternity leave and compassionate leave.
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B.1. Employment (Continued) B.1. & (&)
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Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed to
creating a fair, respectful and diverse working environment
by promoting anti-discrimination and equal opportunity in
all its human resources and employment decisions. In other
words, training and promotion opportunities, dismissals and
retirement policies are based on factors irrespective of the
employees’ age, gender, race, colour, disability, nationality,
religion or any other non-job-related elements in all business
units of the Group. Meanwhile, the equal opportunity
policy allows zero tolerance in relation to any workplace
discrimination, harassment or vilification in accordance
with local ordinances and regulations, such as Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Employees are highly encouraged to
report any incidents involving discrimination to the human
resources department of the Group. The Group will then take
the responsibility for assessing, dealing with, recording and

taking any necessary disciplinary actions on such incidents.

Benefits and welfare

To cultivate employees’ sense of belonging, the Group
provides additional employee benefits such as medical
insurance and annual physical check-up. To cater the needs
of employees working at the Group’s manufacturing facilities,
additional employee benefits may include the provision
of working meals allowance, well-equipped dormitories,

transportation between working sites and dormitories.

In FY2018, the Group organised a series of activities to
facilitate the harmony among employees. In order to
strengthen the communication of employees, the Group
organised employees gathering from time to time. In the
weekend or leisure time, sports games or other activities
(such as “Summer Carnival”) were held to release work
pressure and facilitate the harmony among employees.
Besides, we also organised employees to study in Enshi, Hubei

for learning purpose.
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B.2.
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Employment (Continued)
Benefits and welfare (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group was in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations in relation to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, welfare and other benefits that have a

significant impact on the Group.

Health and Safety

The Group believes that health and safety at work involves
both the prevention of harm, and the promotion of
employees’ well-being. To provide and maintain a safe,
clean and environmentally-friendly working condition for
employees, the Group has established strict internal safety
and health policies, which are in line with relevant laws and

regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC, including:

o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

o Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention

and Control of Occupational Diseases; and

. Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance.

The Group rigorously sticks to the instructions of the
Occupational Health and Safety Management (OHSAS
18001:2007) during operations. During the year under
review, the Group was not in violation of any of the
relevant laws and regulations in relation to providing a safe
working environment and protecting the employees from
occupational hazards that have a significant impact on the

Group.

D 03 B 55 %6 B (46

B.1.

B.2.

D 0 (780

HiAE R A7 7 (4H)

T [ REAF B A AR Tl Al A B I AR~ 4
WO RETE ~ e~ ARMR  PERE - 2
Jeft ~ BB - AR AL B H A AR ) 45 T e
S 7 4 R R K R 2B ) SRR ST A R
A B

i R % 5 2

A SR R T A e B % % A KBl kA5
FRALE B TARAE o F P4t R AEHE %
2 HR LR TR ER T%Z.0
TAE > AR SR AT R AK B TR 4 & B
fREREELSRE > LLAT & 7 i L oh AR Bl 35 1
LA BIRE » Hh s

o (RREET A e fd RO (F i kol
55509%) ;

o (hEARMMBELERAEEL)

o (i EE NI HLORN [ WK ZE B IR
By &

o (LG RERIRGL) -

25 A% B A 7 O R o BB 2L (R N &2
2 A S (OHSASI8001 : 2007) 48
N o JA AR B > A B2 BN I S AT ]
A B 2 TR KR B TR
ik 2 M e I 15 75 1 3 A 4 81 R K
(1 AR BRI ) KRB



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRYE - g KR

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(CONTINUED)

D 03 B 55 %6 B (46

B.2. Health and Safety (Continued)

In order to ensure the health of its employees, the Group
controls the occupational hazardous through 3 aspects,
which are materials, workplace and employees. The Group
ensures all the use, processing, storage and transportation
of all items and materials are safe and pose no threat to
health. To protect employees from occupational hazardous,
the Group organises physical examine regularly. Besides, the
Group organised fire drill and regular health and safety work
trainings in emergency management, hazardous materials
handling, machine safeguarding trainings during the year
under review to increase employees’ risk awareness and
enhance the ability to deal with emergency. Employees are
required to wear helmet when entering the manufacturing

areas to prevent hazardous in manufacturing process.

The Group aims to achieve an accident-free workplace
environment by prohibiting smoking and liquor drinking
in the workplace, carrying out regular cleaning of air-
conditioning systems and disinfection treatment of carpets,
putting up safety warning signs, and holding regular safety

work meetings and safety inspection.

The Group is committed to providing a smoke-free, harmless,
non-hazardous, clean, healthy and safe working environment.
The Group set up and strictly followed different internal
manuals, such as site safety management standards, safety
production accident investigation and management system,
labour protection management system, safety production
management system and other procedures documents, to
meet the specific safety requirement and comply with the
related fire safety regulations, labour protection management
regulations and the safety regulations in production site

during the year under review.
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Development and Training

The Group believes the training is essential for the
improvement of employees’ knowledge, skills, work methods,
work attitudes, and work values. Hence, we have established
internal training control procedure for better management of

the training within the Group.

Each department of the Group are required to develop a
“Training Demand Plan”, including the training subject,
training objectives, training time, training employee, and
training needs. The human resources department collects
the training requirements and training needs to organise
trainings for employees. The human resources department is
responsible for the overall planning and planning of training
activities, guiding, coordinating and supervising the various

departments to carry out training work.

Besides the plenty of internal vocational training activities,
the Group has tremendously encouraged its staff to attend
external training courses to further develop their personal
skills. Meanwhile, the Group also collaborates with research
centres and equipment suppliers to enhance employees’

technical knowledge.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(CONTINUED)

B.4.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by local and national labour
standards, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Labour
Law of the PRC, to prohibit any child and/or forced labour

employment.

To combat against illegal employment on child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, the Group’s human
resources department requires job applicants to provide
valid identity documents before confirmation of employment
to ensure that the applicants are lawfully employable.
Furthermore, the human resources department of the Group
is also responsible to monitor and guarantee the compliance
by the Group with the relevant laws and regulations that

prohibit child labour and forced labour employment.

In FY2018, the Group was not in violation of any relevant laws
and regulations, in relation to the prevention of child and

forced labour that have a significant impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICE

B.5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group deeply understands the importance of
maintaining a sustainable and reliable supply chain. The
Group strictly controls the supply chain to avoid social and
environmental risks. The investment business does not
include significant suppliers in the operation, hence it is

excluded in this chapter.

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business

When choosing suppliers, we require potential suppliers
to provide business license, tax registration certificate,
organization code, product production license, financial
information, and other relevant files to ensure the legal
qualification of the supplier. Besides the files mentioned
above, RoHS standard, quality management system
certification (ISO9001), environmental management system
certification (ISO14001), occupational health management
system certification (ISO18001), and China mandatory

certification should also be presented for internal evaluation.

D 03 B 55 %6 B (46

B.4 T iEuE

A A 1) A A S A ot B A [ A5 THERL
B AEAS BROS AR ARk A 491D (A8 3 22k 91 565
578 ) (P EE AR 5B k) > 4%
AR AR 2 T K/ o5 1 5 T ARG -

HITRER RN ET - RAEFES T LR
45 T A BN 7 R P AE e 52
WY R - 2R MERCE 12 A 280 5 i
SO WERIERCE I &k o B4t
A SR H N\ 1 IR PO B R B AR
ikt 7 A [ T ST R A A T B T R R 55 T
HA AR B O 1) S B0

A ZF — N B AR B > AR [ SR
SAT AT A7 B 5 1 2 T % 5 i 4 T A
42 A RS B AR B 1) B LA o

T
B.5. 13t S 4 Bl

7 B ) 8 SR A T 4 268 L T S {3 R 9 Y
HERME o A% S ] R A AL DA
etk & MBI R o BE S Y AR I
9 N R PERER > B s — F A

TE B 738 110 8 v I A AR RV A Ik R
PP AL P SE MR - BB SRR - AARAT
g5 SRR MBS ER > R H A
AR B SCPE AT AR AL E R 5T B I A ©
B T bk SCHF 5L > IRZE 7R RoHS 18
HE 5L R SRR (1S09001) - B
BEEM AL (1SO14001) ~ FREEMERE
B ARG (1SO18001) K H [ 3 i 1
JEE i rl e AR B R A o

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR

83



84

OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)
B.5. Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Manufacturing and sales of electronic fire equipment business

(Continued)

The procurement department is responsible for collecting
suppliers’ information and forming “Supplier Basic Profile”
before relevant departments’ assess. A team, formed by
the staffs from relevant department, then conducts filed
trips, and examines the technical capability through
samples provided by potential suppliers. Product quality,
production capacity, reputation, qualification, transportation
management and social and environmental responsibility
are also included in the consideration. Those suppliers who
are qualified for the technical and quality requirement are

marked as qualified suppliers.

To reduce the social risk in the supply chain, the Group has
taken a series of measures in supply chain management. To
avoid production disruptions, we offer at least three qualified
suppliers for each product. Besides, the Group evaluates the
price, quality, on-time delivery, service and technology of the
qualified suppliers’ procurement products every year and
records the evaluation results in the supplier evaluation form.
For qualified suppliers who fail to pass the assessment, the
Group will give them the opportunity to correct and reform,
and then conduct a second assessment. If it fails again, the
relevant departments will report to management and cancel

cooperation with the specific supplier.

Apart from annual evaluation, we also maintain close contact
with suppliers to ensure that the supplier’s business complies
with local laws and regulations in the countries and regions
in which it operates, and adheres to its corporate ethics, such
as prohibiting the employment of child labour and forced
labour. “Quality Management Training” by the Group are
also provided to advice on production risk management and

inadequate quality of processing.

Given the solid and stable relationship between the Group
and its suppliers, the supplier’s supply of materials has not

suffered any significant delays during the year under review.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)
B.5. Supply Chain Management (Continued)

BB (5
B.5. HoHESAT B ()

Tourism development business

As for the supply chain management in tourism development,
customers’ feedback and after sales service are also
considered when choosing suppliers. The other supply chain
management measures are the same as the manufacturing

and sales of electronic fire equipment business.

Winery business

In the winery business, grapes are the main raw material
in the operation. We work with high quality wine grape
growers who are knowledgeable and are responsible for their
growing practices with high standard. We have listed out the
requirements of product quality and related environmental
protection standards in the commercial agreement. The
Group also conducts annual review on suppliers to achieve
quality assurance and satisfactory service practices. If the
products or services do not meet Group’s requirements,
suppliers have responsibility to take any remedial measure
and corrective actions on a timely basis. If the problem
cannot be rectified, the Group will re-evaluate the capability
of their ability to perform as required and may re-select

suppliers according to the supply chain policy.

The Group maintains close contact with the suppliers to
ensure that the business of the supplier complies with its
local laws and regulations in the country and region and
maintains its corporate ethics, such as the prohibition of the
employment of child labour and forced labour. In FY2018,
we conducted an interview on the supplier’s environmental
behaviour to understand the supplier’s presence of
significant environmental hazards, the number of pollution
incidents in the past, and the awareness of environmental
protection, effective control, reduction and prevention of

pollution.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)

B.6.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Product Responsibility
Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business

In order to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
consumers, and to strengthen the supervision and control of
the quality of products, the Group complies with related law
and regulations on products safety and health, advertising

and labelling, including:

o The Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product
Quality;

o The Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

o The Metrology Law of the People’s Republic of China;

i Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection

of Consumer Rights and Interests;

. The Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China; and

. The Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China.

Due to the nature of the manufacturing and sales of
electronic fire equipment business, the product quality
and safety are essential to the Group. The Group’s quality
management system adheres to a number of national and
internationally recognised technical specifications such as
GB/T19001-2008, GB16808-2008, GB/T24001-2004, CCCF-
HZBJ-01 and GA1061-2013 in production of fire equipment.
The Group’s quality control department is responsible for
quality inspection and product testing including leakage test,
basic function test and alarm sensitivity test based on the
product graphs, technical requirement and methodologies.
Following the internal operating manuals, such as record
control procedures, product monitoring and measurement
control procedures and production process control program,
the Group ensures the safety of products and the fulfilment of

customers’ needs.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

BT (5

B.6. ZEMEAE (4])

Manufacturing and sale of electronic fire equipment business

(Continued)

By implementing a full range of quality control in the
production process along with continuous investment put
into research and development, the Group aims to serve
high quality products. Products need to be routinely tested
and factory tested before leaving the factory. The specific
inspection items are based on the national standards of the
corresponding products. Besides, we provide 24 months
warranty period after operation and help customers to solve

problems within 24 hours after system deficiency.

We have consummate policy on customer feedback and
complaint. After receiving complaints, the after sales
department and quality management department are
responsible for identifying the cause of the problem and
clarifying the responsibility. After sales department then
deals with the complaint according to different situation and
informs customers simultaneously while quality management
analyses the prevention measures of the problem and avoid

the problem happen again.

All marketing materials and labelling are under strict control
of the Group. Marketing materials must obtain the market
development department’s manager’s approval before
publishing. The label of products should fully comply with
the requirements of China Compulsory Certification, and
the quality management department is responsible for the

management and monitor of labels.

The Group actively applies for any new intellectual property
rights, labelling, product design or technical knowledge of its
own intellectual property rights to protect its own proprietary
rights after conducting a risk assessment of potential market
infringement. We also employ legal counsel to provide legal
advice for the protection of intellectual property rights and
arranges for internal legal personnel to view and prevent
intellectual property infringement. Confidential agreements
are signed with distributors and employees to protect the

intellectual property of the Group.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)

B.6.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Tourism development business

The Group actively develops tourist sight projects, located
at the famous scenic area, and provides the environmental
shuttle bus for visitors at Hengshan Mountain scenic area. To
ensure the safety of customers, every shuttle bus is equipped

with seat belt and safety hammer with annual safety check.

The Group has a safety production committee (“Safety
Committee”) to lead the overall safety work in tourism
development. The Group performs daily quality inspection,
reward and punishment standards, administration of
operation service, safety production management system
and daily quality inspection log. The quality inspection staff
monitors the quality of service and prepare monthly service
quality analysis to identify problems and implementation of
rectification. Furthermore, the Safety Committee preforms
annual assessment for traffic safety indicators: frequency
of general liability accident, frequency of accidental death,
frequency of accidental injury, direct economic loss on

accident and frequency of minor accident.

Besides, the Group also has safety maintenance committee to
implement the Group’s safety management system. The safety
maintenance committee monitors and reports the vehicle
maintenance plan on a monthly basis, and performs vehicle
maintenance tasks, such as annual inspection and safety
technical assessment, to ensure the transportation vehicles
are in good condition. Under the normal circumstances, the
Group’s transportation vehicles comply with the GB7258-87
“Safety Technical Conditions for Motor Vehicles”, GB4785-
84 “Numbers, Positions and Colours of the External Lighting
and Light Signalling Devices for Motor Vehicles and Their
Trailers” and JT3111-85 “Highway passenger transport

general technical conditions”.

As a shuttle bus operator, customers’ feedback in essential
in the long-term development of the Group. We have
customer service department and service hotline to collect
customers’ complaints and respond to customers’ inquiry in
time. “Operational Service Management Measures” are also

implicated into operation to manage the service quality.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

BT (5

B.6. ZEMEAE (4])

Investment business

We have established internal control policy to ensure the
standard operation and prevent operation risks effectively
and operate adhering to the internal control procedure.
The inspection department is responsible for assessing the
rationality, completeness and effectiveness of the internal
control measures and monitoring the implication of control

procedures.

The Group believes the credibility is the key point in
investment management and information disclosure is
one of the main measures to add credibility of the Group.
We value the importance of customer privacy and has
established internal policy to ensure the security of customer
information. No relevant information should be disclosed to
a third party except for the requirements of laws and audit
and regulatory authority. Only approved employees can get
access to customer’s information. The Group also perform
confidential education on employees to demonstrate the
consequences of information leakage and signed confidential
agreement with employees. Also, the intranet is encrypted to

prevent unauthorised information usage and exportation.

All the advertisements and marketing materials should
comply with the requirement of internal verify standard.
The Group employs experienced legal counsel to review and
monitor the advertisements and marketing materials during
the year under review to ensure there is no fake or wrongful
description in the materials. Advertisements and marketing
materials should be verified as legal, fair and honest before

publishing.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

BT (5

B.6. ZEMEAE (4])

Winery business

Upholding the core value of “A Taste of History”, the Group
actively provides high-quality wines to our customers. To
ensure the product quality, all of products before selling to
the customers must be inspected under Alcohol and Tobacco
Tax and Trade Bureau (“TTB”) Labelling Compliance,
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”)
Complications, Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”)

and Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) Compliance.

The products labels have to be approved by TTB and go
through lab analysis to ensure that our alcohol products are
created, labelled, and marketed in accordance with Federal
laws and regulations and distinguish from other competitors.
Before selling the wines to the market, the Group goes

through the Federal Label Certification and approval proves.

In additions, we monitor the alcohol and acidity level to
ensure that our wine is a healthy and safety product. Our
wine is tested monthly for quality control and is analysed
for alcohol, heat and cold stability, pH and protein stability
prior to bottling. We maintain variety ways to grasp the needs
of the customers with the sales department through weekly
meeting, new product introduction meeting, customer visits
and customer hotlines to cope with the ever-changing needs

of customers.

All the information provided by the marketing department
to customers should be accurate and precise. Any
misrepresentation or exaggeration of offerings is strictly
prohibited. We have legal counsel to prevent violations of our

advertising and labelling practices.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)

B.6.

B.7.

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Winery business (Continued)

We value customers’ privacy, information collected would
only be used for the purpose for which it has been collected
and customers would be told about how the data collected
would be used in business. All collected personal data
is treated confidentially and is kept securely, accessible
by designated personnel only. The Group prohibits the
provision of consumer information to a third party without
authorisation from the customers. We emphasise on
confidentiality obligations and the legal consequences for the

breaches of obligations.

The Group actively applies for the proper intellectual
property rights of any new trademarks, labels, product
designs or technical knowledge developed by itself in order
to protect its own proprietary rights. Legal counsels are
also employed to provide legal advice on the protection of
intellectual property rights and arranges for internal legal
personnel to view and prevent infringement of intellectual
property rights. Employees are responsible for confidential
trade secrets and other proprietary intellectual property

rights.

Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working
environment, the Group strictly abides by the local laws
and regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery,
irrespective of the area or country where the Group conducts
its business, including but not limited to the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Anti-money Laundering

and American Anti-Corruption Act.

The Group prohibits all forms of bribery and corruption and
requires all employees to strictly abide by professional ethics
and eliminate any corruption and bribery. All employees are
expected to discharge their duties with integrity, to act fairly
and professionally, and to abstain from engaging in bribery
activities or any activities which might exploit their positions

against the Group’s interests.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (CONTINUED)

B.7. Anti-corruption (Continued)

Furthermore, the Group set up an internal whistleblowing
policy to enable employees to report any suspicious activities.
The management would conduct investigations under
confidential, objective and instant principle to protect the
Group’s interests. The Group advocates a confidentiality
mechanism to protect the whistle-blowers from fear of
threatens and any disadvantage to the whistle-blower’s
employment relationship. Where criminality is suspected, it
will be reported to the relevant regulators or law enforcement

authorities.

During the year under review, no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices were brought against the Group

or its employees.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible enterprise, the Group highly values charity work
and employee benefit, aiming to do its utmost to give back to
society. The Group is committed to promoting the economic
development and living environment of the community and

helping individuals with difficulties.

The Group considers employees as family members and support
the difficult employees to walk out of the low tide. During the year
under review, the Group has comforted sick employees that the
Group would always support them whenever necessary. Besides, the
Group organised visits the local difficulties and offered financial

help them go through the downside.

As for the local environmental protection, the Group’s bus drivers
always remind passengers in helping the protection of the scenic
area before each trip by educating the impact of rubbish on the

local environment and keeping all rubbish inside the car.

We are well acknowledged of the importance of local community
development to the Group and aimed to contribute more to the

community in the following years.
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RSM

RSM Hong Kong FEEREGFMSBHEAM

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road EEIE@EERTE _+/)\5%
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong MEZB _+h5iE

T+8522598 5123 B5E +852 2598 5123

F+852 25987230 BE +8522598 7230

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
102 to 244, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

www.rsmhk.com

www.rsmhk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1.  Impairment of goodwill
2. Impairment assessment of trade and bill receivables
3. Equity method accounting for associates and joint ventures

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
B S A 0E

1. Impairment of goodwill
1 AR

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

Z AR AT G B R A M E19

The Group has goodwill of RMB19,643,000 attributable
to the manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment segment cash generating unit (“CGU”).
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually.
B4R TR 1O By M B0 e o) R B AR
Or (T 814 7 7k B0 ) B A6 B 3 A IR 119,643,000
TG BAR AR E AT B E R

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill of this CGU. This
conclusion was based on the value in use models that
require significant management judgement in making
assumptions about future revenues, profit margins and
growth rates and in selecting an appropriate market
discount rate.

T AR A B 4 A R LG o B o %A
i LA (8 PR (B 2 St ol A (A X1 1A A B
RA AR ~ AR BOE R RAERE > U R PR B T
I B R i A B A o) KM B

ToH e 2 = 0 ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FAETE A TP B s A I A R By K

Our procedures included:

FAF R A

— Assessing the integrity of the valuation model;

- APAG RS (E AR B AT SEAE

— Challenging the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

- MRIREESFEEH RAT MR > B U ) R R
Y Fr VR SR B A

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such
as approved budgets and considering the historical
accuracy of those budgets;

- WA BB RHEB B > IS > WEE
%A TR IERY MR

— Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rate
used with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists; and

- EEFREMGEERA BT > G767 B R
EE S K

— Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation

to the goodwill impairment assessment.

— A B R R A B Y R B R A T o

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
I e 2 I

2. Impairment assessment of trade and bill recervables

2. JENMCE SRR RN 0 A

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements

2L AR AR o Y B R M it 27

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade and
bill receivables of approximately RMB1,047,884,000
and allowance of doubtful debt of approximately
RMB111,394,000.

MEF—NEFZH=1+—H  AEBAHBKE S RX
B JRE WA SRR M AR A N R 1,047,884,000 7T B A R 488 46 40
ARH111,394,0007C

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group
to the customers ranged between 3 to 6 months.
Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and bill receivables and
the sufficiency of allowance for doubtful debts based
on information including credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade and bill receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation
of outstanding balances, and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers. Management
also considered forward-looking information that may
impact the customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances in order to estimate the expected credit losses
for the impairment assessment.

—mE - AL EFZHEENNT3E6MA -
EHEARIEAR F S A6 IR D~ R 5 MR SR ik
SR NRES M TEASTRDER - RAUASFHIRUL - B BIRME
A R N TEL AU I ] < 9 M B BB 5 O R AR R ) B AR
AF AT B A B R e R i SR T o [ R R R R
S 2 AR LA S R AL o LN g R RR S
AR A A2 6 B B 0 1 T B 2 R DA T 08 A 1 T
WfEHEsA -

We focused on this area because the impairment
assessment of trade and bill receivables under the
expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.

F A TR 5 Ml TR TR S i R i 50 o R M WA S R ek
(A 7 B TR P K L I R At > IR A5 S
T SRS o

ToH 2t = 0 ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR AR R B A 2 T g 37 K

Our procedures included:

BN

— Assessing whether trade and bill receivables had been
appropriately grouped by management based on
their shared credit risk characteristics;

- Rl R B AR O R SR R S B el B AR SR
F IR {5 SR b A U H AL

— Testing the accuracy and completeness of the data
used by management to develop the historical loss
rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability and
relevance of that data;

- Bt LG R R R S 4R R A SR A YRR T A A 5
B > ARG % B g SR AT S MEANAR B

— With the assistance of our internal valuation experts,
testing the calculation of the historical loss rate and
evaluating the reasonableness of the forward-looking
adjustments made to reflect current and forecast
future economic conditions;

- FENEBMEEHERA BT > WEUE S R 5 A
FEAZ BT At DA S e T B PR A A TSR LAY I B
A A

— Testing the accuracy of the aging of trade and
bill receivables on a sample basis to supporting

documents; and
— TR R B S Y R A R R A TR A S R 1 1Y
HEREME 5 J2

— Testing the calculation of expected credit loss
provisions applying the provision rates to the age
categories of the trade and bill receivables outstanding

at the reporting date.
— BRI 1 R I R A B R R A
HRE IS R B (2R - TR Sl R M A w5
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
I st A 2 I

3. Equily method accountingfor associates and joint ventures

3. BUBFELF R G E R ik
Refer to notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial

statements

PRI E B IR E M i 22 K 23

The Group has investments in associates and joint
ventures of RMB667,627,000 and RMB253,392,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2018.
BEEB ZF - N\F+ A =+ H i
A BOE 0 B A\ R 667,627,000 7T
253,392,0007C °

BARLE
LONE:

Certain of the associates and joint ventures are engaged
in the investments of unlisted equity securities in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
determination of the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgement
in selecting appropriate multiples from market
comparables and in respect of unobservable inputs
such as discount for lack of marketability.

A T HE N R KA B AR T #E AN RN B ([
e BE I EIA IR o M2 IF b RAR #/\BHE
fhF o A B 5 P 238 0 T T LU A MR A T LA
R (Mo e =2 7 45 O e A ) ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%f’ﬁtﬂﬁkéﬂl%ﬁ °

The Group appointed independent professional
valuers to assist in assessing the fair value of those
unlisted equity securities investments.

R R 2 T S Sl A B A % < O b T A R
FCER ATE -

ToH e 2 = 0 ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FAF AR v b B s S IH A i 2 7 X

Our procedures included:

HEE A

— Evaluating the competence, independence and

integrity of the external valuers;

- FHESNEASERTARE ST ~ Bk AT Sk

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation

methodology used by the external valuers;

— WA SN (EL A B A (B EA A9 A R

— Considering the appropriateness of the multiples
selected from the market comparables and the
discount for lack of marketability with the assistance
of our internal valuation specialists; and

- EEHFNEMGEEROWHBT > 58T E K 35l
B e e B Bk 2 T S5 A R T R S A 5 K

— Assessing the adequacy of the fair value disclosures in
relation to the unlisted equity securities.

- RPN BELIE b BAS AR SR A B R AT E R R A TR R
o

JRAER T RRT RN ARAT 2% — ) F4EH]
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all the information in the Company’s
2018 annual report other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of the Other Information, we are required

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A S Bl 0 2 ok £ B R R R I B 3R
{E (%)
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fo 7 HE B % L Ath 2 v L 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

2018 2017
ZE N\ e ad
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ANRWET L ANRH¥T T
Revenue A 8 1,905,727 1,613,075
Cost of sales and services S T RS 1A (1,064,446) (872,685)
Gross profit B 841,281 740,390
Other gains and income HAth s 25 Sl A 9 25,866 33,976
Impairment loss on trade and B 5y T HoAth RES 3K IH
other receivables, net NERIEN, SEi=RE | (30,591) (12,149)
Distribution costs 77 88 AR (144,946) (123,052)
Administrative expenses ATBA S (136,536) (129,845)
Other expenses HoAb BA 52 (98,217) (72,309)
Profit from operations A8 456,857 437,011
Finance costs R A 11 (11,951) (14,931)
Share of losses of associates JRE A W o (38,770) (8,737)
Share of losses of joint ventures JEAG & 8 1 36 1R (1,069) (773)
Profit before tax B Bt il 6z 1 405,067 417,570
Income tax expense REGN 12 (78,556) (76,080)
Profit for the year YNy | 13 326,511 341,490
Other comprehensive income after tax: HAbRRBZ 2ZmEA -
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 1~ B HE P IHFEH a2 HH -
Fair value changes of financial assets PLAS B A FAt 2 T i 4
at fair value through other (I AR PAE R A HA 2 1
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) ks 1) Z B & 2 N F
H 32T (98,755) -
Share of other comprehensive income JFRE A 2 ) A 2 T WAL i
of associates (17,419) -
Share of other comprehensive income JEAL & 78 A 3 HoA 2 T i A
of joint ventures (71,907) -
Income tax on items that will not be A EHITEEEGZIEHE
reclassified to profit or loss Z A 1,485 -
(186,596) -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B e R B 2 i i

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

2018 2017
—F )\ I
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR T ANRHET T

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: 0 EF M ERm ZIHA -
Changes in fair value of ATk B S

available-for-sale financial assets I TH B ) = 11,519
Exchange differences on translating B SN ES 2 M 2 R

foreign operations 15,168 (25,755)
Share of other comprehensive income B8 23 7] HoAth 2 1 i 25

of associates - (31,874)
Share of other comprehensive income A 7 A 2 A 2 T U 2

of joint ventures — 48,502
Income tax relating to changes in fair BRLA] 4k B AR A T

value of available-for-sale financial BB AR 2 TSR

assets - (694)

15,168 1,698

Other comprehensive income for A AR BE H At 2 TR 6 o

the year, net of tax C R (171,428) 1,698
Total comprehensive income for A A JBE 4 i WAL i 48 7

the year 155,083 343,188
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE A A 4 BE i F)

Owners of the Company E/NIE7 ZE N 147,029 170,668

Non-controlling interests IE P B 25 179,482 170,822

326,511 341,490

Total comprehensive income for VE A A AF JBE 2 TR WK 25 % -

the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company E/NGIE X SN (18,106) 171,455

Non-controlling interests JE 15 BEHE 25 173,189 171,733

155,083 343,188
RMB RMB
AR NG

Earnings per share B A

Basic and diluted (cents per share) FEAS I 8 (B e ) 17 10.7 12.5

JRAER T RRTREBMARAT =48R 103
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S BB IR DL

At 31 December 2018 =% — /)\4g+_A=+—H

2018 2017
“E—)\4 e S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[{EEE: AR ANR®T T
Non-current assets R B A B
Property, plant and equipment Wi ~ U7 KA 18 315,628 311,778
Goodwill [k 19 19,847 17,761
Other intangible assets HoAh I & 20 4,972 6,154
Biological assets W) 21 1,058 4,276
Investments in associates WS A A Z B E 22 667,627 685,366
Investments in joint ventures NEENEZRE 23 253,392 316,421
Investments in film productions I EF R E 24 10,292 11,991
Available-for-sale financial assets A B S 25 = 232,606
Financial assets at FVTOCI DL PE A At 2 1
Wi a2 B 25 135,244 =
Deposits for potential investments MBS E A2 s 8,000 9,400
Deposits for purchase of property, MEE Y - R K
plant and equipment AR A 2 3,203 -
Deferred tax assets R B I 33 16,925 12,991
1,436,188 1,608,744
Current assets W E
Inventories & 26 238,107 158,851
Trade and other receivables B 5 B HoAh E Wik TE 27 1,103,752 753,562
Time deposit with original maturity N R AR H 2
of more than three months EWITE R
when acquired 29 1,221 1,159
Pledged bank deposits TG SRAT A7 3K 29 5,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents HEe RHEZEY 29 684,448 658,235
2,032,528 1,571,807
Total assets HEE R 3,468,716 3,180,551
Current liabilities it B £ 0
Trade and other payables 5 5 B Fo A REA 3K IH 30 563,165 435,484
Bank loans AT 32 225,683 220,850
Current tax liabilities B3 78 £ i 27,651 33,659
816,499 689,993
Net current assets & A 1,216,029 881,814
Total assets less current liabilities B A B £ 2,652,217 2,490,558
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FZRE SR PN

At 31 December 2018 A =ZF— )4E+ZH=1—H

2018 2017
—F N\ SR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR T ANRET T
Non-current liabilities I i By £ 45
Deferred tax liabilities AR SUE A IE i 33 1,802 2,310
NET ASSETS A 2,650,415 2,488,248
Capital and reserves G A R
Share capital &N 34 137,872 137,872
Reserves R 1,612,363 1,630,469
Equity attributable to owners of AN R N R A HE 2
the Company 1,750,235 1,768,341
Non-controlling interests I EHE 25 900,180 719,907
TOTAL EQUITY HERE 5 2,650,415 2,488,248

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

RoF-NE=A+HEEFEGHAERLR

UTANERAEE

ZHANG WANZHONG
wEH

Director

HH

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

Attributable to ovners of the Company

RATHA LR
Foreign Financial
currency  nvestment assets at Non-
Share Capital Reseve  translation  revaluation FVTOCI Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds Teserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
WY
AL
Rl
Bk KARE  REEE  ERRE RRENRE  MERERE  GERE WA it R LT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARMTE  ARETE  ARETR  ARETx  ARETR O ARETE ARMTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR  ARETX
note 36(b) (i) note 36(b)(ii) note 36(b) (i) note 36(b)(i¥) note 36(h)(iv)  note 36(b)(v)
WaEsso)0)  WeEseo)i) ML) MEGIG) KO 6
At] January 2017 RZF-tE--A 18,176 449966 133,630 (33,178) 105,717 - 12552 677,774 1,474,637 3174 2022811
Issue of shares il 9,69 112,333 - - - - - - 122,49 - 122,49
Total comprehensive income for KEERANESH
the year - - - (26,088) %875 - - 170,668 171435 171,733 343,188
Transfer B S S 15,980 S S S S (15.980) S S S
Appropriation of FREREGRY
safety production fund - - - - - - 3743 (3,749) - - -
Changes in equity for the year REERGEE 9696 112583 15.980 (26,088) 2,875 - 8,743 150,34 993,704 171,73 465,487
At31 December 2017 S i oy 137,872 562519 149,610 (9,266) 132,592 - 16,295 828,719 1,768,341 T19.907 2488248
At1 January 2018 REF-NE-A-A 137,872 562,519 149,610 (59,266) 132,592 - 16,295 828,719 1,768,341 T19,907 2,488,248
Adjustment on inital application of ¥R FRHTREEN
HRERS note 3 ROSLAR(its) - - - - (ma) 1 - - - - -
Restated balance at  Jamary 018 R=F-AF—f—AZ
AERIGR 137872 562,519 149,610 (59,266) - 132,592 16,295 828,719 1,768,341 119,907 2,488,248
Total comprehensive income for KERRTREAH
the year - - - 15,176 - (180,311) - 147,029 (18,106) 173,189 155,083
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 87(a))  YEREA (K3E37(2)) - - - = = = = = - 1,21 1,21
Capital contribution from FERERTY
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - 5,865 5,363
Transfer i - - 2,967 - - - - (2,967) - - -
Share of transfer of losson disposal of ~ HtEAHRERMHE
financial assets at FVTOCI WATE AR 2R E
in investments in joint ventures LHHEE EREY
(note 23(a)) (H93(a)) - - - - - 3,199 - (8,199) - - -
Transfer of gain on disposal of HENAFRH AR
financial assets at FVTOCI HRRE IS
(note 23(ii)) (W95 i) ) s = = = s (1,307) . 1307 - - -
Appropriation of safty producton fund %2/ EERE = = = = = = 8 (89) = = =
Changesinequityfo the year REEREES - - 2967 15,116 - (41 8 142,081 (18106 18027 162,167
ACS1 December 2018 il S S B RS BT (W) - (B8 1638 o080 L0508 260415
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

maBleiag®

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

2018 2017
e i 2 TE LA
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR T AR¥TIT
CASH FLOWS FROM BN B SRHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax SR A A 405,067 417,570
Adjustments for: R
Impairment loss on trade and other B 5 K FAth W 3 IE
receivables, net o RIEN ZEi=REE 30,591 12,149
Depreciation and amortisation rEs S 5 29,190 25,145
Impairment loss on investments in B S NFIREZ
associates R 1R - 4,875
Loss on disposal and written off of B S P 2
property, plant and equipment 5 B s A e 48 53 46
Loss/ (gain) from changes in fair value W 7 N T R 5 e
less cost to sell of biological assets A 2 58, (as) 3,143 (3,352)
Interest expense S BH S 11,205 11,209
Interest income LB WA (3,645) (2,246)
Net foreign exchange loss 41N MEE 5 i 45 1 746 3,722
Waiver of trade and other payables H 0 T B H A B4 SO = (1,240)
Share of losses of associates JRE A o8 2 ) e 1R 38,770 3,737
Share of losses of joint ventures JEAL A 45 4 2E k5 4E 1,069 773
Operating profit before working REHEHEE S EB RS
capital changes i 516,189 472,388
Increase in inventories T8 1 (79,176) (3,415)
Increase in trade and bills receivables TE S o W i o B 1 (314,329) (186,687)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and  FEATEIA ~ 4% 4 L HAlh
other receivables JE U TE 38 (65,230) (10,528)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade and 5y Te HoAth JE AT 3T
other payables () 127,650 (9,844)
Cash generated from operations EAHKEIREZ B4 185,104 261,914
Income taxes paid B AT 58 (87,521) (88,910)
Net cash generated from FEAE B AR TR 2
operating activities 455 97,583 178,004

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

2018 2017
—F )\ —ER L
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E PN ARHT I
CASH FLOWS FROM BB B 2 B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary WS S 8 2 37(a) (2,103) -
Deposits for potential investments TR E & (8,000) (9,400)
Refund of deposits for potential TBTE G SR )
investments 9,400 -
Deposits for purchase of property, WEE W) - S B st 4
plant and equipment (3,203) =
Increase in pledged bank deposits E HE A ERAT A7 K3 (5,000) -
(Increase) /decrease in time deposits FH H B =8 A 2 e 1
with original maturity of more than TRk () b
three months when acquired (62) 75
(Increase) /decrease in amounts due ERLI 25 ) AR 2 O
with associates (K, w» (223) 16,524
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - WE S H TS
plant and equipment IE 114 262
Purchases of property, plant and E W - W KA
equipment (30,804) (74,843)
Purchases of other intangible assets W A AR (551) (1,753)
Purchases of available-for-sale Sl S TR A S
financial assets - (66,500)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HE AAE R A H Al 42 T
assets at FVTOCI e 4 2 B 5 ¥ E A O 2,131 -
Investments in film productions REEREZRE - (11,991)
Investments in associates I R I < (38,450) (38,922)
Interest received A E 3,645 2,246
Net cash used in investing activities FA 156 B) < B (73,106) (184,302)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

2018 2017
ZE )\ T E LA
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR Tt NREET T
CASH FLOWS FROM ARG B 2 Bl
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank loans raised SR AT B 219,700 215,000
Repayment of bank loans BRI T B (215,000) (160,141)
(Advance to) /repayment from (1] SR AR R AR A
shareholders JB R (137) 1,387
Increase in amounts due to JREAST B A N = R TE S
related parties 55 623
Interest paid EATFE (11,205) (11,209)
Proceeds from issue of shares ATy 2 A5 30 - 122,249
Capital contribution from FE P 5 7
non-controlling interests 5,863 =
Net cash (used in)/generated from () /R A Rl I )
financing activities 2 WA (724) 167,909
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERB&%EEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 I AR 23,753 156,611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes G R e S By 2 5 2 2,460 (7,717)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EWZ SR BEEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 658,235 509,341
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R Z B4 KB4 E Y
END OF YEAR 29 684,448 658,235

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 5 S5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on the
GEM (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, Yanyuan District
Area 3, No.5 Haidian Road, Haidian District, Beijing 100080,
the PRC. The addresses of its principal place of business
in the PRC and Hong Kong are 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird
Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road, Haidian District, Beijing
100871, the PRC and 6th Floor, Bank of China Building, 2A
Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of
embedded system products and related products. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its

subsidiaries are collectively referred as the “Group”.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”);
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed

below.

— & K

AN Ty HE N RS (T A )
SR BT 2 AN A B B A IR EE A
A o AN FIH B B s A 22 5 A R
AF(THART ) GEM (TGEM ) Bt o
AN T 22 W 3 ik 2 e B AL e T
T VE [ VE M SRR = ML K F R
=% (4 100080) > H7E v 8 &
2 F B 2 B A By R B AL s T i
E [ BN 6 207 5540 K 75 & 3 4% (AR
100871) B s v B (R 4 rp 2A 5% v [
SRAT R 6HE -

A FE A X RBE bh 2 1 5 4R
Lo B B AR BR FE iy o FCI I s 7] 2 £
SES WA 3 B R B R 43 o A ]
B LM B~ F5Re 2 [ AL ]

B PLIL

% AR S B AR D RAR A R
(I EEEataA g ) Bz f s
R 7 v B s o v ) (e v o 5 ot i
BIJJ) B o A o B i R T v
B i Y J) (T 7 o B B i i e ) )
A gt ([ Fdaat A )) K
B o LR AR B MBS R IR AT B W S B
GEM 75 b 7 B I 2 78 ) 9 3 e ST A K%
A RG] (256625 ) Z K FHLE ©
ALEE RS ERERERBERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs

that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial

statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s

consolidated financial statements:
(i)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

(ii) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKEFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition
of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets

and hedge accounting.

AR ()

TV B F AN B AR A TR T R A
AT W IS O R B > R A SR 2 A
B a0 U R T R R o B
Ak 3B AR AS st 4 ) RO 1 Rt
] 00 U B D B AR 4 T A BR) o % S R T
MEC A B & R BUOR S 8 (R BRR % 5%
B MBSIREN) ZEH

TRADT AT B S 5T 14 7 9 S 5

LRl

(a) PR AHT T B A0S T 75 V8 A 5 5
e
s B I 2 AL 2 SERT AT B
R AT B S A S W R A LR
F—/\FE— A — B Z & BE 2 4
BEMIM YRR o b LU T 3R
SR SR 1Y A5 4 RS R AT B -

(i) BB MELNEIN [ 4

BMTHE] &
(ii) A s B S IR A e RIS 15 5
[ AZEFEHA

A 1 SIS0 A A A 0
1) AR A 28 T A ) e o

B BRI FE 9N [ L
A

A Y S5 e )25 9 B AU A
B w5 39 BE A BE B A
MBS - R - &
il T H 2 BOH R~ B & 2
(EWERUE - Fi v P S W

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without

restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the following

changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

(a) Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement

categories:
o those to be measured subsequently at
FVTOCI and fair value through profit or loss

(“FVTPL”); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

()

(b)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVTOCI.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial assets not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or

loss.

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in

fair value.

PR AT AT B 805 5T 1 A ¥ B 2
e 0 (4)

(a)  PRAVHTGRT B BRAG RT W 75 v A 5 o

e (%)

B it B IR A HE R 998 [ il L

H (4

(a) ¥ (&)
AT EFENEENS
Wi i B e 18 AR 4 B
f A E it o ¥ IEREIEE E
A TR Em S - Al
RSP A B2 B A 4] TR RE R IFF 2
A CAE A AT A ] 2 R
DA % A 5 DL A R
A At A T 45 5 o

(b) w®lE

TER) i e R IRY > AR E A
PRI b CRESIE JE DA TE R
ABR AT ERENF) v H
92 B JEG 7% VA W S R 1 A
Gy AT R RE o DAY
EFT AR £ 0 IS A 2
25 A R 1R A S -

A [ AR e P (E R T
B IEALCE o fif4 4 HE 3
i AR LAt 2 T i 4 2 5
A B & 2 N W as K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. FRAPET B R T B v I S
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HHE(4)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a)  PRANDT AT B RS AT 0 7 7 T 75 iy

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Impairment
For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised

from initial recognition of the receivables.

The following table and the accompanying notes below
explain the original measurement categories under
HKAS 39 and the new measurement categories under
HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets as
at 1 January 2018.

Classification Classification
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9

HROR A it ae AR A e

e J (%)

7 ik B T IR A R 9 BE [ |l T

A (4

(c) MH
MR BRI S > A4k
V9 R ) 7 o S e 1 B I 5
e FREIAL T HhE
SR 2 1A 7 W s 1R 2 1 U
PR ME NS A RF R

T 2 LT ST B RS A R 2 A 4
= F N — H — & BB
AT R A W A RIS 30
SRR U AR R A A S
HERIEE QT B T = -

Carrying amount Carrying amount
under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
WA aTE  BORE TR

S ERL AR SRk SESOUEIMIRTIAL YRS O%E Ay MR T 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
W5k AREET T AR#ET T
Equity investments (a)  Available-for-sale FVTOCI 232,606 232,606
A E W& UATFHERA
Hib 2wk
Trade and other receivables (b)  Loans and receivables ~ Amortisted cost 753,562 753,562
B 5 BRI ER BB IR BHRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BRANHTAT B AT 00 7 o S B ik
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 1 ) (41)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a)  PRAVHTGRT B BRAG RT W 75 v A 5 o
e (4H)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) B 1tk B T IR A R 998 [ Al L
A (4
The impact of these changes on the Group’s equity is as % S 5 ) R 4 [ RE 4 B0 S B
follows: I
Effect on Effect on
investment  financial assets at
revaluation FVTOCI
reserve reserve
BUAPH
at ALl
EATE
HEEEL g
fl i o s 8 o i o i
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARBT T ARHET T
Opening balance - HKAS 39 NG — B aRHER 5 30%E 132,592 -
Reclassify non-trading equity investments %3 & %) 1 £ % & thy v {it
from available-for-sale financial assets to & BT 75 & & B 7048
financial assets FUNAPEF AT AT
at FVTOCI Wi 2 BT FS (a) (132,592) 132,592
Total impact 5 (132,592) 132,592
Opening balance - HKFRS 9 ERNS R — v BT
ok - 132,592
The measurement categories for all financial liabilities JI A B B B0 A A AR
remain the same. The carrying amounts for all financial [ o R_F—NF—H—-HFA
liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not been impacted by S5 4 4 R TR L R A 00 R T 5%
the initial application. Z-
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3.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Note:

(a)  These equity investments represent investments that the
Group intends to hold for the long term for strategic
purposes. The Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) changes in the fair value
of these investments because these investments are held
as long-term strategic investments that are not expected
to be sold in the short to medium term. As a result, assets
with a fair value of RMB232,606,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to financial assets
at FVTOCI and fair value gains of RMB132,592,000 were
reclassified from the investment revaluation reserve to
the financial assets at FVTOCI reserve on 1 January 2018.
Unlike HKAS 39, the accumulated fair value reserve
related to these investments will never be reclassified to
profit or loss.

(b) Trade and other receivables that were classified as loans
and receivables under HKAS 39 are now classified at
amortised cost.

Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables
are presented separately in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
As a result, the Group reclassified impairment losses
amounting to RMB14,336,000 and reversal of allowance
for doubtful trade and other receivables amounting
to RMB2,187,000 from “other expenses” and “other
gains and income” recognised under HKAS 39 to
“impairment loss on trade and other receivables, net”,
respectively in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognsied. It replaced HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11

Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue
and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related

interpretations.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the following

changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
embedded system products and related products.
Sales are recognsied when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been delivered to the specific

location.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

The Group also operates a wine yard. Revenue from the
sale of wine and related products is recognised when the

Group sells the product to the customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the management service income is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

The Group provides the service of travel and leisure.
Revenue from the travel and leisure service is
recognosed when the services are rendered to the

customer.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on how the Group recognises revenue from

construction contracts (see note 4(m)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Set out below is the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15
on the Group.

The following tables summarise the estimated impact
of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, by comparing the amounts reported under
HKFRS 15 in these consolidated financial statements
with estimates of the hypothetical amounts that would
have been recognised under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 if
those superseded standards had continued to apply to
2018 instead of HKFRS 15. These tables show only those
line items impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 15:

3.

Note

et

PR AT AT B 805 5T 1 A ¥ B 2
e 0 (4)

(a)  FRAHT AT B K05 0T 00 7 o8 S 5 e o

1 (%)
BB R R 159F [ A&
Fa#igA | (%)

T 2% 400 R T R S A v ) A
159 AL I R 2 -

M BR A A v B R E
FIsE ALK E —F— )F
+ A=+ HIEFENEES M
WER M EE R KA 245 4R
B B R AR R A v s s At A I
1598 2 SR LR E
T B 2R 18 9% B A v w e I AE
1155 1 T e R ) B 4 AR AG HT (i
A T — )\ A A I P % S5 U
WERI 5 T AS 27 s A A A I 2R
1655%) » ZHE RAGMBURZIHRNE
T B S S 4 e RIS 15 98 5 2R Y TH
H :

Amounts  Hypothetical

reported in amounts Estimated
accordance under impact of
with HKASs 18 adoption of
HKFRS 15 and 11 HKFRS 15

WEEHE MeEH® RAEE
SO 3% e Gt W B
BIEREHZ BISERIIKZ  EABEI5ELZ

wIH & it s

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T I SO N ST

As at 31 December 2018 RZF— g
+ZA=+—H

Consolidated statement of A MTOR DL (Hi %)
financial position (extract)

Gross amount due from JEWEETREF
customers for contract work PR

Contract assets BRHERE

Gross amount due to customers HHEETRENER
for construction work TIHRH

Contract liabilities ARAK

= 2,475 2,475
2,475 (2,475) -
- 504 504
61,513 (504) 61,009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

()

Reclassifications were made as at 1 January 2018 to
be consistent with the terminology under HKFRS
15:

Previously, contract balances relating to
construction contracts in progress were presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position
under “Gross amount due from customers for
contract work” or “Gross amount due to customers
for construction work” and contract balances
relating to trade deposits received from customers
were included in “advances from customers” in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position. To reflect these changes in presentation,
the Group has made the following reclassification
adjustments at 1 January 2018, as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 15:

Contract assets recognised in relation to
construction were previously presented as “Gross

amount due from customers for contract work”.

Contract liabilities for progress billing recognised
in relation to construction were previously
presented as “Gross amount due to customers for

construction work”.

Contract liabilities for trade deposits received
from customers was previously presented as

“Advances from customers”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective

for the financial year beginning 1 January 2018. These

new and revised HKFRSs include the following which

may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term

Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after

1 January 2019

1 January 2019

1 January 2019

1 January 2019

TR 40507 6T B A% 15 6T R A v B B

e 0 (4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts upon
the initial adoption of the standards may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s quarterly results
report for the three months ending 31 March 2019. The
Group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standards are

initially applied in that quarterly results report.

HKFRS 16 Leases
HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related

interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS
16 carries forward the accounting requirements for
lessors in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors
will therefore continue to classify leases as operating or

financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first

adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard
will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. The Group’s office and operating
premises leases are currently classified as operating
leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise
and measure a liability at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments and recognise a
corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases. The
interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation
on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or
loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and
the timing of expense recognition will also be impacted

as a result.

As disclosed in note 41, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
for its office and operating premises amounted to
RMB29,276,000 as at 31 December 2018. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed assessment in order
to determine the new assets and liabilities arising from
these operating lease commitments after taking into
account the transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and

the effects of discounting.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements from 2019 onwards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. biological
assets and certain investments that are measured at fair

value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set

out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that

significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation

reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests represent (“NCI”) the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCI are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NCI are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders

even if this results in the NCI having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and NCI are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the NCI are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for

sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their

acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the

consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The NCI in the subsidiary are initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In accessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or

convert that right is not considered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associates in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of investments over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investments and
is tested for impairment together with the investments
at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investments are impaired.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s
share of losses in associates equals or exceeds its
interest in the associates, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share

of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and

does not remeasure the retained interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for

sale).

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and

determined them to all be joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint ventures in acquisitions are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the joint ventures’ identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investments and is tested for impairment together with
the investments at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the investments
are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated

profit or loss.

The Group’s share of the joint ventures’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments. When
the Group’s share of losses in the joint ventures equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures. If the joint ventures subsequently report profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses

not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that
results in a loss of joint control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that joint venture and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying
amount of that joint venture (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the

retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency,
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

(RMB’000) except when otherwise indicated.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(1)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values

are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

4.

FRERHBOR (4])

(e)

Hb i I 5L (4)
(ii) H BT REZ3EL R

B

HINREAE 5 00 28 Tl R 2R
TR 32 5y F 3 2 e R
HIEERH - DUMNKE 252
B R B A A o
] &5 5 F 81 2 BE ARG
DRI 1 EE 5, IR S 7 A 22 Wi i %
J 1R 4 A 4R i T T -

e 4N T BB K DA SN 2 51
2 R L WETE T M AT
(B3 H 2 R -

CERCLA PRI T 75
& JH Al 2 T W 45 R BRI o 3%
W 2 B 48 2 A AT M 58 5T 43
i FE A 2 T WA i TR RR o
FE BT B 2 i as S 1R
i MERR I - % I i BURS 1R
ZATARE 5350 70 A 1R 4 e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(1i2) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation

currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which

they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on

a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as

follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land 70 years
Buildings 20 years

Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements, furniture
and office equipment 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(g)

Property, plant and equipment(Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the

end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are

available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating leases
The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

4.

FRERHBOR (4])

(f)

(g)

W ~ W Kkl (1)

AR T A A5 i S 30 ] 45 TR R At B
R () R BR (B - AT
EMRATETTIE -

TERE TR AT 2T > IR
A I A R R SR - SR AR B
]G R RS A

L2~ R Bk i A 2
R - i R T A5 T T BRUR R
ERENREE 2 2280 > 7 A i 48
HERE o

BEMH

REEEER A

o S A 2 R A7 L i B
B RS T AR 2 AHA > 5
BEAA - MEZH (kR HEA
T AT ) AR DL B AR
D B ST o

KL E L A

AN T A R R L B
e SRS T AN 2 A0A > 550 5
BEMA o R AEERN A S
NG BRI DA B AR e RR -

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

()

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets which represent transport operation
license, rights and patents, copyrights, computer
softwares, customer list and investments in film
productions are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.

Biological assets

The Group is involved in the agricultural activities of
the transformation of biological assets (vines) into
agricultural produce (grapes). The biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value of biological assets is determined based
on the present value of expected net cash flows from
the biological assets with reference to their growing
conditions. Gain or loss on initial recognition and
from subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sell
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it

arises.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at its
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The
fair value of agricultural produce is determined based
on market prices in the local area. Gain on initial
recognition at fair value less costs to sell is included in

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

The fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest
of the agricultural produce becomes its cost for
the measurement of inventories. Such inventories
are subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(k)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these

criteria is expensed when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 4(y) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become

unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable

would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, contract balances were
recorded for construction contracts at the net amount
of costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings. These net balances were
presented as the “gross amount due from customers for
contract work” (as an asset) or the “gross amount due to
customers for construction work” (as a liability). These
balances have been reclassified as on 1 January 2018 as

shown in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work
on installation of fire alarm embedded system under
the control of the customer and therefore the Group’s
construction activities create or enhance an asset under

the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the cost-to-
cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs.
The directors consider that this input method is an
appropriate measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations under
HKFRS 15.

The Group becomes entitled to invoice customers for
construction of properties based on achieving a series
of performance-related milestones. When a particular
milestone is reached the customer is sent a relevant
statement of work signed by a third party assessor and an
invoice for the related milestone payment. The Group
will previously have recognised a contract asset for any
work performed. Any amount previously recognised
as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised
to date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
There is not considered to be a significant financing
component in construction contracts with customers as
the period between the recognition of revenue under
the cost-to-cost method and the milestone payment is

always less than one year.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Construction contracts (Continued)

(n)

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering contractual
penalties for late completion are taken into account
in making these estimates, such that revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue

recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred that are expected to be

recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is

recognised.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018
Revenue from contract revenue contracts was

recognised on a similar basis in the comparative period
under HKAS 11.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(0)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

(Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other

income.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. These assets are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
(except for short-term receivables where interest is
immaterial) minus any reduction for impairment or
uncollectibility. Typically trade and other receivables,

bank balances and cash are classified in this category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

(p)

Financial assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are

recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the

effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the group’s
cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash

equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.

(i)  Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(r) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
(i1) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair

value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with
the ECL model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that

would be payable to a third party for assuming the

obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of

the investment.

(iit) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(iv) Equaity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Revenues from manufacture and sale of a range of
embedded system products and related products
is recognsied when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been delivered to the specific

location.

Revenue from the sale of wine and related products
is recognised when the Group sells the product to the

customer.

Revenue from the management service income is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the travel and leisure service is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in

accordance with the policy set out in note 4(m) above.

Income from investments in film productions is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established, subject to the terms of

the relevant agreements.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of embedded system
products and related products are recognised, when
the installation work is completed, the customer
has accepted the systems and the products and the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the customers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control

over the embedded systems and related products sold.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to the estimated total contract
costs for the contract; and revenue from a cost plus
contract is recognised by reference to the recoverable
costs incurred during the period plus an appropriate
proportion of the total fee, measured by reference to
the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the

estimated total costs of the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are probable to be

recoverable.

Revenues from rendering of travel and leisure services

are recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenues from sales of wine and related products are
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered and the title has

passed to the customers.

Management fee income is recognised when services are

rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a

result of services rendered by employees up to the

end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(it) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit

or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.

(iit) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the

Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying

asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to
its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset
or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/

CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse

the impairment.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective

financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of

money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to

12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic

information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

= significant increases in credit risk on other

financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to

have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to

fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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A B S5 WA B R
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

= information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event; or

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant

forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected ECL as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which

simplified approach was used.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets (other than those at fair
value through profit or loss) are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s)

have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered also to be objective evidence

of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables, etc.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Only for trade and other receivables, the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is

directly reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if
the amount of the impairment loss decreases in a
subsequent period and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables) through profit
or loss. However, the reversal must not result in a
carrying amount that exceeds what the amortised cost of
the financial asset would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is

reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(z) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.

(aa) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving

estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Joint control assessment

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
arrangements. The directors have determined that the
Group has joint control over the arrangements as under
the contractual agreements, it appears that unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreements

for all relevant activities.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)
(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(y), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable

forward looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for
the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2018 was RMB315,628,000 (2017:
RMB311,778,000).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty(Continued)
(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year, income tax of RMB78,556,000 (2017:
RMB76,080,000) was charged to profit or loss based on
the estimated profit.

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an
assessment demanding final tax for the year of
assessment 2004/2005 from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD”) relating to a claim
for gain on disposal of long term investment recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2004. The case
was forwarded to the Appeals Section of the IRD, the
outcome of the tax claim cannot be readily ascertained.
In cases where the taxes charged by the IRD are
different from the estimated amounts, a material tax

charge may arise.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty(Continued)

(¢)

(d)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was RMB19,847,000 (2017:
RMB17,761,000). Details of the goodwill are provided in

note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
management of the Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that trade receivables and contract assets
are impaired. The provision policy for bad and
doubtful debts of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of trade receivables and contract
assets, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowance may be

required.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets is RMB652,268,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB81,045,000).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty(Continued)

(d) Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

(Continued)

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as
the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows
are less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material

impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets is RMB938,965,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB111,394,000).

(e)  Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31 December 2018, allowance for slow-
moving inventories amounted to RMB2,869,000 (2017:
RMB2,869,000).
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

0

Fair values of financial assets at FVOCI (2017: available-for-

sale financial assets)

The Group appointed independent professional valuers
to assess the fair values of certain financial assets at
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets). In
determining the fair values, the valuers have utilised
methods of valuations which involve certain estimates.
The directors have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the methods of valuations are reflective of

the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of the financial assets at
FVOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets) as
at 31 December 2018 was RMB135,244,000 (2017:
RMB232,606,000).

Valuation of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less costs
to sell of the biological assets, the directors and the
management has applied the income approach which
requires a number of key assumptions and estimates
to be made such as discount rate, harvest profile, costs
incurred, cultivation area, and expected yield of the
biological assets. Any change in the estimates may
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly.
The directors and the vineyard expert have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation is

reflective of their fair value.

The carrying amount of biological assets as at
31 December 2018 was RMB1,058,000 (2017:
RMB4,276,000).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), United States dollars (“USD”), RMB,
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) and Euro (“EUR”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 4% (2017: 6%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been RMB478,000 (2017:
RMB1,989,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and cash

equivalents denominated in HK$.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(©)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of

the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2017: 10%) higher/

lower:

o other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2018 would increase/decrease by
RMB2,464,000 (2017: RMB4,820,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the

Group considers to have low credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

6.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group as
set out in note 38, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period

is disclosed in note 38.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 90-
180 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3-6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between

the Group’s different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade recetvables and contract assets (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables and contract assets as at 31 December 2018:
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(c) f B kg (4)
HENT & 5 J sk R4 79 B ()
TRESIAREMN ZF— /N F T
H=+— H o R 5 iRk a4
B R TS BB PR SZ 1 5 B

JELG R
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

FMERR WRmAE  EERSE
RMB’000  RMB’000

ARWTRH ARWTIG

Current (not past due) BP9 (R Jd 391
Less than 3 months past due a3 =R A

3 — 6 months past due W =F A

6 — 12 months past due wmHAET A
1 - 2 years past due W — E W4

2 — 3 years past due I AR
Over 3 years past due R R =4

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

5% 332,228 (4,236)
5% 192,763 (8,873)
5% 178,613 (9,842)
5% 152,844 (7,606)
10% 95,429 (9,543)
20% 33,995 (6,807)
100% 64,487 (64,487)

1,050,359 (111,394)

TE e TR T AR IR 2 = AR R
R - ZF RO AR
B DB WA 7 B WiCSE 0 ] AR €
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Credit risk (Continued)
Prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment. At 31 December 2017, trade receivables
of RMB81,045,000 was determined to be impaired.
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that were not

considered to be impaired was as follows:

St 5 ) o 4 B ()

(©)

1 B JRU B (4)

B — N E— H — H Fif

B E— )NFE—H—HH - WE
5 38 1 7E ) B b (E R R
Th o R FE—tFE+ H=4—
H > ANR#81,045,0007CHY MEU &
TR E EE B A o RV I
B 1 FEUS IR X AR B AT

2017

e S e

RMB’000

ANR¥ETFIT

Neither past due nor impaired A B AR WAE 246,953
Less than 3 months past due a1 1) D i =i A 194,076
3 — 6 months past due s = 2 7N A 81,168
6 — 12 months past due s 7N 2+ AR A 75,084
Over 1 year past due v 1 B i — AE 54,987
652,268

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance
was necessary in respect of these balances as there had
been no significant change in credit quality and the

balances were still considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. s e B (A
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) fifR)aks (4)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of R BRE SRR G R EEN
trade receivables and contract assets during the year is MR RET T
as follows:
2018 2017
ZE )N\ TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARWT T

At 1 January R—H—H 81,045 68,677
Impairment losses recognised for AF T R U (e 18
the year 31,026 13,002

Amount written off during the year AR N R (650) =

Reversal for the year A R 4 [E] (27) (634)

At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 111,394 81,045
(d) Liquidity risk (d) W&

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current A A F 2 R T R 0 B 4 B I R T

and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it W2 R E TR - HECRAER 25

maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity Bl - DUREAT H A e = U

requirements in the short and longer term. BESTK -
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B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. Sl A B ()
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) TRE)E )R b (4)
The maturity analysis based on the contractual TR AR BT AR B AR A AR
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative W BB < i 2 A B A S
financial liabilities is as follows:
On demand Between
or within 1 and
1 year 2 years Total
HER
N EE —ERF At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT  ARWTET  AR¥TE
At 31 December 2018 REZF—-N\EF+ZA=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 B AR A R0 501,652 - 501,652
Bank loans (note) SRATEE (BT 230,817 - 230,817
Financial guarantee AT IR 503,000 - 503,000
At 31 December 2017 ozt A=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 B HARE A 30H 382,722 - 382,722
Bank loans (note) SRATE T (T 227,268 - 227,268
Financial guarantee AR R 503,000 - 503,000
Note: BiFEE

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to RMB5,983,000 and RMB20,850,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. s e B (A
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) TRE)E )R b (4)
Note: (Continued) FsE « ()
The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid in HAUME A B SR AT RO AR R SR
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the AT Y F ) K H R o TR
loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and RE LA BB ENT
interest cash outflows are as below:
Repayable Between Between Total
within 1 and 2and undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flow
REBlZ
AN R —EWLE MELE BHEeEWEHHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS T NEHET 7T AR¥T T ARMTIE
2018 SR\ 469 469 6,066 7,004
2017 R —LA 23,868 - - 23,868
(e) Interest rate risk (e) A=A B

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interest at variable rates varied with the

then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMB539,000 (2017:
RMB531,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result of

lower/higher interest income from bank deposits.

A B TR % 2 R 1 84
TEAR BT © 2% A R 3
B L7 17 L1 2 9180 B
At -

WoE—NETFZH=ZT—H i
BHZRRTRE E T 106 5 B
M A oA R R AR AN B > AR R
Z 5B BB s R DB A
R ¥#539,0007C (—E—+L4F : AR
#:531,0000C) » FH B ERITAEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(g)

6. SR Be A B (A

Categories of financial instruments at 31 December (f)

#+ZA =+ H e m TR BRI

2018 2017
“B)\E SE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T8 ANR¥F T
Financial assets: W
Financial assets measured at TG AR T 2 B
amortised cost 1,760,359 -
Financial assets measured at DA TEFEA A 2 T i 4
FVTOCI: Equity instruments T ERE - A LA 135,244 -
Loans and receivables (including cash £ 3K & fE i IH
and cash equivalents) (G LB a5 EY) = 1,380,098
Available-for-sale financial assets AL R AT = 232,606
Financial liabilities: B fL A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DL § A HE 2 I35 2 i 727,335 603,572

Fair values

(g)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to

valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the

measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

A
NE BTS2 HE R GHE H T 2
A 22 5 8 BT i e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE(4)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 a RTZH=Zt+—HAVFHEHZ B
December: %
Fair value measurements using: Total
KPR B At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
s Ui B0 BZE ZEFAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T  ARWTE  ARWTn  ARWTE

Recurring fair value ACH M Ay PO &
measurements:
Financial assets MHEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI AR A B AL 2 s 2
T B
- Listed equity securities - biiAES 24,641 = = 24,641
- Unlisted equity securities - B RAE R - - 110,603 110,603
24,641 - 110,603 135,244
Biological assets HWE E
Vines HA - - 1,058 1,058
Total At 24,641 - 111,661 136,302
Fair value measurements using: Total
WPEFHERAZ B A5t
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
At H—IE Eom HE “E—LE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
INH SO AR¥ET N SO ARWF T
Recurring fair value B A AL R
measurements:
Financial assets W
Available-for-sale financial assets 7] {it tH 8 B & &
- Listed equity securities - AR S 48,198 = = 48,198
- Unlisted equity securities - LA E S - 184,408 - 184,408
48,198 184,408 - 232,606
Biological assets g
Vines % = = 4,276 4,276
Total At 48,198 184,408 4,276 236,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE ()
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on (b) MIRE=JEIR A TG B EEH
level 3: R -
Financial
assets at
FVTOCI
unlisted
equity  Biological 2018
Description securities assets Total
VLAFAE R A
Joft 2 T W 4
Z W
Wt LHRARE S EME ZEB )\
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ARWF 70 ANR¥ T
At 1 January 2018 A F—NE—H—H = 4,276 4,276
Total gains or losses recognised  Ji* T AR 2 1 S A
in profit or loss ER® = (3,143) (3,143)
In other comprehensive income i HA 2 W4 (73,805) = (73,805)
Transfer from level 2 WA B 184,408 — 184,408
Decrease due to harvest R SR T k> - (168) (168)
Exchange differences i 5t £ - 93 93
At 31 December 2018 W oE—)\NF+_A=+—H 110,603 1,058 111,661
* Include gains or losses for O AR IR EEZ
assets held at end of Wit Bk
reporting period - (3,143) (3,143)
Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
unlisted
equity  Biological 2017
Description securities assets Total
Tk
Bk b
e B A 57 EMEE “ELA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
INL S AR¥T T ANR¥T T
At 1 January 2017 p o E—tE—~H—H = 1,267 1,267
Total gains or losses recognised  Ji* FHIHERR 2 i S A A
in profit or loss ® R = 3,352 3,352
Decrease due to harvest RSB ITT > = (166) (166)
Exchange differences I ot 2 3 - (177) (177)
At 31 December 2017 woF—tE+-H=+—H = 4,276 4,276
* Include gains or losses for O EREREE ARG EEZ
assets held at end of Ik %5 Bk 1
reporting period - 3,352 3,352
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

7.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

level 3: (Continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are presented in other expenses (2017: other gains and
income) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

During the year, unlisted equity securities included
in financial assets at FVTOCI amounting to
RMB184,408,000 (2017: RMB Nil) were transferred
from measurement on level 2 to level 3 as a result of lack

of similar transactions in the market.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2018:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
value measurements. The financial controller reports
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the financial controller and the

Board of Directors at least once a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

(c)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AFEEE ()
Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) ARHEMEPZF—)NFE+ZH=Z14—
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value H Fir £ FI A (62 03 B oy ARt & e
measurements at 31 December 2018: (Continued) B 2 18 5 2 Bl A i = Bk
#% : (%)
Level 2 fair value measurements Fair value
BT AT AT
2018 2017
“ENE R
Description Valuation technique  Inputs RMB’000 RMB’000
N ST ARHETT
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
it 1 7 ¥ LN 3 43 Afd (i Afk
Private equity investment classified at ~ Market comparable ~ Market prices - . 184,408 -
financial assets at FVTOCI (2017: approach
Available-for-sale financial assets -
Unlisted equity securities)
AEBUATER AT 2B 5k (il
KEEMAERARE (25—t
CER IR S Ve Ak 1174
Kik%)
Level 3 fair value measurements Fair value
BERA PR Al
Effect on
fair value
Valuation Unobservable for increase 9018 9017
Description techniques inputs Range of inputs “20\E Tt
EYIE YN ¢
HAPEZ RMB’000  RMB'000
it i FUBEHAYE W P ARMFE  ARET
Biological assets (note 1) Discounted Risk-adjusted 15%(2017: 13%) Decrease 1,058 4,276
cash flows discount rate
R (kL) B A R R B By
Growth rate 2%(2017: 2%) Increase
BR% 1
Gross margin 43%(2017: 33%) Increase
A% s
Private equity investment Market comparable  Discount for lack of 309,499 Decrease 110,603 =
classified at financial approach marketability
assets as FVTOCI (note 2)
AERBUATES A2 ERE  H5 LR 2 T AR A B 2 B
B RENR AR AR Y
(Mite)
Financial multiples of 1.91-22.16 Increase
public companies
RN BT L3 s

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR

181



182

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2018: (Continued)

Note I: During the two years, there were no changes in the

valuation techniques used.

Note 2: During the year, the valuation techniques changes from

market approach — comparable transaction method in

2017 to market approach — guideline public company

method in 2018.

AP ()

() ALMPR_F-N\EFE+_H=1+—
H Bt B8 FH Al (6085 5 B 2 P Wt 2 P
PR 2 Al 8 T % B i A\ BUiR 2 B

#% : (#0)

BEFRET: A AR A BT 2 il (T i

BFEE2: 4F A > Al E B =& — LA
7 & i — W HBAE B
B E— AR5 — 1R

b AL

REVENUE 8. WA
Disaggregation of revenue B W 4
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by SN R EE MRS E 2 KT A
major products or service line for the year is as follows: AT A A
2018 2017
ZE)N\E e S R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRH T8 ANR¥T T
Revenue from contracts with customers 75 5 4 % $it i 4 B S8 15 5%
within the scope of HKFRS 15 WENZEFGHBRA
Disaggregated by major products or e T i BRI B AR A 2
service lines WA
— Sales and contract works of — B A URFUE SO B
embedded system products and KA # LA
related products 1,748,285 1,461,455
— Rendering of travel and — PR KK R RS
leisure services 138,849 132,819
— Sales of wine and related products — G T 2 S R B 9,896 11,304
- Management fee income ESUHE PN 8,697 7,497
1,905,727 1,613,075

The Group derives all revenue from the transfer of goods and

services at a point in time.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

9. OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 9. Mk KW A
2018 2017
ZE )N\ —E— L4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRWT 70 AT

Bank interest income SRAT R Ed A 2,338 1,397
Government grants (note) O i A 5 4,298 19,130
Interest income from loans to others ) FoAth A\ R R 2
HBWA 1,307 849
Share of income from film productions ey 2 (RPN 499 =
Gain from changes in fair value less costs A N T S ) T
to sell of biological assets BAS Z W dt - 3,352
Rental income TR YA - 71
Waiver of trade payables AT R 5 IR - 919
Waiver of other payables oo HAB B A OH - 321
Refund of value-added tax WaERLR ] 14,744 7,663
Others oAt 2,680 274
25,866 33,976
Note: Government grants represented subsidy to the Group by the MEE © BUMF ARG TS B BR324 45 [ 2 fil
PRC government as incentives primarily to encourage the B4 > SIS e (L A 4 ) 8k e
development of the Group and the contribution to the local B JRRAS S5 e o

economic development.

PR T RRT PR MARAT ZF—)UE4EH] 183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
strategic business units that are managed separately by the
chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit requires

different technology, development and marketing strategies.

During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,
which were managed separately based on their business

nature:

Manufacture and sale —research, development,

of electronic fire manufacture, marketing,

equipment contract work and sale of
electronic fire alarm systems
and related products
Tourism development  — development of travel and leisure

business
Investment holding - holding of fund, debt and equity
investment
All other segments — business activities and operating
segments not separately
reported, including production
and sales of wine and related

products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not include
interest income, unallocated other gains and income, finance
costs and unallocated corporate expenses. Segment assets
do not include unallocated corporate assets. Segment non-
current assets do not include financial assets at FVTOCI
(2017: available-for-sales financial assets) and deferred tax

assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment profit or loss:

10. 4 #6ERH(%)

A8 o1 kv A o 1R BB

Manufacture
and sale of
electronic fire
equipment Tourism Investment All other
B RHE  development holding segments Total
CERR 1Y 3 E 3 REER A At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBETE  AR®Tr  AR®Tx  AR®TT  AR®Tx
Year ended 31 December 2018 REZZ-N\E+ZH
= —HIREE
Revenue from external customers KAMEF Z A 1,748,285 138,849 8,697 9,896 1,905,727
Segment profit/ (loss) AR/ (ER) 409,867 66,377 (41,138) (2,407) 432,699
Interest income ﬂ,%lljl)\ 2,219 1,274 25 127 3,645
Finance costs g A (11,951)
Unallocated corporate expenses AR ER 5 (19,326)
Profit before tax BBt i £ 405,067
Other segment information: HAbs HER
Impairment loss on trade and other 2 5 T ECAh e QSR TR i
receivables, net g 30,591 = = = 30,591
Interest expense FILEBH 9,666 1,234 - 305 11,205
Depreciation and amortisation s By 21,066 3,185 24 4,236 28,511
Share of losses of associates MG F s 1R (4,298) (380) (34,092) = (38,770)
Share of losses of joint ventures ey egied | - - (1,069) - (1,069)
Income tax expense Fr BB 52 61,727 16,820 9 = 78,556
Year ended 31 December 2017 ®EZZ—-L¥E+ZH
=+ —HILEE
Revenue from external customers KESREF ZHA 1,461,455 132,819 7,497 11,304 1,613,075
Segment profit/ (loss) SRR (R 389,900 66,157 (13,364) 3,086 445,779
Interest income ZI"JEJHU\ 1,238 76 32 900 2,246
Finance costs A R (14,931)
Unallocated corporate expenses RSB X (15,524)
Profit before tax W od v A 417,570
Other segment information: JHAb G R
Allowance for: UV TF &2 B
doubtful other receivables Hib e 5B R E 334 1,000 = = 1,334
doubtful trade receivables JEW S 5 M SR 13,002 S = s 13,002
Interest expense FILEBH 9,106 1,790 S 313 11,209
Depreciation and amortisation I8 e 19,074 9,476 35 1,875 94,460
Impairment loss on investments HEEARARE
in associates WA = = 4,875 = 4,875
Share of (losses) /profit of JREA T s ) (E‘}’fﬁ)/
associates i Al (4,249) (714) 1,226 - (8,787)
Share of losses of joint ventures R egied | - - (773) - (773)
Income tax expense Pt BB 5 60,054 16,010 16 = 76,080

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment assets:

Manufacture
and sale of
electronic fire

10. 4 #6ERH(%)

BB BEEZER

equipment Tourism  Investment All other
B RHE  development holding segments Total
BT REERRE REER B s At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT  AREFT AR¥Fx  AR¥FTi  AR%Tx
At 31 December 2018 I Syl Y|
=t+—H
Segment assets NEE 2,182,518 331,140 879,964 25,068 3,418,690
Unallocated corporate assets ANELEERE
Property, plant and equipment ERY T 6,790
Cash and cash equivalents H e RBE%ED 14,387
Others Hi 28,849
50,026
Total assets ML 3,468,716
Segment assets including: IR e A
Investments in associates RS AT Z & 17,567 196,840 453,220 = 667,627
Investments in joint ventures RAEBAEZNE - - 253,392 - 253,392
Additions to non-current assets REEREYEE 37,732 1,296 38,461 316 77,805
At 31 December 2017 [ S o Y|
=t+—H
Segment assets IR 1,785,444 984,845 1,061,105 99,477 3,110,871
Unallocated corporate assets KL GRE
Property, plant and equipment ES G 7,493
Cash and cash equivalents e LHEZEY 45,274
Others Hitr 16,913
69,680
Total assets g 3,180,551
Segment assets including: ARG R
Investments in associates REE ARG 21,366 197,220 466,280 = 685,366
Investments in joint ventures REBRELRY - - 316,421 = 316,421
Additions to non-current assets RERNE YR 96,305 873 126,119 = 993,997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. 4R RH(4H)
Geographical information: HEER
Revenue Non-current assets
A B &
2018 2017 2018 2017

—F-N\E —“FT-bF ZFNE “FTLF
RMB’000  RMB’000 ~ RMB’000  RMB’000
ARMTR ARWTIE ARWTIH ARWTT

PRC except Hong Kong P ORELE s ) 1,894,772 1,601,226 1,210,395 1,283,755
The United States e 10,649 11,841 12,718 16,257
Canada JIlIE N 177 = 60,858 63,135
Others HiAh 129 8 48 =

1,905,727 1,613,075 1,284,019 1,363,147

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based b [ OB RE g ATIARE R T AE
on the locations of the customers. Hh o
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, revenue wEE _—E - )EE-FE—LHE+H
from any single external customer does not attribute to 10% =+ —HIEEE > RE I FEF I
or more of the Group’s revenue. 15 2 Wi i AN 1 2t A A W i 2 10 % B LA
koo
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. RUE A
2018 2017
ZE )\ TE L4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRWT 70 AT

Interest on bank and other loans SRAT K HoAth 25 30F) B 11,205 11,209
Net foreign exchange loss A1 HEE 5 15 4 A 746 3,722
11,951 14,931

JR AR T RRT RN ARAT ZF—)UE4EHR 187



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. P Bt b %

2018 2017
—F )\ —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHETIE AT

Current tax R 38
Provision for the year AR A
PRC I
Underprovision in prior year T AR BE B AN
PRC H
Deferred tax (note 33) PEIEFLIE (P 5133)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 since the Group had

no assessable profit for both years.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Three subsidiaries of the Company had been certified by
the relevant PRC authorities as high technology enterprises.
Pursuant to the Income Tax Law in the PRC, the three
subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax

(“EIT”) at a rate of 15% effective for three years within 2019.
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81,372 76,604

141 1,195
81,513 77,799
(2,957) (1,719)
78,556 76,080

WA e —F— )\EK - F—L4E
TOA =+ HILEEFREEAEH
PR P e
R i 1) o

LAt 3 75 SR v P < BEIE T AR SR A SR
B ACE SEB T B R 2 BUTIE D - e R
LR 3% % B 2 AT B R R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Other subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are

generally subject to income tax on their taxable income at a

tax rate of 26% (2017: 25%).

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an assessment
demanding final tax for the year of assessment 2004,/2005
from the IRD. The amount of this assessment was
HK$47,852,000 (equivalent to RMB41,928,000) in which
HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to RMB41,837,000) relating to a
claim for gain on disposal of long term investment recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2004. On 25 February
2013, the IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary informing
that the case has been forwarded to the Appeals Section of
the IRD for further processing. No provision was made as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the directors opine that
the subsidiary has strong grounds and sufficient evidence
to defend the capital nature of the gain. Moreover, the IRD
regarded the assessment as protective action and allowed
those part of tax relating to the contended capital gain to be
held over unconditionally pending the outcome of objection.
The directors opine that the action of the IRD highly
correlates with timing factor because the year of assessment

2004/2005 became statutorily time-barred by the end of

March 2011.

Should the assessment regarding the claim for the gain be
finally judged against the subsidiary, current tax liabilities

and corresponding income tax expense of HK$47,748,000

(equivalent to RMB41,837,000) will be recognised.

12. Frfs Bt b 2 (%)

AR A H B ST 2 A B B 2 A
JHAE R B A HE B 25% (—F — &
4 25% ) AR PTR L ©

A F AR RN R — R B A
WERIBLES R RN R AR
BE R R K B B B T o FERL &
B Ky 47,852,000 5 o0 (A E R A R
41,928,000 7G ) > H 147,748,000 ¥ I
(HHE i N B 41,887,00000 ) BLAR = —
TENEFH =+ — B IHEE R
M ERBREZ IR HEAR - 7
ZER-CZEZAZTRA s BRI
Wi 28 w3 0 > e A BRI T AR
LR R EARAAEE— R o R
E YR /NI BN R RS B P&
Bl s 2GR R REGE > O R
—ERZE—LFETZA =T —HAE
W o MAh > BUES R A BERL IR AT
B A EARZ TR E R 25
SYRLIE > EAR R B FERL A R A R
W% - EHEB PG R ZATH EEAER
R &R > Ty =R F N 2%
HREBAEE R F—— F RO E %
FERERR o

A7 TR H 3R e i 10 S e A ) e R
JGARIAF] > HfETR 47,748,000 76 (M
HNR#41,837,00070) 2 RIBIBIE A
& S AHBR BT AR BE B S -

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FrfaBeb 2 (4)

JIr 55t B S BEL IR 3 i v A R I A ST
BB RAEZ HIRIT ¢

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the PRC Enterprise

Income Tax rate is as follows:

2018 2017
ZE )\ SE—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS T ANR¥T 5T

Profit before tax 4B /i v A 405,067 417,570
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% %[5 (A T {55 K 25%

(2017: 25%) (ZF L4 25%)

FTEZBUA 101,267 104,392

Tax effect of share of losses of associates R A e 8 ) e 1R 2 B s 9,693 509
Tax effect of share of losses of joint JREA 788 A S R 1R 2 B 5

ventures 267 193
Tax effect of income that is not taxable A HESRBL A 2 B R 2 (639) (4,865)
Tax effect of expenses that are not ANTT IR S 2 BT R

deductible 3,817 4,309
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not B AR R MR BB e 1 2 Bl

previously recognised W5 5 (7 (1,153)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised e R B 5 e 18 2 B 5 2 18,736 17,076
Overprovision in current year ASAE B R R A - (118)
Underprovision in prior year BTEAR BEHHE A 2 141 1,195
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries T LAt ] 2 A L B

operating in other jurisdictions GIUNGE e A 199 191
Tax effect of tax concession ol TEL Ut e 2 B o 2 (45,676) (41,312)
Super deduction of research and WF8% B S 2 AR AN

development costs (9,242) (4,337)
Income tax expense BIRETN 5 78,556 76,080

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13, ACAE B i Al
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ A H AR E R (FEA) BLF
(crediting) the following: £TE -
2018 2017
ZE)N\E e S e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T8 AR¥T T
Impairment loss on trade and other B T e JEL At 1 WA R T ok (e 4R
receivables, net R AR 30,591 12,149
Amortisation of other intangible assets H AT & N B RAE 2
and investments in film productions Gy 3,470 2,147
Auditors’ remuneration % BRI 45 1,310 1,780
Cost of inventories sold EEAE AR 1,012,427 831,662
Depreciation PreE 25,720 292,998
Loss/(gain) from changes in fair value A W) (5 ) B B S L
less costs to sell of biological assets A28, (as) 3,143 (3,352)
Loss on disposal and written off of R RS ~ B Bt
property, plant and equipment i 53 46
Operating leases charges in respect of b R 2 RS T B S
land and buildings 20,998 18,487
Research and development expenditure 5T M BH % BA 52 92,771 66,340
Impairment loss on investments in Hga AR SE 2 BiEE R
associates = 4,875

OB B A 645 B DA AT 5 A
R #62,605,00070 ( ~FE—-b4E : AR
55,558,00070) > %% AT AR b SO
AP 5 > 4 o

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation
of approximately RMB62,605,000 (2017: RMB55,558,000)
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately

above.

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

14. 1 B A B 2

2018 2017

—EF N —ER LA

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ANBRHF T

Salaries, bonuses and allowances > LAT M EERh 221,454 177,801
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R AR A A 5k 44,219 43,903
265,673 221,704

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
did not include any directors (2017: nil) whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments of the five (2017: five) highest paid individuals

are set out below:

AR A AR T T 4% v M AR R R
fEfT#E S (% — L4 ) > Hie

RN ESCRI 2 o A (.

x5

%

—LA ) Fm AR 2 B

T

2018 2017

—E )N\ eSS e

RMB’000 RMB’000

NG ST ANR¥ET T

Basic salaries and allowances FEAR 4 M RG 5,869 5,274
Discretionary bonus Ty 15 A6 4T 2,970 3,150
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAE A S A 2k 590 539
9,429 8,963
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. 18 B AP S7 (%48)
(CONTINUED)
The emoluments fell within the following band: MR

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to RMB876,000 to
RMB1,314,000) (2017:
RMB836,000 to RMB1,254,000)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,314,000 to
RMB1,752,000) (2017:
RMB1,254,000 to RMB1,672,000)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,752,000 to
RMB2,191,000) (2017:
RMB1,672,000 to RMB2,090,000)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
(equivalent to RMB2,191,000 to
RMB2,629,000) (2017:
RMB2,090,000 to RMB2,508,000)

Number of individuals

AN
2018 2017
ZF )N\ —EF

1,000,001 #5775 %1,500,000% 7T

(R i N B #876,0007T &2

NE%1,814,00070)

(=ZF—L4 « AR¥836,00070

& N ¥1,254,00070) 1 1
1,500,001 #5745 2,000,000% 7T

(FR A N H1,314,000C %

N E¥51,752,0000C)

(ZF—L4 : AR¥1,254,00000

£ NR¥1,672,00000) 1 2
2,000,001 5 70 E 2,500,000 IC

(R R AL H1,752,000 70 5

A ERH2,191,00000)

(=& —+L4 - AR¥1,672,0007T

% NR%2,090,00070) 2 1
2,500,001 45 0% 3,000,000 7T

R A N H92,191,00070 %

AR #2,629,0007T)

(ZF L4 AR¥2,090,00070

& NRH2,508,00070) 1 1

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. #HHELEHNE
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) FEHEEEIEMWE
The remuneration of every director and supervisor in HER LB EEEESR R R
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of PN/ = ) 7 RN D R B
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out I
below:
Retirement
benefit
Salaries scheme

and  Discretionary  contributions

Fees allowances bonus BN Total
wa A Rk LA it 3k At
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(i AR ARWTx AR ARBFx  ARETR

Name of director EEA
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong RET A 272 556 - 43 871
Ms. Zheng Zhong LS 220 440 - 125 785
Mr. Ip Wing Wai R 133 - - - 133
Mr. Ni Jinlei et 80 873 - - 953
Ms. Xue Li [ 80 = = = 80
Mr. Xiang Lei R - - - - -
Mr. Shao Jiulin YIRS s 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Juncai BRA T 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lin Yan iyt (iii) 33 - - - 33
Mr. Shen Wai WHEE (iv) 47 = = = 47
Mr. Li Chonghua T 80 - = = 80
1,105 1,869 - 168 3,142

Name of supervisor 3
Mr. Pan Yudong EFREE (iv) 29 - - = 29
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing HEE L1 (iv) 29 - - = 29
Mr. Fan Yimin TRt 50 - - - 50
Prof. Yang Jinguan e BAR (iii) 21 - - - 21
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BT A kL 50 - - - 50
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BESEE (iif) 21 = = = 21
Ms. Zhou Min Rt 50 = = = 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2018 “F- G 1,355 1,869 - 168 3,392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. HEHLEHEMS ()
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) TEZFNEEMS ()
Retirement
benefit
Salaries scheme

and  Discretionary  contributions

Fees allowances bonus BRI Total
i B R Wt TEAL aHEIfE At
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ik ARETT  AR®TT  ARMFT  ARETT  AR¥TR

Name of director EHES
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong RETEA 270 541 - 41 852
Ms. Zheng Zhong WEL 220 400 - 114 734
Mr. Ip Wing Wai BRI 207 = = = 207
Mr. Ni Jinlei et 80 864 - = 944
Ms. Xue Li (35 80 = = = 80
Mr. Zhao Xuedong HER KA (i) 33 - - = 33
Mr. Xiang Lei HE RS (i) = = = = =
Mr. Shao Jiulin LlyiNS 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Juncai EXYR s 80 - = = 80
Mr. Lin Yan Mgk 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua BEERE 80 - - - 80
1,210 1,805 S 155 3,170
Name of supervisor B2
Mr. Fan Yimin Rt 50 = = = 50
Prof. Yang Jinguan tie B 50 = S S 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi B TA kL 50 - - - 50
Mr. Lu Qingfeng AEUWEL 50 = = = 50
Ms. Zhou Min Rt 50 s = = 50
250 = = = 950
Total for 2017 Y SNt 1,460 1,805 = 155 8,420
Note: (i) Resigned on 24 May 2017 fsk : 1) MoF—LFEHHA M
H BT
(ii) Appointed on 31 July 2017 (i) MR-F—LFELA=1+—
H ¥ Z AT
(iii) Retired on 31 May 2018 (i) A F—NFHH =+ —
HRAT
(iv) Appointed on 31 May 2018 (iv) A= F— N\HFHH=+—
H ¥ Z AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

15.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into between
the Company and its executive directors, the Company’s
executive directors are entitled to an aggregate amount
of discretionary bonuses of not more than 5% of the
consolidated profit after tax but before the provision of

such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments

during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

15. EFELREHEME ()

(a)

(b)

o (A1)

MRIEA 7] BT AT 3L 2 iR
Ba#  AAFBTESEAEES
BB EBBLAR ((ER R AL
HIl) &5 5 i A5 % 2 WY AEAL

BE - F— R -F—LH4E+
A=+ —H IR > W
= B BRI R AT AT A 2
P -

BE-E - ERFLFE+T
A=+ —H IR ASE [ m)
AT o] 7 =l B S S AT AT - A
B 51 A A S5 B sl fin B IRp 2 8
OBl A 2y TR A

HERERRY - R HZHEAHE
3

A w MR S A B B S T SLAT A
TP AR B P AT B ] A7 AR T AR 2
R 2 BN LR
A ORHE R (A B 4% B ) 19
HRRLG ~ HPREH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and

vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The Group is required to contribute certain percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central pension
scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions

under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to

contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB147,029,000
(2017: RMB170,668,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,378,720,000 (2017: 1,369,157,000) in
issue during the year. No adjustment has been made to the
basic profit per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017. Therefore, the calculation of

the diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings

per share.

16.

17.

N YR

7% 45 [ AR B 7 v 5 1 A B A w0
FURTA A WA A IR B R M — TE 5
AREEFHE ([ )) o AR%EEY
MRS B R TIREF S A TE Y
5%wHE > FELEH RS SEABRR
1,500% 75 - 1 HAE B A7 A SRR wt
Z R B — MR E ST -

AL 2 v B R B T 2 Bl T BUM
AT 2 h B R BTl o AL ZE
SRR G R BB R B A S R T &
Z AT H A AR R AR A o i
I B FURSEASE B T A B R R AR
1 B 2 B RAR R 2 B o ez h SR R4
FEEI > ASE M 2 SRS 2 AR Rt
# T P K o

AT &AW A & SRS
AL H A AR AR It B - Sl R % AR 4
REMERRXNERREEF N ETH
gr LA AR

B A
I M A 1 W 2 )

A%\ AR N E AL R R AR B R AR
PEA N FI A N AL R AR B U RN R
#147,029,0007C ( . —-E4F : AR
170,668,00075) & 4F 1A T #5473 48 B
HESF- 141 4501,878,720,000 ( & — L4 -
1,369,157,000) B 515 o A0 40 k&= —
F—NER_F—LFE+_H=T—H
1E 47 B 22 A R A U R AR A R o T
W > F A A A 2 R B G T 2 R
AR o

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. 3k ~ Wm Mkt

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
and office
Machinery  equipment
Frechold  Leasehold ad  HEWE Motor  Construction
land land  Buildings  equipment %[ fkff vehicles  in progress Total
AAEELE  HELE By BEARE  RRARE i FRIE it
RMB'0OOO  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFE  AREFX  AREFX  ARBTx  ARWTn  AREFx  AREFR ARETR
Cost Bk
At January 2017 RoE-tE-A-H 17,892 15,620 158,631 55,808 21,826 4915 29,826 874,608
Additions E - - - 5,249 1,388 685 69,521 4,843
Transfers 2 - - 49,485 1,268 898 - (51,631) -
Disposals and written off i Tl - g s (233) ) (1,354) = (1,616)
Exchange differences ErzR (106) - (468) (203) (36) (17 31 (481)
At 31 December 2017 and F‘ $+ A=t-BR
1 January 2018 ~\E—=A—H 17,786 15,620 207,648 59,975 24,049 74,229 48,047 447,354
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uﬁ FE] WE/A
(note 37(a)) (H3ks7(a)) - - - 17 2 8 - 210
Additions TE - - 105 5,464 4,854 100 19,681 30,804
Transfers 2 - - 21,862 2,32 89,092 - (63,278) =
Disposals and written off %&Wﬁ = = = (800) (683) (412) - (1,89)
Exchange differences Ei=E (209) - (797) 177 622 14 (1,002) (L,195)
At31 December 2018 BoZ—NE+-AZ+-H 17,571 15,620 228,818 67,312 67,954 74,609 5,448 475,338
Accumulated depreciation ZaHE
At1 January 2017 RoZ-tE-H-H - 1218 21,299 18,120 16,135 57,376 - 114,148
Charge for the year R - 992 10,090 6,13 2,430 4051 - 92,998
Disposals and written off HE Tl - - - (221) (25) (1,062) - (1,308)
Exchange differences EiEs - - (62) (173) (17) (10) = (262)
At 31 December 2017 and REF-tEFZA=+-0R
1 January 2018 ~“F-\E—f—H - 1,510 31,32 23,861 18,523 60,355 - 135,576
Charge for the year Est - 299 8,508 6,906 6,178 3,836 - 2,720
Transfer i - - (4,412) (691) 5,103 - - -
Disposals and written off RS = = = (784) (677) (267) - (1,728)
Exchange differences EiZR - - 1 124 (10) 2 - 142
At31 December 2018 RE-NEFZAZA-H - 1,802 35,430 29,416 29,117 63,945 - 159,710
Carrying amount Tl
At 31 December 2018 REE-NEFZAZF-H 17,5m 15,818 193,388 57,89 38,837 10,664 5,448 315,628
At31 December 2017 0 S 55 i R e 17,786 14,110 176,321 36,114 5,26 15,874 48,047 311,778

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3 ~ W Keak Ml (%)
(CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2018 the carrying amount of property, plant WoE—/FE+H=1+—H Y%
and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank W M A 2 BRI E BRI 1E A A
loans amounted to RMB107,541,000 (2017: RMB123,398,000) RERAT R AR - AREHAAR
(note 32). #107,541,00000 (—F—L4F : AR

123,398,0007C) (Kff5E32) -

19. GOODWILL 19. W&
2018 2017
“F )\ —F—tHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWT 70 ANRMT T
Cost BRA
At 1 January w—H—H 20,420 20,584
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary o M — ] A 2 ) O E A
(note 37(a)) (fft5E87(a)) 2,086 =
Exchange differences fE 5, 22 52 134 (164)
At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 22,640 20,420
Accumulated impairment losses H T AR 18
At 1 January r—H—H 2,659 2,823
Exchange differences [ 50,75 5 134 (164)
At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H 2,793 2,659
Carrying amount R TH 4L
At 31 December wrZH=+—H 19,847 17,761
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at T SET A DF A A5 1 PR 2 A A R PR 0 T &
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from IR R A B S A
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill A o PR T AR Tt o7 KA e

had been allocated as follows:

2018 2017
—F N SR
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHET 70 ANR¥T T

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment segment

Multiple units without significant goodwill

i X5 BT By ek

Fagis 19,643 17,557
SIf7 40 K R 2 25 B 204 204
19,847 17,761

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

19. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are referred to past experience and current market
expectation and/or demand or based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which
the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is applicable.

Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on past

practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the

most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for

the next five (2017: five) years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment segment and the production and sales of wine and
related business are 19% (2017: 18%) and 15% (2017: 13%)

respectively.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

19. B (4)

B 4 7 A A 2 T g ] < T AR A T
BEFEEEE - HHERTZER
BB R BLR - W& - MINZ T
CREVIN ¢ < W USRI Ne S )
B 7 85 36 W B ] 4B 0 0 < 7 A LA
2 E TR\ B 2w A ) BR A HI L R LA R
HEBLR o R A2 iR 1F AR BR K R A T
DUTEI B/ 75 SR AR 452 B < o 2 BT
KO8 SE5 T AE 1 18 2 - R E IR R
RatB (B EEH) - BREBHM L&
SERIAR 808 1 3R B L% i 355 9% e T 30

P d

JE °

AREFAREREEMMEZ KR IE(
T—L4FE 0 FAR) G B B B 5 AR
BAeRTEY -

MDA B A SR Bt K8 B B TN B
A 43 0 B A T G R R Y S AH B 2
5 T A5 TR B4 R 2 BRBLAT L 25 19%
(ZF—+L4% 0 18%) K15% (—=F—+
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. I Ath TR B
Transport
operation Rights and Computer  Customer
license patents Copyrights  softwares list Total
230 Iz e

mEME Lyl Wl G ERAE B
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARMTE ARMTL ARWTT ARMTL ARMTT ARMTL

Cost BA
At 1 January 2017 RZF—tFE—~H—H 30,000 80 3,208 2,741 7,631 43,660
Additions Ha - - - 1,753 - 1,753
Written off s - - - 3) - (3)
Exchange differences T it S S S (13) (443) (456)
At 31 December 2017 and RR—LAE
1 January 2018 TZA=Zt—HR

“E - NE—-H—H 30,000 80 3,208 4,478 7,188 44,954
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — [ 8 )

(note 37(a)) (337 (a)) - - - 2 s 2
Additions s - - - 551 - 551
Exchange differences BEHER - - - 15 362 377
At 31 December 2018 R%— )\

+ZH=+—H 30,000 80 3,208 5,046 7,550 45,884
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 January 2017 R —tE—~H—H 30,000 67 855 609 5,491 37,022
Amortisation for the year A S - 10 321 627 1,189 2,147
Written off s - - - (&) - (3)
Exchange differences EHER - - - (8) (358) (366)
At 31 December 2017 and W oF—LF

1 January 2018 TZAZT—HE

“HE - N\NF—-H—H 30,000 1 1,176 1,225 6,322 38,800
Amortisation for the year A JE 5 - 3 321 1,008 439 1,771
Exchange differences HE 2 - - - 6 335 341
At 31 December 2018 RZZ— N\

+ZH=+—H 30,000 80 1,497 2,239 7,096 40,912
Carrying amount M i
At 31 December 2018 =B\

+=ZA=+—H - - 1,711 2,807 454 4,972
At 31 December 2017 A E— LA

+ZH=Z+—H - 3 2,032 3,253 866 6,154

JRAER T RRTREBMARAT ZZ—)\E4EH 901



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

21.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

The Group’s transport operation license represents a public
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the

Group’s Tourism development segment.

The customer list represents customer relationship acquired
through business combination. The remaining amortisation

period of the customer list is one years (2017: two years).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of wine
and related products. At 31 December 2018, the Group owns
7 acres (2017: 7 acres) of vines. During the year, the Group
harvested approximately 11 tons (2017: 13 tons) of grapes,
which had a fair value less costs to sell of RMB168,000 (2017:
RMB166,000) (determined at the time of harvest) with
reference to their market prices. The fair value of the Group’s
biological assets as at 31 December 2018 has been determined
based on income approach and taken into account the
adjustments to harvest profile, cost incurred, cultivation area,

and expected yield of the biological assets.

20. FoAib JE B i (A
2% 8 T 22 500 AL RS 7 o
A BB K 5 AR i e 6 A 2 B A
HE o RZIEREE T PR AN S I 2 il ik
B4 «

BRI A O T & 5 B
B BREZEZ BT HEINAIE(CF
—hE L 24F) -

21. W& E

AR AE AR SR AT M A B E 2 R E K
BHEEER c RF— NETZH=1—
H> REMBERTAE(ZZ—LF 7
ONVED) IR o AR 7 45 [ A 7 W AR
HATIMI (T —L4F - 130) » XA
(B0 W08 65 A 2y AN R 168,00000 (=%
— L4 ANRM166,00070) (i A% Ry
MfE) - Hh2EHENTE - &A%
MY EER T~/ F+HA=+—
A2 AT EREBRA LR E > WEFFA
HAYEEM WS - BTEEZ
7%~ T [ R T [ s R

Reconciliation of carrying amount of vines: 7] 25 A R T L 2 IR
2018 2017
ZE N\ it S R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PNERY o
At 1 January w—H—H 4,276 1,267

(Loss) /gain from changes in fair value OTAE S B W B A 2

less costs to sell (E518) Wi (3,143) 3,352
Decrease due to harvest AT WS 5 T 9 7 (168) (166)
Exchange differences BfE 022 %8 93 (177)
At 31 December Wt —_HA=+—H 1,058 4,276




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21.

The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to its

vines:

Climate and other risks

The Group’s vines are exposed to the risk of damage from
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces. The
Group has extensive processes in place aimed at monitoring
and mitigating those risks, including regular vines health

inspections and industry pest and disease surveys.

Y i (4])

7% S [ T 36 SRR B DL 2 A A B R HL At
JEUBg

SRtk B LA L B

A S ] 2 A T DY SR B AL - R

T~ KSR A B AR T R R A
%°$%@E% WL > & 15 B R
WD w25 S B > 1 R A 0 T A Y

il B DL B AT 0 7 B ek B

# o

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. RBEARZHRE
2018 2017
—E—)\4 e S
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R0 PNERY o
Unlisted investments: JEEHKE -
Share of net assets AL 667,627 685,366

The amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December

2018 are as follows:

HEW,” (REAR) B 2 ) R T SRS
G B I B [ 5 2 KA

AEBMP -F—/NE+_A=+—H2Z
FEEE AT

Place of Registered Percentage of
Name incorporation capital equity interest Principal activities
ik G WAE af B A WER B ARG vy ke RESEH
Direct Indirect
HiE Il 4%

Beijing Jade Bird Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000,000 40% 1% Investment in
Hengsheng unlisted PRC
Investment enterprises or
Fund (Limited growing entities
Partnership)

(“HS Fund”)

A SiE R il Bl ALRH1,000,000,000 7% Fep Bk L3

(AREH) (MakEs]) R R AR
B&

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

Lake Construction
Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Songya Lake

Construction”)

RIS RS EA R

Al (R 2t ])

Chuangi (Hunan)
Enterprise
Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Chuanqi

Enterprise”)

e () ER R AR A

(A

Beijing Xinzhongrui
Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd. (“Xinzhongrui
ve?)

R AR B A R

Al (& E Al )

Shanghai Shengjin
Venture Capital
Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Shengjin
ve”)

LIRS AR EA A

(I L 4Rl ))

HERY

Hunan, the PRC

H 80 it

Beijing, the PRC

SHC BB

Shanghai, the PRC

HE i

A E#105,150,0007C

RMB250,000,000

AR #250,000,0007C

RMB250,000,000

A E#950,000,0007C

RMB200,000,000

A E#9200,000,0007C
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. JRWBRE A H Z $E (A1)
(CONTINUED)
Place of Registered Percentage of

Name incorporation capital equity interest Principal activities
Eq il il 31 3 kA A WA ARER Fi b EBEEHE

Direct Indirect

H#% IH £

Changsha Songya Changsha, the PRC RMB105,150,000 = 28% Land development

and urban
infrastructure
project
development

o b B T
HIEH %R

= 29% Project

development

JAH %R

- 25% Investment in
unlisted PRC
enterprises or
growing entities

ESL T EIN IR S
BHRTEEZ
&&

25% 20% Investment in
unlisted PRC
enterprises or

growing entities

ESL T EIN IS
BHRTEEZ
B&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. JRBRE A Z 8K (4)

(CONTINUED)
The following tables show information on the associates that N RGN AN A S R R 2 B A
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted Al Z AR o 2B R ARG BB i
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity RS TR AR o P 2 51 BH5 GBI 22
method. The summarised financial information presented is Ty AR 8 W) 22 A W U T Sk o Y L) B
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates. Bk o
Name HS Fund Songya Lake Construction
ik e 2 FAHE W

2018 2017 2018 2017

—FNE —“T-tHE | ZF-NANF —“FT-LF

% of ownership interests/voting AREEEREA 2 YA RERE
rights held by the Group i/ BEHEE I 41%/41%  41%/41% 47%/47%  47%/47%

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE  ARWTT ARETR ARWTL

At 31 December m+—H=1+—H
Non-current assets Fuish G E 104,769 282,829 1,258,482 807,350
Current assets MENEE 5,248,224 5,642,340 1,889,502 1,984,802
Non-current liabilities I E) A (1,038,738)  (1,609,354)  (1,830,000) (400,000)
Current liabilities T A (3,325,087)  (3,230,927)  (1,166,451)  (2,245,643)
Net assets FEE 989,168 1,084,888 151,533 146,509
Less: NCI R I TR £ (240,528) (248,164) = =
Net assets attributable to owners WAL EE 748,640 836,724 151,533 146,509
Group’s share of net assets AR EE 306,942 343,057 70,614 68,273
Goodwill g - = 9,310 9,310
Other adjustments Fofth 4 8 (62) 15 3 3
Group’s share of carrying 7% B T A A R T

amount of interests 306,380 343,072 79,927 77,586
Year ended 31 December: ®E2+-H=+—H

JI: )

Revenue N 665,346 1,951 10,379 8,123
(Loss) /profit for the year ARAERE (BE1) s F (80,374) 12,345 5,025 993
Other comprehensive income Hofth 2 T 45 (15,346) (36,350) - -
Total comprehensive income ek ki (95,720) (24,005) 5,025 993
Dividends received from B Wil 2 R i B

associates - _ _ _

PRI T RRTREBMARAT =48R 905



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REEEAFZHE ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Xinzhongrui VC Chuangi Enterprise
HH £ v 5 A4 BAEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“FNE ZF -t ZF N _Z—hF

% of ownership interests/voting AL B 2 YA RERE

rights held by the Group /R E L 26%/25%  25%/25% 49%/49%  49%/49%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETE AR¥TT AR¥TRE AR%®TT

At 31 December RE+ZA=+—H
Non-current assets s G E 283,722 167,527 91,700 93,765
Current assets TG 32,011 108,991 419,687 346,286
Non-current liabilities FETE & S (29,303) (19,080) (164,930) (92,000)
Current liabilities e N=R - (8,750) (114,170) (109,843)
Net assets G 286,430 253,688 232,287 238,208
Add: share capital not injected s HAlBCR R A

by other shareholders Pl TN - - 5,000 5,000
Net assets attributable to owners HAH NG G 286,430 253,688 237,287 243,208
Group’s share of net assets AREEMETEE 71,607 63,422 116,271 119,172
Other adjustments Al 3 = = 15 15
Group’s share of carrying A oA

amount of interests i 1 71,607 63,422 116,286 119,187
Year ended 31 December: ®EzE+-H=1+—H

AR -

Revenue e A - - . _
Loss for the year AL R (6,557) (5,844) (5,920) (3,158)
Other comprehensive income Hof 2 1 i 25 39,299 (61,474) = =
Total comprehensive income el etk 32,742 (67,318) (5,920) (3,158)
Dividends received from B m) R

associates

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REEEAFZHE ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Shanghai Shengjin VC
% o3>30t Eils
2018 2017
&R )\ ZF LA
% of ownership interests/voting rights ALE B HE A 2 A RERE
held by the Group ti,/ TR REE AL 45%/45% 45%/45%
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG T ANRET T
At 31 December w+_HA=+—H
Non-current assets JE i B & 100,022 98,749
Current assets VB 43,748 8,220
Non-current liabilities FEGLE AR (8,080) (1,614)
Current liabilities i B B (4,000) (4,000)
Net assets attributable to owners WA N i EE 131,690 101,355
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests A< [ 4 {4 1 £ B 1 (i 59,261 45,610
Year ended 31 December: =2+ _-_H=+—H
IEAEBE -
Revenue A - -
Loss for the year A JE i 1 (3,133) (3,741)
Other comprehensive income HoAth 2 45 (46,533) (6,205)
Total comprehensive income e E (49,666) (9,946)
Dividends received from associates B S A F R — -

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

292. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of
the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are

accounted for using the equity method.

22.

W A w2 BE ()

T AR HAS G T 53 A A T e A
R 25 15 AR g A 2 R o

2018 2017
—F )N\ —F LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN T ANR¥T T
At 31 December: RH+_HA=+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests R o R 1 (L 33,666 36,489

Year ended 31 December: BET A=+ —HILERE :
Loss for the year AAE 18 (15,373) (20,455)
Other comprehensive income At 2 T i 4 - 1,190
Total comprehensive income 2T i 45 AR (15,373) (19,265)

At 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB64,174,000 (2017: RMB906,548,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

T EF A= —H o AREM
o 28/l LN RO RHE 2 A B 2 8R4 T
BB 4 G Ay N H64,174,00000 (%
—t4F ¢ AR¥906,548,00070)  #F A
SN R SN QR DN VR i = P
A FRAR) Je (5 e ~ 5 THE % A e A

FAE ) HLR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. RAEBREZRE
2018 2017
—F )\ —ER L
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRWT 70 AT

Unlisted investments: FELHHE :
Share of net assets TEAL R 253,392 316,421
Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2018 are RE@MEEPER —-F - NE+ _H
as follows: =t —HZFEE
Capital Percentage
Place of contributions/issued of ownership
Name incorporation and paid up capital interest Principal activities
%/ TR A e
kA il I 3 3 2 BB A MRE AL EEEH
SBI & BDJB China Fund, Cayman Islands USD73,436,598 50% Investment in unlisted
L.P. (“SBI China”) companies and real
estate assets and
companies in the PRC
SBI & BDJB China Fund,L.P. FZHE 73,436,598 70 BEF LM RTIL KB
(TSBI China]) Ho e B E S /A R
SBI & BDJB Management Cayman Islands 100,000 ordinary shares of 50% Provision of investment
Limited USDI each management and
advisory services
SBI & BDJB Management B2 R 100,000 i Hi{H13£ 70 2 B4R A T I A 5
Limited gl
The following tables show information on the joint venture TERINEHAEHRN S EERZ 554D
that is material to the Group. This joint venture is accounted EZER o O ENENGS B
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity DAMEZ5 92 ABE o Fr 231 BA %5 R 35 T
method. The summarised financial information presented is ARE A8 2 2 5 ok BSR4 e 1) B 75
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint venture. W o

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

Current financial liabilities (excluding
trade and other payables and provisions)

included in current liabilities

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding
trade and other payables and provisions)

included in non-current liabilities

A A B AR 2 B 5

BN EER S L HAL

JEAST I R 4344

FEAJERE) B IR RS

LLE ST NOR iR =070

JFC A B AR S5 R 484

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBREZRE ()
(CONTINUED)
Name SBI China
1% SBI China
2018 2017
&R )\ ZF LA
% of ownership interests/voting rights AL R 2 W REHE
held by the Group %,/ R E 50%/50% 50%/50%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR PNERY o
At 31 December: wW+_H=+—H:
Non-current assets JE i B & 633,720 816,076
Current assets T Eh & e 8,172 1,809
Non-current liabilities FEGLE AR (14,156) (29,777)
Current liabilities B B (308) (290)
Net assets & 627,428 787,818
Less: NCI Tl IR RO 2 (121,379) (156,701)
Net assets attributable to owners WA AR EE 506,049 631,117
Group’s share of carrying amount of A B B34 R i O T
interests 252,750 315,222
Cash and cash equivalents included in REATLE) R 2 B X
current assets e ZEY 8,060 1,743



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBREZRE ()
(CONTINUED)
Name SBI China
oA SBI China
2018 2017
ZF )N\ e S oS
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T N

Year ended 31 December: BET-HA=Z+—HILFEE -

Revenue A = =
Depreciation and amortisation P85 Rk - -
Interest income FLEA - =

Interest expense FE B 3L - -

Income tax expense BT 558 B 52 - -

Loss for the year AAEJE 5 18 (1,111) (950)
Other comprehensive income oA A Uk #S (191,870) 143,061

Total comprehensive income A A AR (192,981) 142,111

Dividends received from joint venture ElaERERE - S

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

23. MEBEEIRE (M)

The following table shows the Group’s share of the amounts

T AR HAS G T 53 A A T e A

212

of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using the

equity method.

MR AR BB M -

2018 2017
—F )N\ —F LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AT
At 31 December: B+H+ZA=+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests R o R 1 (L 642 1,199

Year ended 31 December: BET A=+ —HILERE :
Loss for the year AAE R (530) (299)
Other comprehensive income HC At 2 TS i (65) 49
Total comprehensive income 2 T A AR (595) (250)

At 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB67,000 (2017: RMB69,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

Note a:

During the year, SBI China sold its shares in one of the financial
assets at FVTOCI as a result of a takeover offer for cash. The
Group shares 50% of the sale procceds net of tax amounting to
RMB3,577,000 and realised a loss of RMB4,354,000 which had
already been included in OCI. The loss of RMB3,199,000 has been
transferred from financial assets at FVTOCI reserve to retained
profits.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

T EF A= —H o AREM
A EUNREFHEZ A B 2 81T
BB 4 G Ay NRH67,00000 (—FE—+L
0 NRH69,00000) o A AR 505 AL
G A7 (R R LA R A A HLA 451))
B CHEME ~ /85 I B A 5 BT 7 ) KRR o

B 5ta

AEIA > SBI China R %2 £ yig B H 45 b — JE DA
OB R AL 2 T U a6 2 A5 g ) A
IR o AR S B A0 A B 5 I A K TE (FBRBL

Bl N 64,354,000 » % &R E FEA K
fil 2T A o EHR N 3,199,000 E Hi LA
O TE R A 2 T Ui 4 2 B RS A A
BRI A -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

24. INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTIONS 24, NEHHEZH/E
2018 2017
ZE )N\ —E— L4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRWT 70 AT

Cost A

At 1 January w—H—H 11,991 -
Additions during the year AE RN = 11,991
At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 11,991 11,991
Accumulated amortisation 2B

At 1 January w—H—H = =
Amortisation for the year ECRSINE: 3] 1,699 -
At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 1,699 =
Carrying amount JURTTR ;N

At 31 December wt+H=+—H 10,292 11,991
Investments in film productions are stated as cost less BB RN 2 3 i AN e S 8 )
accumulated amortisation. The amount represents BE o B EIAIE N A E B 2 %
investments in co-production of films in China. The oo PE M B A PR AREE
investments are governed by the relevant agreements RN B RETE B 138 2 s B
whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the Hu&EwameEr2 i -

distribution of these films based on the percentage of capital

contributed in the film production projects.

JRAER T RRTREBMARAT ZF—)E4EHR 913
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (2017:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS)

25. DA P EH A Bt 2 i W sk 2 Bt
BEE(—FLE: THRLE

5 )

2018 2017
ZE N\ e S e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T8 AR¥TIT

Equity securities, at fair value AT SR A HE
Listed in Hong Kong (note (i)) e s b Tl (B RE (i) 24,641 48,198
Market value of listed securities RSz E 24,641 48,198

Equity securities, at fair value AT IS FA TETE
Unlisted outside Hong Kong (note (ii)) FWEANE BT (Bf5E i) 110,603 184,408
135,244 232,606

Financial assets at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial

assets) are denominated in the following currencies:

PSP R A At 2 ThT i i 2 BA B
“E b At BB EE) T

G W HE

2018 2017
—E)N\A B+
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWT 70 NG T
RMB AR 110,603 184,408
HK$ o 24,641 48,198
135,244 232,606

Notes: [t 53

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing
prices.

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference to
the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited
and Brilliant Appraisal Limited, independent professional
qualified valuers, derived from estimations of the equity value
by using market approach which makes reference to market
multiples of comparable companies in relevant industries and
markets (2017: comparable transactions). The change of the
approach was because there was a change in valuation technique
as a result of lack of similar transactions in the market.

During the year, the Group has sold part of its listed shares
in Hong Kong with net sale proceeds of RMB2,131,000 and
the Group realised a gain of RMB2,829,000 which had already
been included in OCI. The gain of RMB1,307,000 has been
transferred from financial assets at FVTOCI reserve to retained
profits.

(iii)

f@Tﬂxﬂiié#Z O ST-{E BT {5 27 2
VHE o

I LTI BAS T I 2 N T-{E T 275 5 1
SE il (B T8 T (5 A7 BR 2 7] % MEAE T A
AR AEAT 2 A - BB
Bridg A5 A E A > Hh 2%
B4 T 2 BT 355 0 T I LR A A T 95
B CF—LF - TERIERS) o ik
S5 T ph i TIT 5 i 2 R 2 B A
Tty ol s

AAAERE > A AR A HOA e Y
E‘M%Lﬂ‘ﬁx{h‘ S 15 P45 S R A

NEHE2,131,00070 K A 55 8] 5 B i 25
NE#52,829,0000C » B 5F A HAth 218
W gk o feds AERHE1,807,000 0 E FH 2L
DS TAE FEA HoAth 2 1 i 25 2 W HS
Tt RS 2 (R W s A o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

26.

27.

INVENTORIES 26. 7+
2018 2017
ZE )\ TE LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ot ANR¥ET T
Raw materials JE A R 98,605 68,022
Work in progress TE % 22,730 20,844
Finished goods B 116,772 69,985
238,107 158,851
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. S 5 B H At Wk IH
2018 2017
ZE )\ TE L4
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R0 ANR¥TI0
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 2 MRk e 1,047,884 733,313
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R (111,394) (81,045)
936,490 652,268
Advances to staff TEATE T3k IE 2,392 2,200
Deposits i 2,381 2,642
Due from associates JE WS | FKOR
(note 22 and 42(b)) (B k22 K42 (b)) 51,498 51,178
Due from shareholders JRE A B B K TE
(note 31 and 42(b)) (BT 5E31 K 42(b)) 161 151
Loans and interest receivables T TR S S 1,000 1,000
Other receivables oA i TE 104,877 40,782
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B IR R A (29,109) (29,517)
133,200 68,436
Advances to suppliers TA AT AL 1 ok TE 11,400 10,903
Contract assets (note 28) HHERE (i Ees) 2,475 -
Prepayments T FKIH 20,187 19,344
Gross amount due from customers for MES SR TR 7 2k TE AR
contract work (note 28) (Pt 5E28) - 2,611
1,103,752 753,562

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is sometimes required. The credit period generally ranges
from 3 to 6 months, starting from the date on which the goods
are delivered or services are rendered as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforesaid and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based
on the date on which the goods are delivered or services are
rendered as this is the point in time that the consideration is

unconditional, is as follows:

27. B 5y B Tt MWk IH (%)

RIEARLE 2 B o BRETEF A
AW EON - AEBMEFRZ AR
HRH o BRHRI — il = 2N H A%
F 32 AT B A AR IR B 2 FRE TR
Ty e AR 5 T SRR AR R SRR - Fg
P A R (R SR o AR B BU R
12 ) HC R RO B ORI - IR 1R R
LU L R o S0 o8 R = 3 I
BN B o Mk )R - B b
A TH - EASE N 5 IR B
RZ AR F > WO B B e o3 4R
Hioo MENCHE B IR AR

JRE Wi B 5 B ek I S R R 0 A (AR R
LA EMERMRE 2 H - B AT
RS 20 SRAGF AY IRE D80 IR

2018 2017

—F N\ T

RMB’000 RMB’000

A R0 N

Less than 3 months it 34 A 492,891 433,569
3 to 6 months 3% 6/HH 185,287 88,628
6 to 12 months 65 1216 H 145,238 75,084
Over 1 year 14E0L | 113,074 54,987
936,490 652,268

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2018, trade and bills receivables of
RMB610,973,000 (2017: RMB405,315,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The

ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

27. B 5y B Tt MWk IH (%)

AE—-NF+H=1+—H > AR
1610,973,00070 ( & —L4E « AR
405,315,0007C ) Z MEWCE 5) Bk 3 % 4%
30 M I A B (- B2 7 S T
KB B L EF A - a2 EIE S

MR BRI AT T -
2018 2017
ZFE )\ ST A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARHT T

Less than 3 months ks fE A
3 to 6 months 3% 6fMAH
6 to 12 months 621218 H
Over 1 year 142 E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables are all denominated in RMB as at 31 December
2018 and 2017.

183,890 194,076
168,771 81,168
145,238 75,084
113,074 54,987
610,973 405,315

o E-NERZFE—-LFE A
=+ 0 AREEBWE SRS R
SR {22 PR AN R M RHE

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

28. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(2017: GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO

28. FHKEE/HGHAK T~
A R MEAT R TRE P K

CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK) JHARH)
2017
—F—tF
RMB’000
N
Contract costs incurred plus recognised E 2 A AR AN 22 4 B il i A1) i
profits less recognised losses to date B MR RS 4R 23,279
Less: Progress billings B AT (21,209)
2,070
Gross amounts due from customers for JE SR T AR P CE A% (Ff3E27)
contract work (note 27) 2,611
Gross amount due to customers for WS TR AT 5 S AR (B 5E30)
construction work (note 30) (541)
2,070

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously

included as “Gross amount due from customers for

work” and “Gross amount due to customers for construction

work” were reclassified to contract assets and contract

liabilities respectively.

T R A 7 v B S S MR IS 15 98 4% - oG
B wh AT RE U 2 58 TRE % 5 3K JH A8 |
[ 25 TR e 1 % F A AR ) I i)
FIAS A EH B EGHEERGHA

fi o

contract
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

28. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(2017: GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK)

28. AHIEARAK(ZR—

A MEWCMEATESE TR P K
A (4])

(CONTINUED)
31 December 1 January 31 December
Contract assets 2018 2018 2017
—F )\ e SIS - S s
BRI B +=ZH=+—H —HA—H +—-H=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ANRWET I PNERY o
Arising from performance under MRPE LG 4 B H
installation contracts (note 27) e (FfEEE27) 2,475 2611 =
2,475 2,611 -
Receivables from contracts with T 7 s B 5 i s e
customers within the scope of HII55 15 5% 5 [ 2 e
HKFRS 15, which are included in & F & 458 >
“Trade and other receivables” A TE 5 KA
JREMSCRIE | 2,713 3,188

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due from
customers under construction contracts that arise when the
Group receives payments from customers in line with a series
of performance related milestones. Payment for installation
of embedded system is not due from the customer until the
installation services are complete and therefore a contract
asset is recognised over the period in which the installation

services are performed to represent the entity’s right to

consideration for the services transferred to date.

There were no significant changes in the contract assets

balances during the reporting period.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be

recovered after more than one year is RMB1,071,000 (2017:

RMB878,000).

HEHNEEAMZ AR RSB
AR Bl S AR AE A SR I B RS WAOHBUR g
v E A AR SR R 5 5 AR S A R
i 2 S M 5 52 BT % 5 U S A
IRARBRIAT R - HIL - &R EE TR E
A7 %2 5 MR 1) 30 [T W > DA T A
4 DB B U B RER -

TR TR A A T T A Sl e K A
o o

B IR — SR U 2 & 5 EE S

NE#1,071,0000 (= F—+L4 : AR
#5878,0007C) °

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

28. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(2017: GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO

28. AHIEEGRAKCE—
A REWREAT R SR TRLE P AR

CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK) Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ) (ﬁﬁ)
(CONTINUED)
31 December 1 January 31 December
Contract liabilities 2018 2018 2017
ZER )\ ZE =)\ ZFE LA
HRAMN +ZHA=+—H —H—H +=HA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS T ANR¥EETF T NG ST
Billings in advance of performance &4 & 1T
obligation 2 TEAT IR
— Installation contracts — GHELH 504 541 -
— Sales of goods contracts —HERNEH 61,009 52,9221 =
61,513 52,762 -

LSRR A B 2 AR AR IR iR %
TR G5 EATT % 5 &5 % > i e — B AR R
SR T A B 1k e BAS S R AR R R
Wi o IR EE A »

Contract liabilities relating to installation services are
balances due to customers under installation services. These
arise if a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue

recognised to date under the cost-to-cost method.

TR AT - A B AN BRI R A

balances during the reporting period. o

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities

o
2
™
i
R

Movements in contract liabilities:

2018
eyl 2
RMB’000
AR¥ET It
Balance at 1 January —H— B Z &8k 52,762
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of R4 465 40 T B B B 2 BT IR OE 3 &
billing in advance of installation contract and FON=Ki=eL bl
sales of goods 61,513
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of GRS EEF N =E (e %
recognising revenue during the year (52,762)
Balance at 31 December Wt H=+—HZ 45t 61,513

TEM N —F R LERANE WE
KA AT IR SR A MR L (%
—+t4F 0 AR¥#2,008,0007T) °

The amount of billings in advance of performance received
that is expected to be recognised as income after more than
one year is RMB Nil (2017: RMB2,003,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

29. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 29. R RBERBAESZEYD
EQUIVALENTS
2018 2017
—®— )\ S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARHT T

Cash and bank balances & MRATA 3K 689,448 658,235
Time deposit E AR 1,221 1,159
690,669 659,394
Less: Pledged bank deposits W CHCITERAT AR (5,000) -
Less: Time deposits with original maturity — J& = FI3] H 83 = A 2 &)
of more than three months when fEEK— R TR
acquired — non-pledged (1,221) (1,159)
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B &% E8Y 684,448 658,235
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash KRB ZAER UK & RFGEE)Z
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following HRTHI(EL S DL T 5 & W wE
currencies:
2018 2017
—F N SR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ANR¥T T

RMB N R 447,584 544,578
HK$ HIT 13,503 42,367
USD B 48,458 28,728
CAD mot 144,175 43,721
EUR oM 36,949 =

690,669 659,394

JRAER T RRTREBMARAT ZZ—)\FE4H 99]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

29. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 29.
EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for a term of six
months (2017: six months) and at fixed interest rates of 0.5%
(2017: 0.5%) per annum and are therefore subject to fair

value interest rate risk.
The pledged bank deposit of RMB5,000,000 (2017: Nil) is

secured a bank loan granted to the Group as set out in note

32 to the consolidated financial statements.

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.

Tk B B B & 55 1B (4)

SRAT B AR YR A H ERATAF BRI F Bk
R, o 28 B A7 3K 2 A7 AT A 2 5 A8 A
(ZF—L4F  NEH) > WHFEER05
JE(—F L4 0.5 ) [HEBRE
B ZE R 32 8 (R R 256 JE B o

C 4 7 R 17 47 3k A R % 5,000,000 JG
(ZF—LF ) BAIKH . DGR
FTAREEZ WATER - FEEHR R M
B R M k32 -

$ 5 B H A JE A 5k 06

2018 2017
—F )\ —ER LA
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TIE ANRHT T

Trade payables JEAT 5 5 Bk
Gross amount due to customers for A TR & P 208

construction work (note 28) HEH (B 5E28)
Contract liabilities (note 28) G # AR (F5E28)
Accruals and other payables JRE R 22 R H A A K 0H
Salaries and staff welfare payables JEAT 37 4 I B AR A
Due to associates JREAT B8 2 W KO

(note 22 and 42(b)) (Kif k22 %42 (b))
Due to a shareholder JE AT — 24 B SRk I

(note 31 and 42(b)) (P 5181 2242 (b))
Due to related parties JREARE I 2 A R

(note 31 and 42(b)) (K #E31 %42 (b))
Advances from customers (note 28) TR F AR (Fff5E28)
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357,116 259,707
- 541
61,513 -
89,318 69,327
45,343 43,838
3,604 3,507
2,129 2,256
4,142 4,087

- 52,221
563,165 435,484




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

30. B 55 B B A W A 5 H (%)
AR B 0 2 T 525 DR SR

receipt of goods, is as follows: A
2018 2017
—E)N\A —E L
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ot ANR¥ET T
0 to 90 days 0F90H 308,081 203,745
91 to 180 days 91%180H 33,786 35,186
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H 10,972 11,256
Over 365 days 365 H 4,277 9,520
357,116 259,707
31. DUE FROM/(TO) SHAREHOLDERS/ 31. MEW(fF) s, B3N 13k JE

RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due from/ (to) shareholders/related parties are

FEWR () SR B 7 BT 4K
M B B E 2R .

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

32. BANK LOANS 32. SRATHEX
2018 2017
—F N —ER b
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ST N #TF 0

Bank loans RITHEI

— Secured — B 225,683 180,850
— Unsecured — LA = 40,000
225,683 220,850

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

32. BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

The bank loans are repayable as follows (note):

32. SRATHE (H)
BATEERZ BORBIWT GE)

2018 2017

—F )N\ —F LA

RMB’000 RMB’000

PN T ANR¥T 5T

Within one year A — R R 219,700 220,850
Portion of bank loans that are due for TR IAE — A% (H A 4

repayment after one year but contain SRR R 2 SRAT B

arepayment on demand clause i OB B A T 5IH)

(shown under current liabilities) 5,983 -

225,683 220,850

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates

set out in the respective loan agreements.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are
denominated in RMB except for an amount of RMB5,983,000

(2017: RMBb5,850,000) which is denominated in USD.

The Group’s bank loans of RMB220,983,000 (2017:
RMB205,850,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates ranging
from 4.35% to 6.00% (2017: 4.35% to 5.50%) per annum
and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s bank loans of RMB4,700,000 (2017: RMB15,000,000)
are arranged at floating interest rates at 5.98% (2017: 5.46%
to 5.94%) per annum, thus exposing the Group to cash flow

interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2018, the secured bank loans were secured by
(i) the pledge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment;
(ii) the corporate guarantees given by the Company and a

non-controlling interest of a subsidiary; and (iii) pledged

bank deposits.
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B BGRB8 2
T FL BT -

i DA & JCHHE 2 SR IA N R 55,983,000 00
(TF—L4F  AR¥5,850,0007C) 4b »
AL 2 $RAT B R 2 MR DA R
{E o

AL EE Y RITERARE
220,983,000 G ( ~F — L4F © AR ¥
205,850,000 7C ) 4% /- 4.85 J& % 6.00 &
(ZF—L4H N T4.35HFES50/H) 2
[ AR R R o B AR ERZ AT
B R 2R B o A< 4R [ 8k 2 SRAT B
B #4,700,00000 ( —F — L4« AR
15,000,000 70 ) #%5.98 J8 ( & — L 4F
5.46)H £ 5.94)8 ) Z 7F B FEFRGHE
W > AR 42 R 2 B A R ) R R

o E— ) ETFZH =+ —H > A
SRATEH T S EER « () ALEEZ
W2 - WE BOGRRERRAR 5 i) AL ] K
— [H1 B JB8 2 | 2 FF #E IROHE 45 432t ) A 3
PR 5 I (iii) EARPPERITAERK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

33.

DEFERRED TAX

The following are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities

33. EWREBIIA

PATR S A SR B O R R IE B IH ()

recognised by the Group. KEfE -
Allowance
for doubtful Available-
tradeand  Allowance Accelerated for-sale Financial
other for Tax financial assets at
receivables  inventories depreciation assets FVTOCI Total
B R PAFAE A
B2 g kg SR
REEEG  FEREG O RESE  WEEE  JWHRE it
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETE AR%®TE AR®TT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTR
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tE—H—H (10,880) (392) - 1,616 - (9,656)
Credit to profit or loss for A AR BRI
the year (note 12) (HE12) (1,719) - - - = (1,719)
Charge to other comprehensive el
income - - - 694 - 694
At 81 December 2017 and RoE—tE+-H=+—H
1 January 2018 RZF—N\E—f— (12,599) (392) - 2,310 - (10,681)
Transfer g - - - (2,310) 2,310 =
Credit to profit or loss for At AR T 5 1R
the year (note 12) (M3E12) (8,934) - 977 - - (2,957)
Charge to other comprehensive TR A2 A R
income - - - - (1,485) (1,485)
At 31 December 2018 AR\
TZAZt—H (16,533) (392) 977 - 825 (15,123)

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR

225



226

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

33. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

(after offset) for statement of financial position purpose:

33. BELBiIH (%)

Al A TS R W0 2 22 90 T B TR A R (IR B4R
SAHTNE

2018 2017
—E)N\A —E LA
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ANR¥T T

Deferred tax liabilities R SRl T 4 1
Deferred tax assets R SE R T A B

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB193,897,000 (2017: RMB176,917,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
total RMB182,092,000 (2017: RMB165,110,000) that will
expire within 2023 (2017: 2022). Other tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.
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1,802 2,310
(16,925) (12,991)
(15,123) (10,681)

R MR A 1 W R ) 2 B
18 A N R 193,897,00000 (& —L
0 AR %176,917,000 ) - ] 1R
Ei9 5 1 N S | N I N 8 I N
I M B S A T R AT AT 48 AE Bl JE
FE oo R ARMERBG R AREAR
#182,092,0007C ( ~Z —-E4F + AR
165,110,0007G) » Hfé it —F = =4 (-
F—LE  ZETTAR)ZRE - H
b 58 T s 4L T i A PR A &5 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Number of shares Amount
% &8

Promoters Promoters
shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total

A A
Jie o HE At iy HiK At
’000 ’000 000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

Tk T TH ARETT AR¥TT ARWTE

Registered, issued and Erkft - BB A

fully paid:
Shares of RMB0.10 BREEARE.107

(2017: RMB0.10) each R (CF—L4

ARH0.1072)

At 1 January 2017 RoFE—tHE—~H—H 700,000 581,760 1,281,760 70,000 58,176 128,176
Issue of shares BT = 96,960 96,960 = 9,696 9,696
At 31 December 2017, REZF—tHF+ZA

1 January 2018 and =t—H - ZF- N\

81 December 2018 —A—HEZF—N\F

+-HA=+—H 700,000 678,720 1,378,720 70,000 67,872 137,872

On 11 January 2017, the Group entered into a placing W_E—tE—-H+—H » KREHIHH—
agreement with a placing agent to place up to 96,960,000 2 Be AR S — TH B ek o LUK D
new H shares at placing price of HK$1.43 (equivalent to BB 1,43 0 (R & R 49 N R 1.28
approximately RMB1.28) per share. The transactions have Jt) Bt 5: £ 96,960,000 B HTHL © 28 %)
been completed on 6 February 2017 and the premium of the B E—-b4E T AN H e Ry 5
issue of shares amounted to RMB112,553,000, net of share T fEEE NR¥112,553,000 00 (F15 5§
issue expense of RMB598,000, was credited to the Company’s 78 N R ¥598,00070) > FI AT
share premium account. Z Ay AF IR o
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AL 2 EAE P E AR A R AN 4E [ RE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern PR AR DL OB AL RS R R
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the L 1) 25 % R Al B A |l i o

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

PR RRTREBMARAT ZF— ) UE4ER 997



228

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % —/UE T ZH=1—H IR

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new shares,

buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing debts or sell

assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
equity. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash
equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity

(i.e. share capital, share premium, non-controlling interests,

retained profits and other reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2017, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at

the lower end of the range 0.1 to 0.4, in order to secure access

to finance at a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB684,448,000 (2017: RMB658,235,000), which exceed
total debt of RMB225,683,000 (2017: RMB220,850,000).
Accordingly, there was no net debt at 31 December 2018 and
2017 and calculation of debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December

2018 and 2017 is not meaningful.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Company receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2018, 49%
(2017: 49%) of the total promoters and H shares were in

public hands.
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34. JBEA (%)

A S T 22 J B B A E AR R o ANSR
PR A7 LT AR 5 IO AE L AR 4 A R D 2
B KA B S 2 R T AR o f
AEFT SRR AN o AN B T
Fe B ST A - BRAT R - Il AR
TR - BRI BUA AT EEE

A B [ L) A RE A L R B YE BE SRR o
A B Ll R 2 IR AR5 1 R R A B O
5 3 A A LG 5 AR B & R Bl 5
B RtE - BOHE R 6T P A AR
(RPRBEA ~ Fe s 6~ JF E MM 4R ~ fR
B i ) B AR R A )

WEE_F—/ETA=+—HILF
B ALEBHTARE - LF
T A=+ HIRFEEZ R > SO
T AERE R LSRR 0.1 5 0.4 %0 [H 4 2 18
KT > HELR LAG BH R A HE B Rl o

WoE— FEFHA=Z+—H > BHEak
Bl B8 7 N R H5684,448,00000 (—
F—L4E 0 AR ¥658,235,00000) 5 #B
R ¥ 225,683,00000 (& — L A4F ¢
N R 220,850,000 70 ) 2 2% 44%8 -
o RFE-NER-E—LFET A
=+ — B RS ER R - mEE
T )R E—-LE+HA=+—H
< BAERERS LR A 2 o

AN F) o HERE I I 2 B _E T T ZH T ST
4 P — S AN EL A PR KR RE R B AME R
DORFE A DRI 2 25% © A28
SR RER Sl N SV AR AW AL R A
R R R E R SR o Wl
FURA R AIRFEN—ENE25%Z TR
RE - M_F—-NFE+_H=+—H "
B A AR R H 2 49% (—F—&
i 49%) A BEFEH o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35. ASJ W] Z BA B IR DU B ok i 52 B
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AXTZWHERIE
2018 2017
)\ 4 e S e
RMB’000 RMB’000
N T ANR¥ET T
Non-current assets Ik v By s
Property, plant and equipment W ~ U7 KA 6,790 7,493
Investments in subsidiaries, net of AR AT Z R E o kxR
accumulated impairment losses MR, 2R 202,928 202,928
Investments in film productions B RE RE 10,292 11,991
Available-for-sale financial assets a] ke B A — 66,500
Financial assets at FVTOCI DA BT A HoAth 2 Tl 5 2
WA 60,505 -
Investments in associates B AN T 2 & 453,886 434,472
Deposits for potential investment MIBTERE AT 2 4 - 7,900
734,401 731,284
Current assets B
Inventories ey 185 185
Due from shareholders JRE U IR BRI 161 151
Due from subsidiaries JRE S B o 2 ) kT 192,897 184,165
Due from associates JRE WS s T B 98 98
Due from a related company JRE Wit — 5% B W 2 ) T 27 27
Prepayments, deposits and other FAATRRIE ~ e S HAB ISR
receivables TH 28,470 16,529
Time deposit with original maturity B R = W A 2 I
of more than three months
when acquired 1,221 1,159
Cash and cash equivalents B4 e B 4S8 ) 11,073 37,865
234,132 240,179
Current liabilities ﬁ@&ﬁ g
Trade and other payables %&,ﬂ\:f@}ﬁ’fj?j\ 22,110 8,570
Due to a shareholder Wgﬁ 2 % R 578 911
Due to related parties Wgﬁﬁﬁﬁki%ﬁlﬁ 3,511 3,420
Due to subsidiaries TEAST B B 2 ) 3k B 134,230 181,557
160,429 144,458
NET ASSETS A 808,104 827,005
Share capital A 137,872 137,872
Reserves (note b) fiti i (B ED) 670,232 689,133
EQUITY e 808,104 827,005
Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2019 Ao E-JEZH O HEEF e
and is signed on its behalf by: FHEL T AL EZE
NI JINLEI ZHANG WANZHONG
15 4 RE
Director Director
HH HH

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B B e M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

35.

AR 2 ) Z B 5 51K DL B Bk 52 )

(#)

(b) AL W] 2 fifi 5 52 B

Financial
assets at
Capital Reserve FVTOCI Retained
reserve funds reserve profits Total
AR A
Sl i it
ZHHEE
BAME Wt C1 ] Gl
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARKTT AR¥TR AR¥FT ARNTT AR¥TR
At1 January 2017 RZZ—tif—-H—H 449,966 76,766 - 81,594 608,326
Issue of shares BT 112,553 S S = 112,553
Total comprehensive income REE TR AR
for the year - - - (81,746) (81,746)
At 31 December 2017 and RZF—tE+ZA=1—H
1 January 2018 k=%F—\FE—H—H 562,519 76,766 - 49,848 689,133
Total comprehensive income REELTRGESE
for the year - - (5,995) (12,906) (18,901)
At 31 December 2018 REFE=NEFZA=1—H 562,519 76,766 (5,995) 36,942 670,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

36. RESERVES

()

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein are presented in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company and the Group

represents the aggregate of:

share premium totalled RMB559,438,000

arising from issue of new shares;

the waiver of an amount of RMB1,654,000
recorded as part of issuance expenses for
the listing of the Company’s H shares on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2000
(the “Listing”) payable to an unrelated party
who had provided services to the Company
during the Listing pursuant to prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC; and

the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting
from debt restructuring of Beida Jade Bird
Universal Fire Alarm Device Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
transferred in accordance with prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC.

36. ikt
(a) ASHEMHE
A 2 RS RS BN S
$E 5 R A T k2 3 I S M 25 5 )
£25 o

(b)  fffle PR K H i
(i)  BEARH

A B B A A T A il A 4
THIE I B

- BT E A AR
559,438,000 7C 2~ %
By isfg s

- REBPEBUTZ g
R8> A n
AHR R — 2T
A 7€ ¥ 22 BT GEM | i
([ T 1) Wyt A28 )
PR RS > IF B
7 N B ¥ 1,654,000 76
S i 3

- WRIEPEBATZ g
JUI R 3 R 438 A/ )
Mg AR IR E SRT
TH Bl 5 A e 03 A BRA 7]
i 8 A A A 2 Rl Es
N EH1,427,0000C »

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(1)

(iii)

Reserve funds

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve. In accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC and
articles of association of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (collectively
referred to the “PRC entities”), the PRC entities
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit
after tax, after offsetting any prior years’ losses, to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the
PRC entities’ registered share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholding or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such issue is not less
than 25% of share capital. The PRC entities may
transfer an amount from their profit after tax to
the discretionary surplus reserve approved by the
shareholders. The discretionary surplus reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses of the
PRC entities and to distribute to shareholders in

the form of bonus issue.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in

note 4(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

36. fifi i (78)

(b)

{1 BT % D 3 ()

(1)

(iii)

e

it 4 A0 4 V5 E L BR A B
ELREBRBARSE - RiE
w0 B TR B A B AR S )
T A S 2
A (LA s [ B )
TR > P
JH 4 Bl 4% vk R (HE B AT o]
IR EE AR ) - 1R I10%
VR e BBR Al - sk E &
% fat 45 2 1) o B O o A
A50% R o AT AT — 25 $2
By LB o W E LR kAl T
FHO HE 8 DA AR A B 1 (3
) o IR ] R R
Ji& L 8] 1) JBe R % AT A mi
380 R T e 2
] A R A > M T
T e B R A
DR A 2 25% o I H #E
] A TR 4 AR B AR i R
8 2 B8 AL E 2 AT 7 AL R
i o AT R B BR A mT 1R
FE 5 o 0 B A O AR
B> Sl LhAT B 3K B HROUR
o

FEE 52 faft

WEE S fof 445 60 45 BEE 51 411 365
BB i R 7 AR 1A BT A B 5 22
BEoo W2 Al M AR AR A RS R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve (2017: Investment

(v)

revaluation reserve)

The financial assets at FVTOCI (2017: investment
revaluation reserve) comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets)
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy in

note 4(0) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the

aggregate of:

- The equity-settled share-based payments of
RMB10,969,000 recognised upon transfer
of equity interests in a subsidiary of the
Company from certain of its original
shareholders to a director and certain
employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

- The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose from
the decrease in non-controlling interest of
RMB4,617,000 (being the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets
of PWC Winery, LLC) and RMB3,034,000
(equivalent to approximately USD475,000),
which arose on the acquisition of additional
25% equity interests in PWC Winery, LLC
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

- The reserve includes RMB3,832,000
(2017:RMB3,743,000)is the safety
production fund, which is for future
enhancement of safety environment and

improvement of facilities.

36. fifi i (78)

(b)

ol i 1 e 3 (FD)
(iv)  PAZS T FFA Al 22 i a2

(v)

ZHMBEEEMM(ZEFE—L
P B EN )

DL S s A A 4 T i 25
ZMBEEME(ZE— L
M PO EAG RIS ) I R
HWAREA Z LA FEFFA
Hofh A T U 25 2 B E (.
F—LAF s At E TS
RN/ =3 REE T
DL RAR B8 45 B 55 R R B 5T
4 (o) BTl Gt BUK A o

H At
A A [ oAt i #5451 2 A
%A

- MG HEZ BN
Ve N N
10,969,000 J¢ > 7E #
e S S R |
=+—H I FEERARN
o) B o R i el
5 e SR e 2 A A
—HEH A TR BN
fERE o

- AR %1,583,000 € 2
LR TR FE B IR b
5 A R ¥ 4,617,000 7T
( Bl PWC Winery,LLC
FHEERMMHEZ W
B4y 88 ) WS N R
3,034,000 JG ( FH & 7
#1 475,000 % 6 ) Z #=
o Hn#EE _—F—=
E+_H=+—H1
A B — 2 YL i PWC
Winery, LLC 25%H 4
ek o

- MEmTeLEER
4 N R % 3,832,000 I
(=ZF— L4 AR¥
3,743,0007C) > ATER
AR & A TR BT ok 5
Fhe o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B S5 WA B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Profit appropriations

Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’
articles of association, the net profit after tax as
reported in the PRC statutory financial statements,
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting principles
and regulations, can only be distributed as dividends

after allowance has been made for the following:

(i)  Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

(i) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (b) (ii)

above.

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

()

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Acquisition of a subsidiary

In March 2018, the Group acquired a 40% equity
interest in Shanxi Zhengtianqi Fire Equipment
Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhengtianqi”) at a
consideration of RMB1,134,000 from an independent
third party of the Group together with capital
contribution commitment of RMB4,955,000. Shanxi
Zhengtianqi was engaged in research, development and

sales of fire equipment and related products.

Shanxi Zhengtianqi is considered as a subsidiary of the
Group as the Group has the control of the Board of
Directors with the right to nominate 3 out of 5 directors
to the Board.

36. fitfl (%)
(c) A4
AR v B 2 7 i K o BB > 4 4k
EFRANAN - e BE ep SR I K g
405 484 2 vl R B R 2 T R ik
R AR o T AR 4 4% TE A
AR A R BB 4 TR

(i) SRR R 2 R EH R (dn
) -

(i)  $BAE L 30 (b) (i1) I o £t 4 3

4 o

37. EAABlET R R W aE

(a)  VBCIE — FH] PR 28 W)

W E— AEZH > A AR
S — 44 B S = T O T BT
E R 0 By s A A BR 2 ) (T B
ERFE ) 1940% HE > RE 2 A
R 1,184,000 o6 > A A R
4,955,000 G 1 1 & 7K 45 o pRPY IE
T AT 55 R 5 65 30 B s A A
R 7E i

B P 1 K75 454 AR 4R T 2 B R
ml > FAAREEAERYAERET
AEH P = T e A
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

37. BH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

(a)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

acquired as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

B4 0 B A PRk ()

W i — I > ) (48D
TP W LS < T R B
(EUDPAS IR U

RMB’000
AR T
Net assets acquired: o i B 1

Property, plant and equipment (note 18)  #2& ~ {5 Kt (FfE18) 270
Other intangible assets (note 20) HAb#IE & & (M 5E20) 2
Inventories 75 80
Trade and other receivables B o T Fo A E YR IE 892
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB EY 3,986
Trade and other payables B 5 B Fo A REAT 3K 0H (6)
5,224
Non-controlling interests I P e (1,221)
Goodwill (note 19) (i EE19) 2,086
Total consideration — satisfied by cash 2 fCAE—DAFR & A 6,089

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: AU AR 2 B U TR A
Cash consideration paid EAT B 4 A0 E 6,089
Cash and cash equivalents acquired JIT S B 4 R B 4 S B W) (3,986)
2,103

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Shanxi
Zhengtianqi is attributable to the anticipated
profitability of the distribution of the Group’s products

in the new markets and the anticipated future operating

synergies from the combination.

W J R P I R AR T E A 2 R AR AR
T 35 73 89 A 4 28 b 1) TR 1 M) 2 TR
N A D 2 A B SR AL B[] 2 i

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #%E % — )\ =+— H k4%

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2018, Shanxi Zhengtianqi contributed
RMB1,407,000 to the Group’s revenue and net loss of
RMB1,980,000 to the Group’s profit or loss..

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2018, the
consolidated turnover and net profit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been
RMB1,905,727,000 and RMB326,500,000 respectively.
The proforma financial information is for illustrative
purpose only and does not necessarily reflect the
Group’s revenue and operating results if the acquisition
had been completed 1 January 2018 and could not serve

as a basis for the forecast of future operation result.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

37. BH

(a)

(b)

B4 0 B A PRk ()

W Bl — [ o 2 ) ()

MUK E —F— /\FE+ A
= —H W > BRIV IE R A AR
A B IR B 51,407,000 7 &
AALEHB G ERIFERARK
1,980,0007C ©

i =% — \4E—H—H#
Ao BIARLEREE ZF—A
E+ZA=Z+—HBILEEZ
- X U T NS
¥ 1,905,727,000 o5& & AN K ¥
326,500,000 7C ° % B 5 5 RHE
2% jik > AN — & S BE IR A
ZF— )\ FE—A—HERMERT
A 42 B I 25 B RE % SE A B NG
VETE I R A 466 % S 4 2 S o

A B AR 2 A RUBHIR

R R M AR ] A A B
Rz AMZ Y AEBE KIEE
SHH) o MEHBELZAEMLH
A B R SR AR B i

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated GNAREF G AR ERBERNEE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing FEIEE 2 HERESH -
activities.
Due to Due to
Bank loans  a shareholder related parties
AT — 4 P Ak I Wi
AT HK JBe 3K A+
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 ANR¥ T8 NS T
At 1 January 2018 it E— )\ 4
—H—H 220,850 2,256 4,087
Interest expense FILE B 11,205 - -
Non-cash movements e 133 = =
Cash flows HemE (6,505) (127) 55
At 31 December 2018 AT E— \AE
ToH=1—H 225,683 2,129 4,142
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38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group issued guarantees to

several banks in respect of banking facilities granted to two

associates.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility granted by bank amounted
RMB503,000,000 (2017: RMB503,000,000). At the end of
reporting period, facility drawn down by the associates
amounted RMB452,000,000 (2017: RMB403,000,000). The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect

of the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered

insignificant.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an
assessment demanding final tax for the year of assessment
2004/2005 from the IRD. The amount of this assessment
was approximately HK$47,852,000 (equivalent to
RMB41,928,000) in which approximately HK$47,748,000
(equivalent to RMB41,837,000) relating to a claim for gain
on disposal of long term investment recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2004. On 25 February 2013,
the IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary informing that
the case has been forwarded to the Appeals Section of the
IRD for further processing. The outcome of the tax claim
cannot be readily ascertained up to the date of this report.
Should the assessment regarding the claim for the gain be
finally judged against the subsidiary, current tax liabilities

and corresponding income tax expense of HK$47,748,000

(equivalent to RMB41,837,000) will be recognised.

38.

39.

S5 45 R
RoF—AFE+ZH=+—H > A%M
A0 T B 2 2 A2 6 R AT L 45 T
BATH AR -

A MR 5 B IR R R AN 4R ] g
AR R BB T RE - RIREWA
A B DTSR T 2 AR BB SR
TR B ZmE NR¥503,000,000 70 (—
T —L4 . AR¥503,000,00000) - i
WEBAR > BE AR RS S AR
# 452,000,000 7C ( ~ZF—-E4F © AR
403,000,0007%) © A< 5 (1] lf7 S0 3l S 4%
TR AR BT AT B U A - DX 2 HL A P (E B
PR L 38 -

KA AME

T AR AR TE — KM E A
BRI BLE R ZFEEN ) T HAR
TR B AR Bl K N o RERLIY &
A B 47,852,000 70 (K& i N R
41,928,0007C) > H H1%747,748,000% I
(HHE i N R ¥ 41,887,00000 ) BLAR = —
FENEFH =+ B ILEFECHER
M ERAIRE 2 W 2 HRAEH - 7R
RS H AR BUBS R I
Wi a8 28 w13 HE 0 > e A BRI TR
LR EARAEE R - EA
s H M ORI R R A
J o A B R g I R A P
W% M A F R R A$ TERE 47,748,000
It (FHE i N R 41,837,00000) 2 B4
o T 2 {5 B AH B T A B B 5

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

41.

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting

40. GEARRSE

AR B R I &5 B 2 B ARSI

period are as follows: o
2018 2017
—F— N\ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R0 PNERY o
Contracted but not provided for: ELRT AU ME AR s
Property, plant and equipment LE N G & 3,955 19,801
Unpaid balance of capital contribution I B 8\ e e A e
to associates and joint ventures TEEZ KA 45 R 92,596 127,693
LEASE COMMITMENTS 41. HERE

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

BZF—NEFZHA=+—H  REAR
T HHCEH A A B R AR A 2 R AR AL S

as follows: KB T
2018 2017
—F— )\ —F L4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T8 AR¥TIT
Within one year —4EN 10,871 9,943
In the second to fifth years inclusive R HA
(B E R WA) 18,405 24,888
29,276 34,831

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the

Group for certain of its offices and operating premises. Leases

are negotiated for terms ranging from one to five (2017: one

to five) years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do

not include contingent rentals.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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42.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

42, EREBALRZS

In addition to those related party transactions and (a)  BREEA FABE R H A B 40 558 2 5%
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated SN LS KA - AL
financial statements, the Group had the following AR AR g it BELHC R N 3T DA R
transactions with its related parties during the year: Lo
2018 2017
—F )N\ —F—LAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARHT T
Sales of electronic fire alarm systems [ b 50 K B2 i 2 — [H] B
and related products to a related A TS B TR RS R A
company controlled by Peking T I i
University 211 156
Management fee income PRER /N LDR - $L E L ON
from associates 8,737 7,624
Rental expenses for office buildings DU & 7 O Z A =
charged by MRS
- a shareholder of the Company — ARNTF LR 2,456 2,661
— a non-controlling interest of — — [ B Jag 2 W) 2 e i
a subsidiary RE 4 941 968
3,397 3,629
Car rental expense charged — T B 2 RO R A 4
by an associate B 115 112
Loan interest expense paid SCAS T TR B R 2 ) 2
to a non-controlling interest 4 2 B ORI S B S
of a subsidiary 314 406

The directors are of the opinion that the above

transactions with related parties were conducted in the

usual course of business.

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR

R L kBB 2 55 T —
S R AT o

239
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. HREPEN LR 5 (5)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Included in the consolidated statement of financial (b) LA BRI R ALHE LR B A+
position are the following balances with related parties: 2 GEg
2018 2017
ZF N\ —ER L
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS T YN
Due from associates T B 45 ) ) R B 51,498 51,178
Due from shareholders JE W F 161 151
Due from a related company controlled fEl— 5 i It KB il 2
by Peking University included in B A R I A
other receivables JRE A 3R I 27 27
Trade payables to a related company  EfT—F H b G R EE il 2 B
controlled by Peking University N R R B Rk - 16
Due to associates JREAST B 7 2 W) KA 3,604 8,607
Due to a shareholder JREAS — 42 Ji SRR IH 2,129 2,256
Due to non-controlling interests of JREASS BfF i 2 ) 22 422 RO i
subsidiaries included in other payables FKJIH » FF A HABREAT FH 2,235 7,259
Due to related companies controlled — MEAT i1 b 5T K EEFEH 2
by Peking University B 7\ A 30E 4,142 4,087
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) AEHTEEHAEMS :
Group:
2018 2017
VN2 —R L
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN ARHT I
Short term employee benefits s R B A 11,493 11,119
Post-employment benefits A A ) 758 694
12,251 11,813
Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ ERNERMe S E RS

emoluments are included in note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. FEE A A

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 o E - EFTH=+—H » KAHA]
December 2018 are as follows: TS A FREFIT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Percentage of
Name opﬁ;’}lon/ Paid up capital equity interest Principal activities
a0 GALYEL- 2L B VT2 N BHEREEA L EERH
Direct  Indirect
H% [JE;
Beida ]ade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman) Cayman Islands/ 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
Development Company Limited the PRC USD1 each }
AKRBIFAE HE)RRARAT SRS/ T 10,0008 SR HE1ET BRI
2L
Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Hebei, the PRC 180,000,000 ordinary 51% - Technology research,
Company Limited (“Jade Bird Fire Alarm”) shares of development, manufacture
RMBI each and sale of fire alarm system
o i roducts
IRESRTHRMRHARA (FHHE])  rETL 180,000,000/ i i WO R R T
LV b 1 e R R
Beijing Jade Bird Universal Fire System Software ~ Beijing, the PRC~ RMB1,000,000 S 51% Technology research,
Service Co., Ltd. (“Fire Software”) development, sale of software
N N B of fire alarm s jl%stem products
jtaﬁ EERT RSB AR RA LR AEH1,000,0007 (ﬁ@i%?f?‘uuz B -
(b))
Chuanq1 Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. Hunan, the PRC ~ RMB100,000,000 60% - Exploration and development of
“Chuan% Tourism”) ) B _ travel and leisure business
AR AR ( ;fﬁm G AEH100,000,0007C ISUUSTES FAL L Y3 3
Beijing Hengsheng Investment Management Beijing, the PRC ~ RMB2,000,000 55% - Provision of investment
Company Limited management and advisory
services
TR R EHARAA R A R82,000,0007C BR L8 LI e s
Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Ningbo, the PRC  RMB60,000,000 S 70% Investment holding
Investment Co., L ) ) B
B EB ARG E’ i Gl Ed ARH£60,000,0007C e el
Si Chuan Jiu Yuan Intelligent Surveillance Sichuan, the PRC  RMB8,000,000 - 38%* Design, manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Jiuyuan”) of fire alarm system, security
N . i ) B and fire eqﬁl ment roducts
PNARE A REL A A (TIARE)) E ) B H8,000,00078 HETRAE i ke
2Rt i?&iﬁ
PWC Winery, LLC The State of Members’ contributed - 70% Production and sales of wine
Virginia, the capital of and related products
United States USD4,200,000 ) }
PWC Winery, LLC FEHLREN  BORIEE4,.200,000% 70 WA RA R L R
Maple Armor Fire Solution Canada Inc. Canada CAD12,000,350 - 47%* Design, manufacture and sale
(“Maple Armor Fire”) of fire alarm system, security
B and fire equ ment roducts
Maple Armor Fire Solution Canada Inc. JIEYN 12,000,350 7¢ HhRS - # El B
P{Maple Armor Fire ) Ztat Eﬁﬁiﬁ

&

Sichuan Jiuyuan and Maple Armor Fire are accounted for as

subsidiaries by virtue of the Group’s control over them.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

JRAER T RRT RN ARAT 2% — ) F4EH]

& P9Il A% JeMaple Armor Fire H 4
A1 (o] 35 HL 2 2 o REE T 2 L JB 2 W A
R -

ERESIGEAER A - BESA
f I T B B N A R RN o
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries
that have NCI material to the Group. The summarised

financial information represents amounts before inter-

company eliminations.

43. FEMHE W (5)
R BT R A S B A I A 2
MBS A o B BORHMBEEEAR 4 7 B 3K
EL B G 9 o

Name Jade Bird Fire Alarm Sichuan Jiuyuan
EA H R PYJII A 38
2018 2017 2018 2017
—F)N\E - ZFNE ZF—LF
% of ownership interests/ FEPE A 2 T hE 2
voting rights held by NCI A HERE RS
WERA I 49%/49%  49%/49% = 62%/62%  62%/62%
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥TIE AR¥TT AR¥ETTE AR¥TT
At 31 December: w»+—H=+—H:
Non-current assets FEmE G E 592,407 407,767 8,477 97,472
Current assets it 0 1,372,300 1,144,573 210,688 198,804
Current liabilities it B £ (542,044)  (494,167)  (181,906)  (145,027)
Non-current liabilities JERE A E (977) - - -
Net assets R 1,421,686 1,058,173 37,259 81,249
Accumulated NCI BT IR R 25 696,341 518,292 23,002 50,159
Year ended 31 December: ®E+_-_H=+—H
IRARBE -
Revenue A 12,990,425 1,122,787 205,620 216,409
Profit i Al 363,513 298,997 6,681 13,219
Total comprehensive income 4 T i £ 44 4f 363,513 298,997 6,681 13,219
Profit allocated to NCI T IR 4
T | 178,049 146,448 4,124 8,161
Dividends paid to NCI E AT IR e 4 2 R - - - -
Net cash generated from/ (RN B B RRE
(used in) operating activities  {H8)Z Bl 415 H 90,268 136,066 (17,196) (29,428)
Net cash used in A& 2
investing activities BiTRRE | (198,180) (58,980) (346) (184)
Net cash (used in)/generated (FHR) /4 HEE
from financing activities THH) 2 BlLaIF (7,606) 73,026 16,385 3,003
Net (decrease) /increase in B4 I Bl 5 E )
cash and cash equivalents () /B 48 (115,518) 150,112 (1,157) (26,609)
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

43. EEWE 2w (4)

Name Fire Software Chuangqi Tourism
% T B K 1 {807 ik 7%
2018 2017 2018 2017
2 -N\E —F-LF ZF-NE X —L4E
% of ownership interests/ I PSR 2 P 4 2
voting rights held by NCI WAL
PEEREE A L 49%/49% 49%/49% = 40%/40%  40%/40%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIE AR¥WTT AR¥TIE AR¥TIC
At 31 December: wt+_H=1+—H:
Non-current assets i E G 1,217 1,232 212,062 214,505
Current assets E) & 106,461 81,173 212,629 168,852
Current liabilities A (10,223) (5,707) (37,979) (46,242)
Net assets &R 97,455 76,698 386,712 337,115
Accumulated NCI 2T IR £ 47,733 37,567 154,685 134,846
Year ended 31 December: ®Z2+_H=+—H
R4 -
Revenue A 106,473 55,479 138,330 131,821
Profit T | 85,756 38,935 49,449 48,374
Total comprehensive income 2 [ffj i 25 44 %5 85,756 38,935 49,449 48,374
Profit allocated to NCI AT IR 2
ikl 42,004 19,071 19,780 19,350
Dividends paid to NCI AT IR I RE 25 2 IS - - - —
Net cash generated from/ B E/(Fﬁﬁi\) REi
(used in) operating activities %) .2 Bl 4 1F4H 22,026 24 (11,069) 62,098
Net cash used in TR E TG B 2
investing activities B4 i (312) (174) (1,312) (1,412)
Net cash used in financing TR Rl TG B 2
activities R bi ] - - (1,086) (32,335)
Net increase/ (decrease) in He LB 45 EY
cash and cash equivalents o () B 21,714 (150) (13,467) 28,351

LR BT R RA T ZF— ) FEHR
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. FEE A ¥ (4)

Name Maple Armor Fire
ey Maple Armor Fire
2018 2017
—F )\ “F—tF
% of ownership interests/ JEH5E EHE 25 BT 17 2 A HE
voting rights held by NCI [ E Vi AEpid=d 53%/53% 53%/53%
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS T ANR¥T T
At 31 December: BHZA=4+—H:
Non-current assets T & 7,193 55,674
Current assets ) 231,941 88,867
Current liabilities U8 £ 1 (439) (951)
Non-current liabilities FE ) AR (77,230) (99,569)
Net assets G 161,465 44,021
Accumulated NCI P E R aliei £ 85,442 23,294
Year ended 31 December: BRETA=1T—HIL&EE :
Revenue A - -
Loss JEi 1R (11,962) (4,958)
Total comprehensive income A T 7 AR (11,962) (4,958)
Loss allocated to NCI o3 BiE 2 IR IR 4 2 s 1R (6,330) (2,624)
Dividends paid to NCI AT R A 2 R - -
Net cash used in operating activities FE T R 1 By 2 B < TR A (19,098) (13,905)
Net cash used in investing activities TGS B 2 B i A (203) (30,915)
Net cash generated from financing activities A4 H [l & 15 8 2 3B 4 15F 48 21,024 67,342
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 B B4 4 R W 6 I R 1,723 22,522
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